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ABOUT US

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2289.HK) is
principally engaged in the pharmaceutical distribution business.
It mainly distributes western medicine, Chinese patent medicine
and healthcare products to downstream distributors and retail
terminals, while conducting dealings in the third-party logistics
business of medicines and providing pharmaceutical products
related consulting services. Founded in 2000, over the past 24
years of rapid development, it has become one of the leading
pharmaceutical distributors in the Southern China region. The
Company adheres to the development strategy of “Intensive
Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage
across Surrounding Areas”, based in Shantou, it has established
subsidiaries in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Huizhou, Foshan and
Shenzhen, and has four modern pharmaceutical logistics
centers., all equipped with Professional marketing service team,
professional transportation teams, and has a highly efficient
delivery mechanism of delivering pharmaceutical products
three times per day for customers within a radius of 10
kilometers, twice per day for customers within a radius of 50
kilometers and once per day for those within a radius of 250
kilometers. In addition, the Company has a modern information
system that covers the entire supply chain for pharmaceutical
distribution, including procurement, sales, warehousing,
transportation and delivery. Apart from that, the Company
operates its own B2B e-commerce platform “Charmacy e-
Medicine” (£1/3€ e %), a platform for customers to place orders
online, make inquires and payment ,etc. In 2022, the Company
ranked top 38 among top 100 the PRC wholesalers, in respect
of revenue generated from the principal business. The Company
ranked the 6th among the pharmaceutical distribution

businesses in Guangdong Province.

In 2023, based on the excellent warehousing and distribution
system, the Group was awarded the 2022-2023 Outstanding
Pharmaceutical Logistics Distribution Enterprise (for 3
consecutive years), the 2022-2023 Modern Pharmaceutical
Logistics Technology Test Base (Centre) (for 2 consecutive
years), the 2022-2023 Best Pharmaceutical Cold Chain
Logistics Centre (Base) (for 5 consecutive years), the 2022-
2023 Recommended Pharmaceutical Cold Chain Logistics
Service Enterprise (for 4 consecutive years), the 2022-2023 Top
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50 Enterprises with Pharmaceutical Third-party Modern
Logistics Service Capability and the 2022-2023 Excellent Case
for Integrated Smart Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Services
from Yaolianquan Certification Centre. It was also awarded the
2022 China Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Prominent Enterprise
and the 2022-2023 Top 10 Logistics Centres from the
Pharmaceutical Logistics Branch of the China Federation of
Logistics & Purchasing, as well as the 2022-2023 Golden Ant
Innovation Award in China’s Logistics Industry from the
Organizing Committee of LET-a CeMAT ASIA Event (for 6

consecutive years).

Due to its good reputation and high-quality services, the
Company was awarded the 2022-2023 Top 100 Chinese
Enterprises in Pharmaceutical Business by the Medical and
Pharmaceutical Commercial Association under the All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce and received the 4th
Golden Stone Award * 2023 Best Pharmaceutical Marketing
Team from Saibailan.



H 8%
CONTENTS

KRR

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ERERE

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

S 7540 2

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B HE e A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EH. BEREAE A RJEIRE

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS,SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
A SRE R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EFERE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EF e

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ REPORT

Hatk

AUDITOR’S REPORT

AR AEARE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BAFAEAEARE

BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY

ERIRINEES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

RR A RER

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE PARENT COMPANY

AR ERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

AR BERER

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW OF THE PARENT COMPANY
B ORI i S B R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
AN SR S

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY OF THE PARENT
COMPANY

WA B R MR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023

FERE R

ANNUAL REPORT

11

12

33

43

71

95

98

105

109

113

117

119

121

123

127

130

-003 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

AEE R CORPORATE INFORMATION

EH
PITES
PRAKE (EHEERHIER)

* DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Yao Chuanglong (Vice-chairman of the Board)

B 4 Zheng Yuyan

TRIEA Zhang Hanzi

EPITES Non-executive Directors

iR CGEFHE ) Yan Jingbin (Chairman of the Board)
ik Fu Zheng

IR Xu Fei

B EPITES Independent non-executive Directors
2R Li Hanguo

PAERE Wan Chi Wai Anthony

s ORISR Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)
g * SUPERVISORS

R it Zhu Minghong

R Zhang Ling

g A Zheng Xiyue

B A R A E * JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
9 8 Wong Wai Ling

Wi Yao Jiexi

“ERRAG Y * AUDIT COMMITTEE®ete!)

FHEME (EFD Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman)

TR Xu Fei

fofl S Guan Jian

“REZREE Y * NOMINATION COMMITTEE®eteD
FsE (EFE Guan Jian (Chairman)

ok A BE Yao Chuanglong

2B [ Li Hanguo

FMEEE * REMUNERATION COMMITTEE®etD
AR (EFD Li Hanguo (Chairman)

fHiE Fu Zheng

FEMe Wan Chi Wai Anthony

AREEREE O
wRAE (R
IRIEL

2
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* RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE®eteD)
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

Zhang Hanzi

Li Hanguo
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* STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE®teD
Yan Jingbin (Chairman)

Yao Chuanglong

Zheng Yuyan

* AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Zheng Yuyan

Yao Jiexi

* AUDITOR

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership)

* LEGAL ADVISERS
DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP (as to Hong Kong

laws)

Sundial Law Firm (as to the PRC laws)

* REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS

No. 235, Song Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

* PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road
East,Wanchai, Hong Kong

* PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. (Shantou Branch)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Shantou
Branch)

* H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

* COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chmyy.com

* STOCK CODE

2289.HK

Notel: The Board has made the following changes of
composition of the Board committees due to changes in the
composition of the Board member. For details, please refer to

the announcement of the Company dated 31 May 2023.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

I would like to, on behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of
Directors (the “Directors”) of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 2289.HK) (the “Company”), submit the
audited consolidated results of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”
or “we” or “Charmacy”) for the year ended 31 December 2023
(the “Reporting Period”).

Business Overview

Founded in 2000, the Group is mainly involved in the non-
bidding field of medicine, distributing western medicines,
traditional Chinese patent medicines, healthcare products and
other products to downstream distributors and retail outlets, and
maintaining a leading position in the non-bidding market in
South China. In addition, vigorously expanding third-party
logistics services and providing pharmaceutical product related
consulting services, we are committed to becoming the most
competitive service provider in the Chinese pharmaceutical and
health industry. Based in Shantou and adhering to the
development strategy of "deeply cultivating Guangdong and
radiating the surrounding areas", the Group has established
subsidiaries in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Huizhou, Foshan, and
Shenzhen. As of December 31, 2023, we had 13,836 customers,
including 13,173 pharmaceutical retail customers, in our
distribution network, cooperated with a total of 1146 suppliers,
and distributed 12,212 kinds of products, with partners
throughout the country.

Entering a new stage of high-quality development in the
pharmaceutical industry, the Group is deeply exploring and
integrating upstream and downstream resources, so as to further
expand our advantages in basic supply chain networks and
channel resources. In 2023, Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Jiangyao”) achieved control over the group, laying a solid
equity foundation for the Group's future development. Jiangyao
has initiated a deep strategic cooperation with the Group, and
signed a three-year borrowing, procurement, and sales
framework agreement with the Group. Jiangyao and the Group

have a good synergy in the business field. We are fully
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convinced that, following the cooperation philosophy of

"mutual complementation, resource sharing, Wwin-win
cooperation, and common development”, Jiangyao's entry will
bring strong growth momentum to the Group. In addition, the
Group also intensifies the close cooperation with multiple
pharmaceutical brand manufacturers, strengthens resource
linkage and sharing, actively connects upstream manufacturers
and downstream customers, and makes continuous progress in
"all channels, all services, and all-round marketing", so as to

further accelerates our high-quality development.

In 2023, by virtue of good reputation and high-quality service,
we were awarded the 2022-2023 Top-100 Chinese
Pharmaceutical Commerce Enterprises by the All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce Medical and
Pharmaceutical Chamber, and the 4th Pharmaceutical Golden
Stone Award < Best Pharmaceutical Marketing Team Award
for 2023 by Saibailan. Relying on excellent warehousing and
distribution system, the Group once again won the honors such
as "China Logistics Industry Golden Ant Innovation Award",
"Excellent Pharmaceutical Logistics Distribution Enterprise",
and  "Modern
Experimental Base", was included in the "Guangdong Top-500

Pharmaceutical  Logistics  Technology
Enterprises" list for 14 consecutive years, and was listed as one
of the "Top-100 Pharmaceutical Commerce Enterprises in
China". What's even more gratifying is that, the Group became
the first enterprise in Guangdong Province to pass the third-
party logistics enterprise inspection and certification under the
new regulations for pharmaceuticals, and was included in the
"Top-50 Modern Logistics Enterprises with Excellent Service
Capabilities for Pharmaceuticals", which indicates that our
third-party logistics services are highly recognized. With
profound industrial experience in the field of pharmaceutical
distribution, the Group has established a mature, replicable and
highly-efficient operating mode, and is now actively exploring
diversified development strategies, so as to meet the diverse
needs of our customers and continuously expand the market

space.
Business Performance

In 2023, the Group's operating revenue increased by 5.47% to
RMB4,403.63 million in 2023 from RMB4,175.28 million in
2022. The gross profit increased by 7.72% to RMB292.74
million in 2023 from RMB271.76 million in 2022; the gross
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profit margin increased to 6.65% in 2023 from 6.51% in 2022;
the net profit attributable to shareholders of parent company
decreased by 43.25% to RMBS51.34 million in 2023 from
RMB90.47 million in 2022. After deducting non-recurring gains
and losses, the net profit increased by 24.67% to RMBS50.04
million in 2023 from RMB40.14 million in 2022.

Prospect

China has increased its efforts to guide and regulate the
pharmaceutical industry, with multiple medical reform measures
gradually implemented. The domestic pharmaceutical industry
is in a huge wave of change, and the traditional operating mode
of the pharmaceutical industry is being challenged. New
demands and technologies are constantly emerging, leading to
innovative service concepts and business models. Against this
background, the market structure of the pharmaceutical industry
is quietly reshaping, and the interconnection modes of various
links in the industrial chain are becoming more diversified,
bringing new opportunities for the development of the

pharmaceutical distribution industry.

In general, the Guiding Opinions on High Quality Development
of Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry during “14th Five Year
Plan” (the “Plan”) issued by the Ministry of Commerce have
clarified the development direction for pharmaceutical
distribution industry at the current stage. The Plan point out
that, by 2025, the annual sales of the top-100 pharmaceutical
wholesale enterprises will account for over 98% of the total
pharmaceutical wholesale market; the annual sales of the top-
100 pharmaceutical retail enterprises will account for over 65%
of the total pharmaceutical retail market; the chain rate of
pharmaceutical retail will be close to 70%. With this as the goal,
the next two years will be a crucial period for the
pharmaceutical distribution industry to eliminate their
inefficient production capacity, improve their service
capabilities and increase their distribution efficiency, and for the
leading enterprises with stronger comprehensive
competitiveness to accelerate their growth. For the Group,
understanding the market pattern changes, deeply exploring into

the industrial chain demands, and attaching great importance to
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technology empowerment and business innovation have become
important driving forces for us to achieve stable growth and
high-quality development.

Looking ahead to the future, the increase in out-of-hospital
pharmaceutical circulation scale has become a foregone
conclusion, which will give rise to a huge out-of-hospital
market, and will undoubtedly inject a dose of "cardiac
stimulant" for leap-forward development of our business. In
2024, we will fully leverage our competitive advantages in the
non-bidding market, strengthen communication and cooperation
with the upstream and downstream of the industry chain,
respond quickly to market changes, provide accurate and
diverse product and service systems, and create a
"differentiation + diversification" innovative mode, so as to
better meet customer needs. We will attach great importance to
digital transformation, make digital technology the driving
engine for the high-quality development of the Group, enhance
the pharmaceutical logistics modernization ability, optimize the
smart pharmaceutical logistics system, build a digital, flat,
shared, and decentralized pharmaceutical circulation platform,
and based on this, seek further breakthroughs in third-party
pharmaceutical logistics business. By continuously promoting
the strategic cooperation with state-owned shareholders, and
leveraging the state-owned resources and industrial
development advantages of Jiangyao, we will further enhance
the overall operational level and comprehensive
competitiveness of the Group, and make every effort to achieve

the high-quality development of the Group.

We will adhere to our original intention and embrace
opportunities. Without failing our mission of creating a healthy
and beautiful life, we will continuously implement the business
philosophy of "carrying out honest operation, benefiting others,
and achieving win-win cooperation", practice the market
strategy of "deeply cultivating Guangdong and radiating the
surrounding areas", and fully improve the service quality, so as
to bring new channels and increments to the pharmaceutical
distribution industry, and create more long-term value returns

for shareholders.
Acknowledgement

Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to express my

heartfelt thanks to the Company’s management and employees
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

#Z 12 A 31 Hib&EE
For the year ended 31 December

HH 2023 £F 2022 & 2021 £F 2020 & 2019 £
Item AR¥BTR | ARBTxH | AR¥TxR | AR®TxK | ARBTT
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
%%l{&)\ 4,403,633 4,175,279 3,793,618 3,991,711 3,492,783
Operating revenue
1) 384
T8 A8 67,420 122,054 32,981 54,742 55,045
Total profit
B B 7 B 22 ) i SR AR R
Net profit attributable to the 51,345 90,472 23,153 40,556 40,153
Shareholders of parent ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
company
AR mBERR
(UERAR® TR
Basic and diluted earnings 0.48 0.84 0.21 0.38 0.37
per Share (expressed in
RMB per share)
B12A31H
As at 31 December
HH 2023 4 2022 2021 4 2020 4 2019 £
Item ARETT | ARBETRx | ARETxK | ARETRE | AR¥®TT
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR 3,247,656 2,866,465 2,763,092 2,799,403 2,503,808
Total assets
%ﬁ% . 2,649,849 2,271,403 2,258,990 2,296,854 2,020,215
Total liabilities
J SR 2
Equity of Shareholders 597,807 595,062 504,102 502,549 483,593
BRREE
(RN R% TR
Net assets per Share 5.54 5.51 4.67 4.65 4.48
(as stated in RMB per
Share)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In recent years, China’s economic growth and improving living
standards have led to an increasing demand of medical and
healthcare services throughout society, and the market
expansion in the pharmaceutical distribution end driven by the
demand in the pharmaceutical consumption end has laid the
market foundation for the development of the pharmaceutical
distribution industry in China. The implementation and
deepening of various tasks in China’s medical reform, combined
with the strong empowerment from digital technology
development and intensified all-around supervision in the
pharmaceutical industry, is driving China’s pharmaceutical
distribution industry towards high-quality development.
Furthermore, with the increasing regulation and management of
the hospital pharmacy market at the policy level and the further
development of non-hospital market for retail pharmacies,
pharmaceutical distributors are playing an increasingly vital role
in the industry chain and the market concentration of
pharmaceutical distribution industry is increasing, accelerating
the transition from resource competition to capacity

competition.

The Overall Pharmaceutical Distribution Market Is Steadily
Growing and the Industry Concentration Is Continuously
Increasing

According to the statistics of the Ministry of Commerce of the
People’s Republic of China (the “Ministry of Commerce”), the
top 100 pharmaceutical distribution enterprises accounted for
more than 75.2% of China’s total pharmaceutical market size in
the same period, with a year-on-year growth rate of 0.7%, and
they accounted for 96.1% of China’s total pharmaceutical
wholesale market size in the same period in 2022. Forward
Industry Research Institute predicted that the market size of
China’s pharmaceutical distribution industry will exceed RMB4
trillion by 2028 when calculated with a compound growth rate
of 7%.

In October 2021, the Ministry of Commerce issued the
“Guidance on Promoting the High-Quality Development of the
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Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry during the 14th Five-Year
Plan Period” (the “Guidance”), proposing that by 2025, the
pharmaceutical distribution industry should adapt to the
people’s health needs in China’s new development stage, and
the modern pharmaceutical distribution system should be more
innovative, technology-enabled, covering both urban and rural
areas, balanced in layout, and collaboratively developed, and
safe and convenient. By 2025, there will be 1-3 and 5-10 large
digital and comprehensive pharmaceutical distribution
enterprises with a scale of over RMBS500 billion and over
RMB100 billion, respectively, being cultivated, and the top 100
pharmaceutical distribution enterprises will account for more
than 98% of the total China’s pharmaceutical market size in the
same period. The Guidance points out clearly the development
direction of the pharmaceutical distribution industry in the next
five years, providing important guidelines for the industry to
achieve high-quality development.

In recent years, China has issued a series of policies such as
“prescription outflow”, “electronic prescription circulation” and
“Internet-based pharmaceutical sales”. These polices aim to
shift the main focus of pharmaceutical sales from hospitals,
clinics and other medical institutions to retail pharmacies. The
market position of retail pharmacies has gradually become
prominent, bringing considerable growth to the sales of
prescribed drugs. Statistics from MENET showed that the
market sales of retail pharmacy terminals (physical pharmacies
+ online pharmacies) exceeded RMB900 billion in 2023, with a
year-on-year growth rate of 6.5%. The market share of retail
pharmacy terminals is increasing annually and reached 29% in
2022, a year-on-year increase of 2.1 percentage points. The
share of non-hospital market for pharmaceutical distribution is
gradually increasing.

Overall, sales in the pharmaceutical distribution markets are
steadily growing nationwide, and the retail market is
continuously expanding. This demonstrates improving industry
concentration,  expanding  professional  services, and
standardised Internet-based sales management. The industry is

moving towards high-quality development as a whole.

Diversification, Digital and Intelligent Transformation in the
Pharmaceutical Logistics Field Is Accelerated

2023 witnessed the advent of many shining cutting-edge

-013 -
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technologies, including artificial intelligence, which injected
new vitality into social and economic development, accelerated
the digital, intelligent and diversified growth of the
pharmaceutical distribution industry, and facilitated the deeper
integration of “Internet + pharmaceutical distribution”. In the
digital and intelligent era, the change of national and regional
pharmaceutical distributors to solution providers in the
pharmaceutical supply chain becomes a more apparent trend.
They facilitate the integration of “logistics, information flow,
and capital flow”, build and continue to improve a diversified
and collaborative pharmaceutical supply chain system, deliver
differentiated products/services, and provide efficient third-
party pharmaceutical logistics services from multiple linked
warehouses on national and regional scales by fully leveraging
the advantages of their own logistics network, strengthening
their ability to provide on-demand customised services on a
large scale, and integrating upstream and downstream resources

throughout the supply chain.

In October 2023, the National Medical Products Administration
released the Guidance on Constructing Standardised Modern
Pharmaceutical Logistics (Draft for Comments), with the aim of
promoting the development of standardised newly established
pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises and third-party modern
pharmaceutical logistics enterprises that are commissioned to
store and transport pharmaceuticals. In the future, the traditional
pharmaceutical supply chain will undergo unprecedented
significant restructuring and market reshuffling. This will result
in higher service requirements for logistics and warehousing,
logistics costs, efficiency improvement, pharmaceutical
regulatory traceability, service diversification and much more,
in order to drive the digital and intelligent upgrade of
pharmaceutical logistics.

Specification for Logistics Service of Medicinal Product (GB/T
30335-2023), which came into force on 7 September 2023, was
proposed and centrally managed by the National Logistics
Standardisation Technical Committee (SAC/TC269) and drafted
by several organisations including the China Federation of
Logistics & Purchasing. The release and implementation of this
standard helps further standardise the logistics service
operations of enterprises and guides enterprises in providing
customised logistics services and achieving the digital and

intelligent transformation and upgrade of logistics, which can
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further promote the healthy and orderly development of the
pharmaceutical logistics industry and ensure the quality and
safety of pharmaceuticals.

High-quality Development of Pharmaceutical Distribution
Industry Is Supported by Various Relevant Policies in
Guangdong

According to Guangdong Provincial Development and Reform
Commission’s notice in December 2022 on issuance of the
Program for Building a Modern Distribution System in
Guangdong Province During the 14th Five-Year Plan Period,
efforts will be made to improve logistics enterprises’
professional  service level, cultivate and strengthen
pharmaceutical logistics enterprises, innovate pharmaceutical
distribution models, refine pharmaceutical logistics standards,
enhance urban and rural distribution systems, and improve
pharmaceutical distribution efficiency and overall quality
control level. According to the Program, Guangzhou is
supported in building a national centre for modern logistics and
distribution of pharmaceuticals, a data processing centre for
online pharmaceutical platforms, and a hub of national
pharmaceutical retail chain headquarters. According to the data
from Guangdong Provincial Medical Products Administration,
there were 64,716 pharmacies in Guangdong Province in 2022,
48% of which were chain pharmacies. The total circulation of
pharmaceuticals in Guangdong Province reached RMB281

billion, ranking first in the country.

The Several Regulations of Guangdong Medical Products
Administration on Storage and Transportation Management of
Pharmaceutical Wholesale Enterprises (the “New Regulations™)
came into force on 1 July 2023. The New Regulations points out
that existing wholesale enterprises can meet the original
standards when applying for license renewal if they maintain the
existing business, or they have to meet the relevant
requirements in the New Regulations if they engage in new
pharmaceutical storage and transportation business. The New
Regulations addresses the “last mile” distribution of regional
pharmacies and is of great significance to realising the effective
and balanced coverage of pharmaceutical storage and
transportation in urban and rural areas across the province. On
the other hand, the New Regulations includes detailed
standardisation requirements and technical indicators on the

personnel, warehousing area, automatic transmission facilities
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and equipment, information management system and
traceability system of enterprises. Pharmaceutical wholesale
enterprises with modern logistics management capacity will
have more advantages under the heightened regulatory
requirements. After New Regulations came into force, the
Group became the first “pharmaceutical wholesale enterprise
newly engaging in storage and transportation business” to pass
the inspection and acceptance of the competent authorities in

Guangdong Province.

Pharmaceutical Producers Take Off in Non-hospital Market
in the Context of Medical Reform and Distributors with
Solid Foundations in the Retail Terminal Are Preferred

In recent years, with the further deepening of medical reform,
various policies aimed at changing the situation wherein “a
hospital subsidises its medical services with overly expensive
drug prescriptions” have been issued one after another (such as
“volume-based procurement”, “hierarchical medical treatment”,
“dual channel” and “inclusion of pharmacies into the unified
planning for outpatients”). As medical and pharmaceutical
services are further separated, the hospital market is no longer
the absolute focus and the balance is gradually tilting towards
the non-hospital pharmaceutical market, which offers
considerable blue ocean opportunities. MENET predicted that
the non-hospital market, with a size of RMB1.60 trillion, will be
equal to or even exceed the hospital market by 2029.

In the face of increasingly fierce business competition,
pharmaceutical distribution enterprises must transform and
upgrade their business models, continue to explore innovative
service concepts and models, and provide customer-tailored
differentiated value-added services. Pharmaceutical producers
need to increase their inputs and promotion in the retail market
of medicines. Pharmaceutical distributors with solid foundations
in the retail terminal will be preferred by producers and be able
to consolidate their competitive advantages in market

expansion.

The Issuance of Measures for Quality Supervision and
Administration of Distribution and Use of Medicinal
Products Promotes All-round Enhancement of Quality
Supervision and Administration of Distribution and Use of
Medicinal Products

In September 2023, the State Administration for Market
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Regulation announced the No. 84 SAMR Order - Measures for
Quality Supervision and Administration of Distribution and Use
of Medicinal Products (the “Measures for Distribution of
Medicinal Products”), which came into force on 1 January
2024. The Measures for Distribution of Medicinal Products
mainly puts forward provisions on emphasising the primary
responsibilities of enterprises distributing medicinal products,
promoting the standardised development of modern
pharmaceutical logistics, encouraging enterprises to optimising
the allocation of warehousing resources, and refining the
requirements of pharmaceutical retail and chain management.
According to the Measures for Distribution of Medicinal
Products, an entity carrying out medicinal product wholesale
activities shall meet the following conditions: It has self-
operated warehouses, business premises, facilities equipment
commensurate with its business variety and scale, and there are
modern logistics facilities and equipment to realise operation of
medicinal product warehousing, transmission, sorting, shelving
and delivery in its warehouses; it has a quality management
system ensuring the quality of medicinal products and an
information management system covering the whole process of
distribution, quality management and traceability of medicinal
products, and it satisfies the requirements of the quality
management specifications for the distribution of medicinal
products. This defines and clarifies the requirements on the self-
operated warehouses of pharmaceutical wholesale enterprises at
the national level and provides regulatory support for the
existing regulatory model of local medicinal product regulatory
departments.

Data sources: MENET: China Pharmaceutical Distribution
Industry Development Report (2022); China Pharmaceutical
Commerce; Guangdong Medical Products Administration, and
2022 Operational Statistical Analysis Report of Pharmaceutical
Distribution Industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s principal business is distributing pharmaceuticals
in China, and the majority of its business revenue comes from
pharmaceutical distribution. We procure pharmaceuticals from
pharmaceutical producers and distribution suppliers, and
provide sales services for distributors, retail pharmacies, as well
as private hospitals, clinics, health stations and other types of

customers.
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We followed our established operation targets, and continued to
expand our operation in Guangdong and its surrounding
markets, with a focus on developing our retail terminal network.
As at 31 December 2023, our distribution network covered
13,836 customers, among which 663 were distributors, 9,123
were retail pharmacy stores, and 4,050 were hospitals, clinics,
health centres and others, representing an increase of 440 in the
number of customers, including the decrease of 39 distributors,
the increase of 440 retail pharmacy stores, and 39 hospitals,
clinics, health centres and others compared to last year.

In order to meet the various needs of customers and enhance
customer adhesion, we strengthened cooperation with well-
known domestic and overseas manufacturers, and expanded the
variety and scale of first-level distribution products. We also
continued to optimise our product mix by introducing
marketable, high-quality products with high profit margin to
enrich our product categories. As at 31 December 2023, we had
distributed 12,212 types of products, and we had a total of 1,146
suppliers, of which 638 were pharmaceutical manufacturers and
508 were distributor suppliers, representing an increase of 5

suppliers compared to last year.
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Create High-quality Pharmaceutical Marketing Ecosystem
and Work Together with Upstream and Downstream of the
Industry Chain to Achieve Win-win

By leveraging the advantages of a three-dimensional marketing
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network, the Group has built complete industry and business
chains with brand pharmaceutical factories and downstream
customers. The industry chain composed of interconnected and
integrated upstream and downstream that we promote greatly
helps upstream manufacturers reduce the difficulty in channel
expansion, truly realises brand value and benefits, and is highly
recognised by a number of pharmaceutical brands. Famous
brands and pharmaceutical enterprises in the pharmaceutical
industry, such as CR Sanjiu, Guangzhou Baiyunshan Guanghua,
Nanjing Tongrentang, CR Jiangzhong, Medi’Care, Haleon,
Zhongsheng Pharma, Xiangxue Pharmaceutical, and Lian Hua
Feng, all benefit from our three-dimensional marketing network.
At present, we constantly consolidate our product categories,
expand our product lines, and combine diverse marketing
strategies, such as co-brand marketing, node and occasion based
marketing, differentiated promotion, and new launch trial. The
aim is to strengthen resources linkage and sharing, open up
diversified cooperation channels, help deepen the product
awareness in customers, and facilitate efficient product
circulation. It is the resources reshaping based on our three-
dimensional marketing network that greatly helps our terminal
partners increase their business revenue and gross profit, and as
the cost management and other explicit indicators of our
partners are significantly improved and enhanced, we truly
realise the goal of delivering new performance growth.

During the Reporting Period, due to its good reputation and
high-quality services, the Company was awarded the 2022-2023
Top 100 Chinese Enterprises in Pharmaceutical Business by the
Medical and Pharmaceutical Commercial Association of the All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce and received the
4™ Golden Stone Award * 2023 Best Pharmaceutical Marketing
Team from Saibailan.

Leverage Advantages in Logistics and Push Third-party
Logistics Business to A New Level

During the Reporting Period, the Group successfully passed the
inspection prescribed in the New Regulations and became the
first “pharmaceutical wholesale enterprise newly engaging in
storage and transportation business” to pass the inspection and
acceptance of the competent authorities in Guangdong Province.
The New Regulations sets higher and more stringent standards

for the conduct of third-party pharmaceutical logistics business,
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and the requirements for automation and information technology
application are significantly intensified. Meanwhile, it
emphasises that the client should give priority to any contractor
that has a high-quality management level and operational
excellence capability when carrying out commissioning
business. The Group is the first third-party pharmaceutical
logistics enterprise in Guangdong Province to pass this
authoritative review, which fully demonstrates that the
regulatory authorities highly recognize our pharmaceutical
logistics service and quality management levels. This also marks
the entry of our third-party pharmaceutical logistics business
into the fast lane of growth. In addition, the national standard
Specification for Logistics Service of Medicinal Product (GB/T
30335-2023), which we participated in drafting, came into force
in September 2023.

As a leading service provider in the modern pharmaceutical
supply chain in South China, the Group has established medium
and large modern pharmaceutical distribution centres in
Shantou, Guangzhou, Zhuhai and Huizhou, where cold chain,
refrigerated vehicles and intelligent warehousing equipment
such as AS/RS systems, temperature and humidity monitoring
systems, as well as intelligent temperature control systems are
provided to ensure the quality and safety of pharmaceuticals
during warehousing and distribution processes, greatly reduce
labor, losses and other logistics costs, and meet the demand for
different pharmaceutical services as much as possible.
Meanwhile, the Group has introduced a supporting information
management system and uses the advanced automation
technology to schedule various logistics equipment in the
system. It also provides visual equipment monitoring, real-time
task monitoring and implementation feedback to detect and
locate difficult problems in real time, thereby ensuring smooth

warehousing and distribution work.

The Group owns complete logistics network and information
system and provides consistent warehousing conditions under
the GSP management standards. With Charmacy Pharmaceutical
(Guangzhou) Medicine Sorting and Distribution Centre as the
core warehouse, a leading regional logistics hub is built and
collaborates with logistics centres in other regions to share
inventory and distribution network advantages. This not only
fully meets the warehousing demand of the Company’s fast-

growing pharmaceutical distribution business, but also
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integrates and utilises the warehousing spaces and the logistics
distribution capability to provide other value-added services
such as warehousing or transportation for the upstream and
downstream sectors, which can generate additional revenue and
enhance the profitability of the Group in all respects. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has built third-party pharmaceutical
logistics commissioning business and other value-added
services such as warchousing or transportation with multiple
customers, such as manufacturers, commercial distributors and
chain pharmacies, with the number of corresponding customers
and corresponding revenue increasing by more than 36% and

72% year-on-year, respectively.

In 2023, based on the excellent warehousing and distribution
system, the Group was awarded the 2022-2023 Outstanding
Pharmaceutical Logistics Distribution Enterprise (for 3
consecutive years), the 2022-2023 Modern Pharmaceutical
Logistics Technology Test Base (Centre) (for 2 consecutive
years), the 2022-2023 Best Pharmaceutical Cold Chain
Logistics Centre (Base) (for 5 consecutive years), the 2022-2023
Recommended Pharmaceutical Cold Chain Logistics Service
Enterprise (for 4 consecutive years), the 2022-2023 Top 50
Enterprise with Pharmaceutical Third-party Modern Logistics
Service Capability and the 2022-2023 Excellent Case for
Integrated Smart Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Services from
Yaolianquan Certification Centre. It was also awarded the 2022
China Pharmaceutical Supply Chain Prominent Enterprise and
the 2022-2023 Top 10 Logistics Centres from the
Pharmaceutical Logistics Branch of the China Federation of
Logistics & Purchasing, as well as the 2022-2023 Golden Ant
Innovation Award in China’s Logistics Industry from the
Organizing Committee of LET-a CeMAT ASIA Event (for 6

consecutive years).

Introduce Provincial State-owned Shareholder to Provide
Strong Guarantee for High-quality Development

Jiangyao achieve control over the Group during the Reporting
Period and entered into a three-year loan framework agreement
with the Group on 2 March 2023, the general meeting
authorized the general manager to apply for financial assistance
of no more than RMB 500 million per year from Jiangyao
according to the needs of business development. Jiangyao and

the Group focus on the aligned non-tendering pharmaceutical
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terminal market and achieve sound collaborative effects in the
business field. Based on its trust and expectation in the Group,
Jiangyao provides financial and resource support to help the
Group expand its business scale and achieve the cooperation
goal of complementing each other’s advantages and realising
win-win development. Through in-depth and long-term strategic
cooperation, we could leverage the state-owned resources and
industrial development advantages of Jiangyao to further
increase our overall operation level and comprehensive
competitiveness and to lay a solid foundation for the realisation
of our high-quality development goal.

PROSPECTS

With the mission of “Creating Healthy and Beautiful Life” in
mind and belief in the business philosophy of “Integrity,
Altruism and Win-win Cooperation”, we are committed to
becoming the most competitive service provider in China’s
medical and healthcare industry by adhering to the market
strategy of “Intensive Engagement in Guangdong Province and

Extensive Coverage across Surrounding Areas”.

Currently, China has entered the stage of high-quality
development, and the 20" CPC National Congress has made
comprehensive arrangements for continuously deepening the
medical reform. With the accelerating aging of population, the
all-round advancement of Healthy China construction, and the
upgrade of resident health consumption, the pharmaceutical
industry is required to accelerate the supply-side structural
reform to better meet the people’s demand for a better life. It is
required to accelerate the quality, efficiency and driving force
reforms for the medical and healthcare development and thereby
support the construction of the new development paradigm
featuring dual circulation, in which domestic and overseas
markets reinforce each other, with the domestic market as the

mainstay.

Guided by the idea of modernisation, China has carried out a
deep reform of the business pattern in the pharmaceutical
distribution  industry, and the concentration of the
pharmaceutical distribution industry will continue to increase in
the future, which will be combined with the continuous
empowerment of information technology to make
transformation and upgrade a new normal in industry

development. By then, the logistics services in the
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pharmaceutical distribution supply chain will be further
improved. On the one hand, pharmaceutical wholesale
enterprises will strive to optimize the network structure and
service functions, accelerate the integrated development of
“channel sink and urban-rural linkage”, and improve their “last
mile” service capacity in pharmaceutical supply. On the other
hand, they will continue to leverage the empowerment of digital
technology and channel advantages to help brand manufacturers
with pharmaceutical marketing and promotion, warehousing and

transportation management, brand marketing and so on.

Influenced by the policies such as separating medical and
pharmaceutical services as well as accelerating and expanding
the coverage of centralized procurement, the hospital
pharmaceutical market share will gradually decrease, while the
expansion of the non-hospital market has become a general
trend, creating a trillion-scale non-market space. In the long
term, with the deepening development of prescription outflow
and Internet-based medical services, physical pharmacies and
pharmaceutical e-commerce will advance side by side,
complement each other, and leverage their respective

advantages to serve consumers.

Faced with these industry development opportunities, we
maintain a proactive, flexible and positive attitude, respond to
national policy guidance, and strive to implement the relevant
policies of the pharmaceutical industry in practice. We also
seize policy and market opportunities, continuously promote the
expansion of market network and service improvement,
strengthen  refined  management, boost  high-quality
development, and ensure continuous improvement in
competitiveness on the basis of consolidating our existing

advantages.

I. Adhere to the strategy of “Intensive Engagement in
Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across
Surrounding Areas”

We adhere to the market strategy of “Intensive Engagement in
Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across
Surrounding Areas” and build a pharmaceutical retail terminal
network with full coverage in Guangdong Province and its
surrounding areas. We will strengthen risk management,
improve operation quality, seize the opportunities arising from

the expansion of the primary medical market, further construct
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the regional pharmaceutical distribution centres and constantly
expand and develop the distribution networks in all areas by
continuously expanding and refining the distribution networks
that permeate into each region, optimising the network layout,
and expanding the pharmaceutical delivery coverages of
pharmaceutical retail terminals such as retail pharmacies and
various grassroots medical and health service institutions to
fully achieve a dense coverage of sales, service, and logistics

network in Guangdong and its surrounding areas.

II. Strengthen the Effect of Technological Empowerment
and Accelerate the Digital Transformation of Enterprises

We will continue to explore the fields of “Internet + Medicine”,
digital transformation and artificial intelligence collaboration to
build a complete technical system and achieve multi-
dimensional automated management. We will inject value into
people and unleash human efficiency by making plenty of
manual repetitive work involving logical rules into automatic
work, so as to leave our employees more time to create more
innovative and competitive value and stimulate the endogenous
power of the enterprise. We will speed up our business handling
to provide better and more efficient service experience for our
upstream and downstream customers. We will utilise
observational data to realise in-depth analysis through 23 years

of data and experience accumulation in the industry.

Based on our supply chain advantages, with the B2B e-
commerce platform as the carrier, propelled by marketing and
operation, and in combination with innovative technologies and
tools, we will fully unleash the potential of “Internet +” to meet
the demand for trading scenario iteration, realise resources
integration, channel optimisation and the matching between
supply and demand, empower upstream and downstream
enterprises, and become a strategic partner and a reliable

supporter to customers amid the fierce market competition.

III. Vertically Deepen and Expand the Strategic Cooperation
with Brand Manufacturers

We will attach importance to strengthening cooperation with
various brand manufacturers, strive to seize more growth
opportunities for venturing into the non-tendering product
market, enrich our product portfolio, consolidate our product
advantages, and leverage the resources and advantages of the
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Group’s pharmaceutical retail terminal network to provide all-
round and diversified brand promotion, product implementation
plan design, and support service guarantee for upstream

suppliers.

IV. Strengthen the capacity building for pharmaceutical
logistics and actively expand third-party logistics business

We will actively explore the application of intelligent logistics
technology, integrate transportation resources to enhance
delivery service capabilities and promote the coordinated
development of regional integrated logistics, thereby enhancing
the overall operational capability. Leveraging on our strong
logistic and warehousing capabilities, our warehousing and
sorting scale will be expanded, and multi-warechouse
collaboration by integrating pharmaceutical warehousing and
transportation resources will be attained. We will further unleash
our advantages of our refined management and services, expand
the terminal delivery network, so that the pharmaceutical
logistics network arrangement is more reasonable. At the same
time, we will actively expand the third-party pharmaceutical
logistics business by using our own logistics network
advantages to provide upstream suppliers and downstream
customers with professional and convenient warehousing,
logistics and cargo transportation, so as to enhance the Group’s

market competitiveness and profitability.

V. Proactively seek opportunities for industry cooperation
both domestically and internationally to promote our high-
quality development

We will leverage the resources and advantages of our state-
owned shareholder to actively seek high-quality products and
project cooperation both domestically and internationally,
optimise the product supply chain of the Group, expand more
profitable new businesses, and create a second growth curve.
We will also introduce new technologies and concepts to further
strengthen the Group’s soft power and competitiveness,
consolidate our leading position in the non-tendering
pharmaceutical market in South China, and contribute to the
innovation and development of the pharmaceutical distribution

industry.

Looking forward, we will continue to seize the future growth
potential of the pharmaceutical non-tendering market, accelerate
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the duplication of the mature non-tendering pharmaceutical
market operation model, redouble our efforts on digitisation and
business innovation, strive to elevate the operation efficiency of
our pharmaceutical supply chain, optimise the portfolio of
pharmaceutical products and customer service experience, and
reduce the cost of pharmaceutical distribution, endeavouring to
become the most competitive service provider in the medical
and healthcare industry in China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

BERN Operating revenue
BE 12 31 HIEEE

JEH For the year ended 31 December
Item 2023 NRB T 2022 % AR T

2023 RMB’000 2022 RMB’000
I%‘%% . 4,347,522 4,140,664
Principal business
HAhEB
Other businesses 56,111 34,615
%‘%l&.}\ 4,403,633 4,175,279
Operating revenue

BZE 12 H 31 HiEERE

&= PR For the year ended 31 December

Customer type 2023 F NRE T 2022 % ANR¥F
2023 RMB’000 2022 RMB’000

ﬁrﬁéiﬁﬁ 2,057,929 1,922,097

Distributors

Z%%E 2,110,773 2,057,232

Retail pharmacy stores

Bt 2HT. s KA

Hospitals, clinics, health centres and others 178,821 161,335

EBRBBN L. . 4,347,522 4,140,664

Revenue from principal business

WA BN, M EEEBIRARA
H (D) pdams s (i) BHELE
My Ko Gii) BBt AT A &
HARE . EWIN, 96%MH
FEEHBARA S E P TS
RS,
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During the Reporting Period, our revenue from principal
business was derived from product sales to (i) distributor
customers; (ii) retail pharmacy stores; and (iii) hospitals, clinics,
health centres and others. During the Reporting Period, 96% of
our revenue from principal business was derived from

distributor customers and retail pharmacy stores.
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The operating revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 was RMB4,403.63 million, representing an
increase of 5.47% from RMB4,175.28 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, which was mainly due to the
Company adhered to the business positioning of non-tender
market and the market strategy of “intensive engagement in
Guangdong Province and extensive coverage across surrounding
areas”, winning the recognition and support of more brand
manufacturers, obtaining more distribution rights and project
cooperation opportunities for advantageous products, and on the
other hand, the Company’s product satisfaction rate and supply
chain service have been recognised by customers, brand
recognition has been further improved, and the principal

business has shown good business performance.
Operating cost, gross profit and gross profit margin

The operating cost of the Group increased by 5.31% from
RMB3,903.52 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB4,110.89 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,

which was consistent with the increase in the operating revenue.

The gross profit of the Group increased by 7.72% from
RMB271.76 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB292.74 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
gross profit margin of the Group increased from 6.51% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to 6.65% for the year ended 31
December 2023, mainly due to the year-on-year increase in
third-party logistics revenue of 72.05%, and the Company’ s
active adjustment of product mix by replacing products with low
gross profit margin with those with high gross profit margin.

Selling expenses

The selling expenses of the Group increased by 8.54% from
RMB112.83 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB122.47 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. This
was mainly due to an increase in the remuneration of marketing
personnel and employees of RMB4.09 million and an increase

of RMB2.08 million in transportation expenses due to the
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increase in performance.
Management expenses

The management expenses of the Group decreased by 4.43%
from RMB49.74 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB47.53 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
which was mainly due to the disposal of the property located in
Foshan Avenue North, Chancheng District, Foshan City in
December 2022, resulting in a decrease in depreciation and

amortisation expense of RMB4.24 million.
Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by 14.07% from
RMB37.13 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB42.35 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
mainly due to the increase of RMB74.74 million in new short-
term borrowings during the Year compared with 2022, and the
corresponding interest increased by RMB5.72 million year-on-

year.
Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group decreased by 49.10%
from RMB31.58 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB16.07 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The current income tax expenses were recognised and the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities were adjusted
according to the accounting standards.

Net profit

The net profit of the Group decreased by 43.25% from
RMB90.47 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB51.34 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Among them, the net profit attributable to the shareholders of
parent company decreased by 43.25% from RMB90.47 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB51.34 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to the
Company’s one-off after-tax gain of approximately RMB49
million from cash compensation for land resumption in 2022,
which was not available in the Reporting Period. The Group's
principal business showed good performance, with net profit

attributable to sharcholders of the parent company after
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deducting non-recurring gains and losses increasing by 24.67%
compared with 2022.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and bank deposits of the
Group amounted to RMB112.93 million, while the cash and
bank deposits amounted to RMB68.86 million as at 31
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded net current assets of RMB193.14 million and
RMB206.77 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2023, the
current ratio (based on the calculation of current assets divided
by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.07 (2022: 1.09).

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
amounted to RMBS587.99 million (short-term borrowings:
RMB587.99 million). All the bank borrowings bear fixed
interest rates. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is
presented in RMB, and is approximate to the fair value. The
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes or did not have any existing borrowings and/or other
hedging instruments for hedging net foreign currency

investments.
Bill receivables, trade receivables and receivables financing

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bill receivables, trade
receivables and receivables financing amounted to RMB965.35
million, representing an increase of RMB100.10 million,
increased by 11.57% year-on-year, from RMB865.26 million as
at 31 December 2022. This was mainly due to the increase in
operating income during the Year, which reflected the growth
achieved by the Group in the market. The Group will continue
to strengthen the management of accounts receivable,
dynamically assess risks, and achieve efficient use of funds and
liquidity management.

Bills payables and trade payables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bills payables and trade
payables amounted to RMB1,595.56million, representing an
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increase of RMBS85.99 million, increased by 5.70% year-on-
year, from RMB1,509.57 million as at 31 December 2022,
mainly due to the Group's increase in pharmaceutical reserves

based on the market supply and demand of its products.

Treasury policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management strategy in
executing its treasury policy. Thus, a sound liquidity position
was able to be maintained throughout the Reporting Period
under review. The Group continues to assess its customers ’

credit and financial positions so as to minimise credit risks. In
order to control liquidity risks, the Board would closely monitor
the liquidity position of the Group to ensure that its assets,
liabilities and other flow structure committed by the Group

would satisfy the funding needs from time to time.
Foreign currency exchange risk

The transactions of the Group are denominated in RMB, and
most of the assets and all liabilities of the Group are
denominated in RMB. The foreign exchange risk that the Group
has to bear is extremely low. During the Year, the Group did not
use any financial instruments for hedging the foreign currency

risk.
Interest rate risk

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank
borrowings which bear interest at floating rate. (2022: Nil)

Capital management

Set out below are the Group’s gearing ratios as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022, respectively:

202312 A 31 H

202212 A 31 H

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

BARAREER

Gearing ratio

44.28% 42.75%

af: EA R HREREREHFHA
R AR A . G505 AR S5 S AR KU
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Note: Gearing ratio is equal to net liabilities divided by aggregate

capital as at the end of the year. Net liabilities represent total
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borrowings deducted by cash and cash equivalents; and aggregate

capital is the sum of net liabilities and total equity.
Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any capital
commitment. (2022: Nil).

Employees' information

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 831
employees (including executive Directors) (2022: 817
employees), representing an increase of 14 employees compared
with the number of employees as at 31 December 2022. The
total staff cost (including emoluments of directors and
supervisors) was RMB90.07 million, representing an increase of
7.32%, as compared to RMB83.92 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The emoluments were determined with
reference to market practice and the performance, qualification

and experience of individual employees.

The employees are entitled to bonus based on the results of the
Group and individual performance other than basic salaries.
Other staff benefits include other related insurances set up for
the employees employed by the Group in accordance with the
rules and regulations under "Labor Law", "Employment
Contract Law", "Social Insurance Law" of the PRC and the
current regulatory requirements of the PRC.

The salaries and benefits of the employees of the Group are kept
at a competitive level. The employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’ s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.

The Group focuses on the career development of its employees.
We provide the employees with internal training and the
opportunity of external training on a regular basis, to support
and encourage them to continuously study and to improve their
own integrated qualities and business capability.

Material investments held, acquisitions and disposals held

Apart from investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold
any material investment, acquisition or disposal in the equity
interests of any other company for the year ended 31 December
2023.

-031 -
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Future plans related to material investments and capital
assets

As of 31 December 2023, The Group has no any future plans
related to the material investments and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had no
material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group was granted a credit limit
of RMB1,341.00 million by various banks, while the Group’ s
utilised banking facilities totaled RMB1,012.42 million, which
were secured by (i) property, plant and equipment held by the
Group with a carrying amount of RMB222.22 million as at 31
December 2023; (ii) land use rights held by the Group with a
carrying amount of RMB68.98 million as at 31 December 2023;
and (iii) the Group’s inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB350.00 million as at 31 December 2023.

Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or use

As at 31 December 2023, the Group ’ s restricted monetary
funds amounted to RMB521.27 million, which served as deposit
for bank acceptance bills and borrowings; the Group’s restricted
bills receivable and account receivable financing amounted to
RMB3.39 million, which were restricted for being pledged to
banks; the Group also pledged certain other assets totalling
RMB641.20 million as guarantee for the Group’s borrowings.
Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or use totalled
RMB1,165.86 million.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2022: Nil).



EH. BEARK

BHEARBERE

EEREE

PRI A AR EFE EFE ( [B

) MmEk:

2023

BIOGRAPHIES OF

FERE R

ANNUAL REPORT

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The table below sets out the information of the Directors and the

supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisors”):

R

Name

ZEEH

Date of appointment

Fie
Age

PITES

Executive Directors

weRlHE
Yao Chuanglong

2000/3/6

54

B s
Zheng Yuyan

2015/5/25

49

RIEHL
Zhang Hanzi

2022/7/13

44

ERTES

Non-executive Directors

JER Er
Yan Jingbin

2022/6/6

48

fHIE
Fu Zheng

2022/7/13

50

ESiS
Xu Fei

2023/5/31

40

BPITESR

Independent non-executive

Directors

2
Li Hanguo

2023/5/31

67

TR
Wan Chi Wai Anthony

2015/12/1

48

o]

Guan Jian

2015/12/1

54

B#

Supervisors

R
Zhu Minghong

2023/5/31

47

TRIE
Zhang Ling

2015/5/25

51

k23
Zheng Xiyue

2015/5/25

44
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Chuanglong (%k £#E), aged 54, is the vice chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer on the Company.
He is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
strategic planning and decision, formulation of annual business

operation plan of the Group.

Mr. Yao obtained a certificate in postgraduate class on civil
commercial law from China University of Political Science and
Law ({175 K£:) in March 2004. Mr. Yao completed a class
on selected on-job executive master of business administration
course ({& B T p & ¥ fH 1 (EMBA) ¥ 8 3§ F£ W 1 BF )
conducted by the Sino-Foreign Management Research Institute
of Sun Yat-sen University (47 L1 KA1 AME BRI 55 41 40) in the
PRC in March 2004 and a course on “Advance Programme for
Development of Leadership in Pharmaceutical Industry” (5§ &
P SE QR IE ) 38 i = A2 BE) in Zhejiang University (WL K
£ in the PRC in October 2007. Mr. Yao completed a course on
“Advanced Programme on Business Management for
Executives” (/& & L 7 & P 48 & W 12 ¥E ) in Tsinghua
University (J& #£ K £%) in the PRC in July 2008 and a course on
“Telaote Strategic Positing for Executives” (455 4 Bk B 2 137 44
# ¥E) in Peking University (4t & K %) in the PRC in
September 2013. In November 2015, Mr. Yao completed a
course on Internet Plus and Innovative E-commerce for
Executives ( .1 48+ 5l 5 7 75 7% 81 7 48 3 PE) in Overseas
Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (_ 732 i#
KELFANEE SHB).

Mr. Yao joined the Group in March 2000 as a general manager
of the Company, overseeing the daily operation and formulation
of the strategic development of the Company. Mr. Yao has been
acting as the chairman of the Company since May 2015. He
currently serves as the executive Director and general manager
of Guangdong Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Zhuhai
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Charmacy
Huizhou

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Charmacy

Pharmaceutical Limited.

Ms. Zheng Yuyan (5 £ 3#), aged 49, is the executive Director
and vice president of the Company.

In December 2008, Ms. Zheng obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree in the Postgraduate School of Renmin
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University of China (*F B A\ & KZ:HF 57 42 ) in the PRC. Ms.
Zheng completed the “Training Programme for Executives
Master of Business Administration Courses” (EMBA #f FE48 %
WHEIE) organised by Lingnan School of Sun Yat-sen University
(Ll K 2 5 e 2B ) in the PRC in August 2013, and a course
of “Telaote Strategic Positing for Executives” (455 H# Bk & 17
#BELIL) organised by Peking University (165 K£2) in the PRC
in November 2013. In November 2015, Ms. Zheng completed a
course on Internet Plus and Innovative E-commerce for
Executives (B 5 48+ B2 55 1 i %% 818 48 K PE) in Overseas
Education College of Shanghai Jiao Tong University (22 iH
KELFAINECE BB )

Ms. Zheng joined the Group in September 2003 and had served
various positions in the Group including procurement officer,
procurement director and sales director. Ms. Zheng was
promoted in August 2015 as the vice president of the Company.
She has been appointed as the Director since 25 May 2015. Ms.
Zheng is mainly responsible for the marketing and products
management of the Group, the arrangement and maintenance of
the sales network of the Group as well as planning and guidance
on the management of operating commodities of the Group. She
currently serves as the executive director and general manager

of Guangzhou Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., LTD.

Ms. Zhang Hanzi (55 7€ #0), aged 44, is the executive Director

and financial director of the Company.

Ms. Zhang received a bachelor's degree from Sichuan

University in China in 2002, majoring in international finance.

Ms. Zhang joined the Company in February 2014 and has
served successively as a financial manager and a deputy
financial controller. From May 2015 to May 2017, she served as
the Supervisor. From July 2008 to January 2014, Ms. Zhang
served as a deputy financial manager of Kaiser (China) Culture
Co., Ltd.* (LA (H ) LA 4 A BR A 7] ), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 002425) which is primarily engaging in wholesale and
retail of clothing and leather products; and from July 2008 to
January 2014, she also served as a director of Yuxin
(Guangdong) Trading Co., Ltd.* (F&Z(EF)E Z FRAF]), a
subsidiary of Kaiser (China) Culture Co., Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

-035 -
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Mr. Yan Jingbin ( /& 57 5 ),aged 48, is the chairman of the
Board and has been appointed as the non-executive Director
since 6 June 2022.

Mr. Yan received a bachelor’s degree of political education from
Jiangxi Normal University in 1998, and a master’s degree of
administrative management from Renmin University of China in
2006.

Mr. Yan has been working as the director and the general
manager of Jiangyao since December 2018. He served as a
deputy general manager of Jiangxi Zhongjiang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. from January 2010 to January 2011, worked for Jiangzhong
Pharmaceutical Group Company from January 2011 to March
2018 as general manager of Shenlingcao business line, deputy
director of the office of the board of directors and secretary of
the General Party Branch and minister of Sales, and worked for
Jiangxi  Jiangzhong  Pharmaceutical  Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. from March 2018 to August 2020 as the
general manager and secretary of general CPC branch.

Ms. Fu Zheng (f 1), aged 50, has been appointed as the a
non-executive Director since 13 July 2022.

Ms. Fu received her bachelor’s degree of applied electronic
technology from the Department of Automatic Control, East

China University of Science and Technology since 1995.

Ms. Fu has served as the deputy general manager of Jiangyao
since June 2020. From November 2005 to December 2017, she
worked at Yixintang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Yunnan Hongxiang Yixintang Pharmaceutical (Group)
Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002727), where she served as a
deputy general manager of the group's subsidiaries and a
director of the group's commercial procurement center. From
March 2018 to June 2020, she served as the deputy general
manager of Jiangxi Jiangzhong Pharmaceutical Investment and

Development Co., Ltd..

Mr. Xu Fei (15 fi§), aged 40, has been appointed as the non-

executive Director since 31 May 2023.

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor’s degree in Financial Management
from Hangzhou University of Electronic Science and
Technology in 2006. He is a senior accountant, and holds
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professional qualification certificates of certified public

accountant and tax accountant.

Mr. Xu has served as the deputy general manager of Jiangyao
since February 2022. He served as an accounting accountant and
accounting supervisor of China National Accord Medicines
Corporation Ltd., director of the financial department of
Sinopharm Zhijun (Suzhou) Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., chief
financial officer of Jiangsu Jointown Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
and director of the financial management department of
Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (in charge of the joint

ventures).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hanguo (4= [#), aged 67, has been appointed as the

independent non-executive Director since 31 May 2023.

Mr. Li obtained his master’s degree in Economics from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in 1996. Mr. Li is
a professor and postgraduate supervisor of School of Finance,

Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.

Mr. Li served as deputy director of the Accounting Department
of Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, director of the
Institute of Securities and Futures of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics, president of Jiangxi Ruiqi Futures Co.,
Ltd. and director of Xingqi Audit Firm, general vice president of
Fujian Minfa Securities Co., Ltd., executive president of China
Sifang Holdings Co., Ltd., director of the Research Center of
Securities and Futures of Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics, counselor to the People’s Government of Nanchang
City, expert adviser to the Jiangxi Development and Reform
Commission, the young and middle-aged academic leader of
Jiangxi Province (YLVE 4 H & F2 R FH N), and a pace-setter
in the new Long March of Jiangxi Province (VL P8 %4 #T & 1F &
¥ F ). He is currently the chairman of Zhejiang Maihong
Capital Management Company Limited, and has been an
independent director of Chinese Universe Publishing and Media
Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600373.SH, a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) since 26 April 2019, an
independent director of Jiangxi WG Tech Co., Ltd (stock code:
603773.SH, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
since 15 November 2022, an independent director of Zhongda
Construction Company Limited (stock code: 835483, a

-037 -
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company listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations) since 21 May 2020, and an external director of
Jiangxi Railway & Aviation Investment Group Co., Ltd. since
June 2020.

Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony ( FF % %), aged 48, has been
appointed as the independent non-executive Director since 1
December 2015.

Mr. Wan graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 1997 with a bachelor degree in
business administration (accounting). Mr. Wan graduated from
the University of London with a bachelor degree in laws in
August 2003 through distance learning. He further obtained the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in June 2004 from the
University of Hong Kong.Mr. Wan was admitted as a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
January 2002 and a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in May 2006. Mr. Wan was also admitted
as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in September
2006.

Prior to joining the legal field, Mr. Wan worked in the financial,
accounting and audit industry, including as a senior associate in
PricewaterhouseCoopers, an accounting and audit firm, during
August 1997 and May 2001; an accounting manager in Wellink
Services Limited, a company engaging in investment business,
during October 2001 and January 2002; and an assistant
manager in finance in MLC (Hong Kong) Limited, an insurance
company, during April 2002 and September 2003. Since 2004,
Mr. Wan has worked in various local and international law
firms, specializing in the practice of corporate finance
transactions including Hong Kong listings and mergers and
acquisitions. From October 2006 to July 2007 and January 2008
to November 2008, Mr. Wan was a corporate finance lawyer in
Herbert Smith Freehills. He was an assistant solicitor in Reed
Smith Richards Butler from March 2010 to November 2010 and
an associate in Morrison & Foerster from December 2010 to
May 2012. Mr. Wan joined Clifford Chance in May 2012 as a
senior associate and left as a counsel in April 2015. From May
2015 to May 2016, he worked as the partner and head of the
Hong Kong corporate and securities practice of Vivien Teu &
Co in association with Llinks Law Offices (i JJ#£AT=F 75 FT), a
law firm in Hong Kong. From January 2018 to May 2023, Mr.
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Wan served as an independent non-exectutive director of FDB
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1826). Since May 2016, Mr. Wan
joined King & Wood Mallesons, as a partner for its corporate
and securities practice. He has been an independent non-
executive director of HM International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8416) since 15 December 2016.

Mr. Guan Jian (% ##) (also known as Guan Suzhe ( ] £ 7)),
aged 54, has been appointed as the independent non-executive
Director since 1 December 2015.

Mr. Guan graduated from Chinese People’s Liberation Army
University of International Relationships (H [8 A [ fi# it &
P B (R £ P ) with a bachelor degree in English in July 1991 and
from China Europe International Business School (7 [B] F% T
Fi & Bt ) in the PRC with a master degree in business
administration in November 1997. In August 2014, Mr. Guan
was appointed as a guest professor by Shanghai Jiao Tong
University Continuing Education School (|52 1 K22 4 48 21
HE25¢) in the PRC.

Mr. Guan worked as a sales director in Yihaodian* (—5%)5), a
company engaging in business administration, responsible for
marketing, sales and operational management in May 2008.
During the period from July 2009 to August 2010, he was the
vice president of Shanghai Haolijia Electronics Commerce
Limited, a company engaging in the business of marketing, sales
and training, responsible for the business management. Mr.
Guan has been the consultant of China Telecom Corporation
Limited Jiangsu electronics channel operations centre. Since 2
June 2015, he has been the executive director and president of
Shanghai New Focus Investment Development Limited,
responsible for integrated corporate management. He has been
an independent director of Hubei Forbon Technology Co., Ltd.
from May 2019 to December 2023. Since January 2021, he has
been serving as the deacon partner of Shanghai Baijiao
Longchang Enterprise Management Service Center (limited

partnership). He has served as executive director of Shanghai
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Baiyang Advisory Management Limited since April 2023.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zhu Minghong (4 #7it), aged 47, has been appointed ais
the Chairman of the board of supervisors of the company (the
“Board of Supervisors”) on 31 May 2023.

Mr. Zhu obtained his master’s degree in laws from Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics in 2010, He has a
professional title of senior economist and the qualifications of

lawyer, legal advisor and securities practitioner.

Mr. Zhu has been the assistant general manager of Jiangyao
since September 2020. He served as the director of the legal
affairs department and securities law department of Jiangxi
Hongdu Aviation Industry Group Corporation and Jiangxi
Hongdu Aviation Industry Co., Ltd., and the manager of the
compliance risk department of Huazhang Tiandi Media
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd..

Ms. Zhang Ling ( 5% ¥8 ), aged 51, was appointed as the
independent Supervisor on 25 May 2015.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Beijing Wuzi University (1t 5{#) &
£:[5%) in the PRC with a bachelor degree in international trade in
July 1994. She obtained a master degree in industrial economics
from Shantou University (JIIZH K£2) in the PRC in June 2005
and a doctorate degree in accounting from Xiamen University
(9K %E) in the PRC in December 2009. She obtained the
certificate of Chartered Global Management Accountant
(CGMA) and certificate of member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants (ACMA) in December 2017.

From March 2000 to September 2002, Ms. Zhang was the
assistant to general manager in the Company, responsible for
overseeing financial and administrative matters. From January
2010 to April 2019, she was an associate professor in Shantou
University Business School (il 86 K £ 7 £ i) in the PRC.
Since March 2017, she has been the vice president of Jiangsu
Kunyee Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd..

Ms. Zheng Xiyue (5 5 3H ), aged 44, was appointed as the
employee representative Supervisor on 25 May 2015.

Ms. Zheng graduated from China Central Radio and TV
University (F 9 % % %8 #1 K“2) in the PRC with a bachelor
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degree in accounting in July 2009. She has also completed a
course on “Executive Master of Business Administration
(EMBA) Programme for Executives” in Market Economy
Academy of Peking University (4t 5% K £ [ 2 &85 7T 52 P
in the PRC in April 2010. In February 2017, she obtained a
graduate diploma in “Integrated Marketing Communications”
(B 5 &) from the Hong Kong University School of
Professional and Continuing Education.

Ms. Zheng joined the Group in July 2001 and held positions
including accounting officer and manager of settlement
department. She is currently the deputy chief marketing officer
and is responsible for providing assistance to our chief
marketing officer in the operation of our sales centre. She also
acts as the supervisor of Guangdong Charmacy Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.,, Zhuhai Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
Guangzhou Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Huizhou Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENTS

Mr. Yao Chuanglong (#k£#E), aged 54, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Biographical details of Mr. Yao are set
out in the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this

section.

Ms. Zheng Yuyan (% & #&), aged 49, is the vice president of
the Company. Biographical details of Ms. Zheng are set out in

the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Lin Zhijie ( #k & 5 ), aged 40, is the vice president,
chief logistics officer and chief technology officer of the
Company. Fully responsible for the logistics director and
operation of the Group, including the matters such as logistics
budget and cost control

Mr. Lin graduated from the Science and Technology College of
Jiangxi University of Traditional Chinese Medicine* (YL 74 H1 &
2 BE BF H & Bt ) in the PRC in July 2007, majoring in
pharmaceutics formulation, and obtained a postgraduate
diploma in “Organization and Human Resources Management”
from the School of Professional and Continuing Education of
the University of Hong Kong in May 2019.
Mr. Lin joined the Group in January 2007. He is responsible for
the logistics director and operation of the Group, including the
-041 -
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matters such as logistics budget and cost control, at the same
time, Mr. Lin is also in charge of the Group’s operation support
center.

Ms. Zhang Hanzi (58 %€ f), aged 44, is the chief financial
director of the Company. Biographical details of Ms. Zhang are
set out in the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this

section.

Ms. Liu Yingyu (%] Bt %), aged 44, was appointed as the
quality director of the Company on 7 March 2019, and is
responsible for the medicine quality management of the

Company.

Ms. Liu graduated from Xinyang Health School of Henan
Province (V] F§ %4 15 B 8 4E 22412 ) in July 2000, majoring in
nursing. She graduated from Shantou University in January
2015 with a major in pharmacy. She graduated from Guangzhou
University of Chinese Medicine in January 2018, majoring in
traditional Chinese medicine. She was awarded the Chinese
Pharmacist Junior Certificate in May 2009, the Pharmacy
Intermediate Certificate in March 2012, and the Licensed
Pharmacist Qualification Certificate in January 2014.

Ms. Liu was the manager of Guangdong Province Kangzhixuan
Chain Co., Ltd. from October 2000 to March 2004. She served
as the quality controller of Shantou City Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. From April 2004 to July 2014. From
August 2014 to April 2015, she worked as a quality control
manager in Shantou City Xiangyue Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..
From April 2015 to March 2019, she worked as a Quality
Control Manager at our Company, responsible for quality

control.

Ms. Yao Jiexi (Zki& 1), aged 32, joined the Company in 2015,
is the joint company secretary of the Company, and is
responsible for information disclosure, investor relations
management, legal compliance and other matters of the
Company. Ms. Yao has a Chinese legal professional
qualification.



=

A RERRG

it 3414

A m ARG R BRI AR 3 SO 2 RUFE
IR, B AR5 0 B SR R 4
FERE N E B . EHEEEOIR
AR BN % S R L % 1 S S
L, s AR R AE [HORE, R
O] KRB, [ EEER,
REEEFT | MU SERGrr, DAL S AR
M OM3EAE. B3E. A, HE.E
B pizeoEEE, WY siAas
[B [ Al R SC o £ | A1 &
[l A o B30 5 % {2 S e L T 25385
FRGE ] KR, EHGATMK
sE -~ JHERORTES B AH B A Se S0k, DU
REFFEALMMIET B, A%
W B AR AT $ o AGE [ 1 3 AT
Iy B0 S RS B2 I A SR B UK
EIRHER RS L.

EFEERTER

AR VR B e A AN A F S
PR ASHE RS, DLRHERA A
A8 2 375 W PR T B A )
HAEGRIEEBE S S MARA A
C [ESRZRT) O 8% EmifiAl ¢ [k
WA D Wk Cliriiz S8
SERIC TEVRSFRI T8 5 Il 1 e
T E R, HEAT I8 A AR A 7 SE S B
R RMAEERE . #Z32023
FI2H3IHIEEEN, RAF—Hi#
SF BT R B CLTd 2 A G
S RIS RIS, T SCHT i 155 T
BR4b:

MR A 28R S AR SCS C2.1 f%,
T BAT B B A ST ) B
ANEHE— NEIT. WAk EER/AR

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Company believes that a healthy corporate culture is the
core of good governance, but also the soul of the enterprise and
an important part of sustainable development. The Board is
committed to promoting and cultivating the Company's service
concept of sincere service, sincere dedication, hard work and
enterprising, and happy struggle at all levels and in all business
areas of the Group, in line with the Group's core values of
“responsibility, professionalism, discipline, authenticity and
enterprising”, and effectively embodying the Group's mission of
“creating a healthy and beautiful life” and the vision of
“becoming the most competitive service provider in China's
pharmaceutical and health industry”. The Board is responsible
for determining, promoting and monitoring the relevant
corporate culture to ensure that it complies with the Group's
business objectives, corporate strategies and future policies. The
Group's corporate culture is fully reflected and reflected in the
Group's policies, governance practices and procedures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the important roles of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company’s operations. In accordance with the principles set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Board sets appropriate
policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Company’s
business. The Company had been complying with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31

December 2023, save for the deviation as stated below:

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer shall be separate

and shall not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yao
-043 -
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Chuanglong is the chief executive officer of the Company and
has also served as the chairman of the Board since May 2015
due to his extensive experience in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry. The Board considered that having the
same individual as chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer was beneficial in ensuring the unity of leadership of the
Group and making the Group's overall strategic planning more
effective and efficient.

Subsequently, for the purpose of the Company's operational and
management needs, strengthening the division of responsibilities
and improving the governance structure of the Company, the
Board resolved on 31 May 2023 to elect Mr. Yan Jingbin, a
non-executive Director, to replace Mr. Yao as the chairman of
the Board. Therefore, since 31 May 2023, the above-mentioned
deviation from the CG Code no longer exists.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
to comply with the increasingly tightened regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of the
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and investors of the

Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct in dealings with the Company’s securities for the
Directors and Supervisors. Having made enquiries with all
Directors and supervisors of the Company, the Company
confirmed that all Directors and supervisors had complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD
Composition

As at 31 December 2023, the Board consisted of nine Directors,
of which three were executive Directors, three were non-
executive Directors and three were independent non-executive

Directors. The composition of the Board was as follows:
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letter of appointment
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ok A Sk 54 <meﬁ‘%“%%%gﬁfﬁ(i 202145 H 31 H% 2024 425 [ 30 H
Mr. Yao Chuanglong fee chaitinan, executive Jrector an 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
chief executive officer

R S 49 AT HH R4 202145 A 31 HE 202445 A 30 H
Ms. Zheng Yuyan Executive Director and vice president 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024

N 17 3 e s
BRIEF L m | & f%gi%%ﬁi$f | 202247 913 A 202446 5 71 30 H
Ms. Zhang Hanzi xecutive Lirecfor and chiet financia 13 July 2022 to 30 May 2024

director

il RS R 48 AT E S 202246 H 6 HE 2024 45 [ 30 H
Mr. Yan Jingbin Chairman and Non-executive Director 6 June 2022 to 30 May 2024
FHIE 2t 50 AT ESR 2022457 4 13 H% 2024 455 7 30 H
Ms. Fu Zheng Non-executive Director 13 July 2022 to 30 May 2024
PRt 40 FFPITES 2023455 H 31 H#E 202445 30 H
Mr. Xu Fei Non-executive Director 31 May 2023 to 30 May 2024
PR 7 B AFRATHE S 202345 H 31 H#A 2024 45 H 30 H
Mr. Li Hanguo Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2023 to 30 May 2024
FERA 48 S AT E S 2021 45 4 31 H% 2024 455 7 30 H
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
i Sl 2k 54 B AFRATHE S 2021 45 H 31 H#% 2024 45 H 30 H
Mr. Guan Jian Independent non-executive Director 31 May 2021 to 30 May 2024
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Details for each of the Directors’ profile are set out in the
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section “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

Management”.

Save as the relationship disclosed in the section “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” and the
working relationship in the Company, there is no relationship
among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
regarding the financial, business, family or other material

aspects.

BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings shall be convened at least 4 times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Other Board meetings
shall be convened when necessary for the discussion of the
overall strategy and financial performance of the Company’s
operation. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company convened 9 Board meetings. Their details are as

follows:
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Rk ERAABST S 0/
Mr. Yan Jingbin Chairman and non-executive Director
fHE 4+ I 0/
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Mr. Xu Fei (Appointed on 31 Non-executive Director
May 2023)
FEB A G 2023 4 5
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Mr. Li Hanguo (Appointed on Independent non-executive Director
31 May 2023)
PR TSR "
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director
5 RS o/
Mr. Guan Jian Independent non-executive Director
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Mr. Zhou Tao (Resigned on Independent non-executive Director
31 May 2023)
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The Company has three independent non-executive Directors,
which is more than one-third of the number of Directors in the
Board. Among them, Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony has the

appropriate professional qualification.

In accordance with code provision C.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Chairman had a meeting with the independent non-executive

Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year
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ended 31 December 2023.

Appropriate notification will be sent to each Director in advance
prior to the regular Board meetings and other Board meeting.
Meeting agendas and other relevant information are provided to
the Directors prior to the Board meetings. All Directors would
be inquired for the agenda for Board meetings and other
additional matters.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board

procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The comments made by the Directors at the meetings and both
draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to all
Directors. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary

of the meetings.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company held 3
general meetings. The detail is as follows:

H# HuEs 'k
Date Location Meeting
A R M T R D R SRR SR AT 33 5%
“HEEE

202344 A 17 H
17 April 2023

The conforence room on the 2nd floor, No. 33, Liyu
Street, Dongchong Town, Nansha District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC of China

2023 55— BRI RO &
the 2023 First Extraordinary General Meeting

202345 A 31 H
31 May 2023

r e 3 SR A4 R N T R 0 I RO SR AR 4 33 5
THERE
The conforence room on the 2nd floor, No. 33, Liyu
Street, Dongchong Town, Nansha District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

2022 FEICRIEFE K&
the 2022 Annual General Meeting

2023 £ 10 H 20 H
20 October 2023

FH 2K 8 B A M T R v R SRR SR A T 33 9%
TEEHE
The conforence room on the 2nd floor, No. 33, Liyu
Street, Dongchong Town, Nansha District, Guangzhou
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

2023 455 ORI RO
the 2023 Second Extraordinary General
Meeting

A TE SR D9 LR B ROK R

R

The attendance of each Director at the general meeting during

the Reporting Period is as follows:
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Mr. Xu Fei (Appointed on 31 Non-executive Director
May 2023)
W S (R 2023 4F 5
H 31 HEZRA LA AT E n
Mr. Li Hanguo (Appointed on Independent non-executive Director
31 May 2023)
FHE A P L ARAT 1/3 1 Notel”
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony Independent non-executive Director
e e e PSLARPATEF U3 2 Noe
Mr. Guan Jian Independent non-executive Director
J# et Ok 2023 4 5
31 HEHT) P L ARAT 22
Mr. Zhou Tao (Resigned on Independent non-executive Director
31 May 2023)

at:

Notes:
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S I R AR KR

2. [38 S Ot AR TR 5 R BB HH RS 2023 45
H 31 H BT [1120224F 5 I s 1B 4F K&
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1. Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony was absent from the 2023 first
extraordinary general meeting held on 17 April 2023 and the
2022 Annual General Meeting held on 31 May 2023 due to
official duties.

2. Mr. Guan Jian was absent from the 2022 annual general
meeting held on 31 May 2023 and the 2023
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 October 2023 due to

second
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official duties.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for monitoring and
managing the Company’s affairs, including the adoption of
long-term strategies, appointment of and supervision on senior
management, to ensure that the operations of the Group are
conducted in accordance with its own objectives. The Board is
also responsible for determining the Company’s corporate
governance policies which include: (i) the preparation of and
review on the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices; (ii) the review and regulation on the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) the review and regulation on the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; (iv) the review and monitoring of the
Company’s policies and practices regarding the compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and (v) the review on the
Company’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The
Board has performed its duties in respect of the corporate

governance function mentioned above during 2023.

While the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees
which have been established by the Board to deal with different
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in
their respective written terms of reference as approved by the
Board, these Board committees are governed by the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association) as well as
the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same are not
in conflict with the provisions contained in the Articles of
Association). With the composition of members of the risk
management committee, nomination committee, remuneration
committee, strategic development committee and the audit
committee, the independent non-executive Directors are able to
effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by

each of the Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the daily operation to the management of the
Company under the leadership of the executive Directors. Clear

guidance has been made as to the matters that should be

-049 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

BA B KBRS AR R
R EHE A R &
RERA M FH

R PR RS LN TR/
b J5z IR A B B 2 55 IR A 5 R
SV 95 A ) A2 1 S PR e D A
gl . AL P SRR E
Jo /BB e R A . AR F] A
HEAZ SR AR 2 =) B0 5 4R %t 2
BB, BT RE

PNE/NRI IR 3 I NI SR |
3.10(1)« (2)5% 3.10A &2 15t .

B PITES L L RS

ML AR AT FE P ORI B TR
55 313 Ak Ho ST AR
MR bR . ARAFRPE BRI 3.13
WP LR B RR, BRARE SR
WATEF BN T,

FéE R SL T R OB

AR On ) i DA T AR e O 4 S S
ANHSL T L

RAZAGERFEENEETRAEM
J NS AR AT RS, JeH
e ST A AT H T A T A TR
JUEE RIS AR AT T 2R (N ML

A T B  F SL AR AT HE SRR B
T AL EU) 575 3. 13 A gl 4 <5 8 7 i A 2 )
R HERRE . AL AR AL
AT HF LML

-050 -

reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal
controls, communication with the Shareholders, Board
membership, delegation of authority and corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The Financial Statements were
prepared on the basis set out in note IV to the Financial
Statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a
timely manner in accordance with statutory and/ or regulatory
requirements. The declaration of reporting responsibility issued
by the external auditor of the Company on the Company’s
Financial Statements is set out in the Auditor’s Report.

The Company has no non-compliance with Rules 3.10(1), (2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

MECHANISMS TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT VIEWS

The Company ensures independent views and input are

available to the Board via the below mechanisms:

The Board composition and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors should be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee on an annual basis, in particular the
portion of the independent non-executive Directors and the
independence of the independent non-executive director who
has served for more than nine years.

A written confirmation was received by the Company under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in relation to his/her independence to
the Company. The Company considers all its independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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In view of good corporate governance practices and to avoid
conflict of interests, the Directors who are also directors and/or
senior management of the Company’s controlling shareholders
and/or certain subsidiaries of the controlling shareholders,
would abstain from voting in the relevant Board resolutions in
relation to the transactions with the controlling shareholders

and/or its associates.

The chairman of the Board shall meet with independent non-

executive Directors at least once annually.

All members of the Board can seek independent professional
advice when necessary to perform their responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

The Board reviews the mechanisms for ensuring independent
views and input are available to the Board on an annual basis,
whether in terms of proportion, recruitment and independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and their contribution and

access to external independent professional advice.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF THE DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guidance materials and
participated related training regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interests and business of the Group. Such guidance materials
and relevant overview are provided immediately to the Directors
who are newly appointed. Continuing briefings and professional

development for the Directors are arranged whenever necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors have
provided record of training attendance. The Company
continues to arrange or provide training in accordance with code
provision C.1.4 of the CG Code.

During the year 2023, continuing professional development
participated by the Directors is summarized as follows:
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND DISMISSAL

All non-executive Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors have entered into letters of appointment or
agreements with the Company for a specific term of three years,

subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Directors are
elected at the general meeting with a term of three years from
the effective date of being elected. Directors may offer
themselves for re-election if their terms expire. The chairman of

the Board is elected and removed by the majority votes from all
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Directors, with a term of three years and may offer
himself/herself for re-election. The removal of any Directors
with an unexpired term is allowed at the general meeting by way
of ordinary resolutions, provided that it is complied with the

requirements of related laws and administrative regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
OF THE BOARD

The responsibilities of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual to ensure more effective
checks and balances and thereby establish a better governance
structure. Mr. Yan Jingbin is the chairman of the Board and is
mainly responsible for leading the Board and ensuring the
effective functioning of the Board and all important matters
have been discussed in due course. Mr. Yao Chuanglong is the
chief executive officer of the Company and is mainly
responsible for supervising the Company’s daily business and

implement the Company’s main strategies and policies.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yan Jingbin's, the non-executive Directors, term of office
shall commence on 6 June 2022 and will expire upon the
expiration of the current session of the Board.; Ms. Fu Zheng's
term of office commences on 13 July 2022 and will expire upon
the expiration of the current session of the Board; Mr. Xu Fei's
term of office shall commence on 31 May 2023 and will expire

upon the expiration of the current session of the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hanguo's, the independent non-executive Directors, term
of office shall commence on 31 May 2023 and  will expire
upon the expiration of the current session of the Board; Mr. Wan
Chi Wai Anthony’s and Mr. Guan Jian’s, the independent non-
executive Directors, term of office commenced on 31 May 2021
and will expire upon the expiration of the current session of the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee of the Board
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 26 November 2015 with

written terms of reference in compliance with code provision

-053 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

B.3.1 6 DA e SCA G 3
B0 T 5 24 TR 3 T A
.

P4 B e I A€ AT E
HEMZR., KAARHEE. MEas’s
A E TR M NIE, ST
EPATEF B, DU B
HRAT B AT 1) FH ) S e Rt
ik, MAE 202344 12 H31 H, #
HERETH=ARE A, Hrhi4
RBINLAEMATE SR, il AR E
(RBTREGER) IEEBIE,
DA K — 44 AT HE Sk BIRE Sk .

#ZE 2023 4F 12 A 31 HEE, #£4
ZHEER 2023 4F3 H 31 H. 2023
£ 4 H 17 H 202345 H 31 HE
T=IRERE, 2023 4E3 H 31 HIE
UM EE S AN AN
B m A% AR AT 3 FE R LA
2023 4 4 A 17 H ek H H &2
ZHTE S 2023 £ 5 A 30 H &5k
DA s & gk g = e g =
MZ B &R B KR AR E G e A
BN T R ARESTE . T AT B 4R 4
ZEGRBBRFEEELA . BELA
Tk ARE S R 2 R e

AR On ) CLPR #4844 UK R B
ERGRANRE. EHREFRENE
ER&E S EF G ZULBeR, g2
HRBIIRES A REEFTREN
N RICLRFAL (I8N X BSR4
Tﬁ!

ik A 5

LR R AN CEIFEHAN A E
W M AR SERME AR 2 BHIEEK . Hife
KD

-054 -

B.3.1 of the CG Code. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals qualified to become the Board
members; assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and make recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-election of the
Directors. As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, two of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Guan Jian (chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and Mr. Li Hanguo and one is
executive Director, namely Mr. Yao Chuanglong.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee convened three meetings on 31 March 2023, 17
April 2023 and 31 May 2023 respectively. The meeting held on
31 March 2023 was to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assess the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; the meeting held on
17April 2023 was to nominate new directors to the Board and
the meeting held on 30 May 2023 was to propose to the Board
to adjust the members of the special committees of the third
session of the Board and to propose to appoint Mr. Lin Zhijie as
the deputy general manager of the Company. The meeting was
attended by all the members of the Nomination Committee at
that time, including Mr. Guan Jian, Mr. Zhou Tao and Mr. Yao
Chuanglong.

The Company has adopted the Director nomination policy for
the appointment of the members of the Board. Taking into
account of the Board diversity policy, the appointment of the
members of the Board will be based on a number of objective
criteria to consider the candidates suitably qualified to become
Board members. The selection criteria used to evaluate

candidates include:
* personal character and integrity;

seducation background and qualifications (including the
professional qualifications, skills and knowledge related to the
Company’s business and corporate strategies);
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» willingness and ability to devote sufficient time to perform the

duties of the Directors;

+ contribution of different aspects of diversity to the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural and
education background, professional experiences, skills,
knowledge, and terms of services;

* requirements for independent non-executive Directors of the

Board under the Listing Rules; and

+ any other conditions determined by the Board from time to

time.

For the purpose of nomination procedure, any Board member
can nominate or invite candidates to hold directorship for the
consideration of the Nomination Committee. When identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, and also the Company’s needs and other
relevant laws and statutory requirements and regulations
required for the positions. All candidates must be able to meet
the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director should also meet the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. For the re-
appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the overall contribution and performance of the
candidates during their terms of services (including the
frequency of attendance at various meetings, the level of
participation and performance of duties). Qualified candidates
will then be recommended to the Board and the Shareholders’
meeting for approval. The Nomination Committee will review
the Director nomination policy in due course to ensure its

effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee of the
Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 26 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Its terms of reference are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

-055 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

IECE

2 B e ) 32 R A A AR [ 4
BHEH ., BE S AU S 1 R
T IR 3 % B [ S R A R
S, DUR DR NG AT R OE B
P o SERAT HE S FRD B I T 2 A FL R
. AR A ERR. ZEFET
MBI HE, WEERIAAFME
BRBLLMIGATIE M E. FPATH
B L ARAT HE F I N e
MERAEHATH . B E AT EHF B
SHENFEHEFHA2 NS HEEELER
B TR 5% 77 LA RAS H IR ] 45 2
FOTIHE . AEBATE S BILIE
ITHEF BN TR LR R . AR
. BT S ESEE. BE
2023 F 12 H31 H, ¥MEE & H
RBP4 A S AR
ITEHEFER LA (FMEETE
Jim) R FEERE, UAERITE S
fHiE %+

MR A 368 VR S RIM& SO 3R E1LS %,
A E 2023 4 12 A 31 Hik4E
JE O n) v A5 BN B SAT 2 4
T S A AR S

Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors, Supervisors and
senior management of the Group and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration. The remuneration
of executive Directors are determined based on the skills,
knowledge, individual performance and contributions, the scope
of responsibility and duties of such Directors, taking into
consideration of the Company’s results performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
to ensure that the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors are adequately compensated for their efforts
and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including their
participation in respective Board committees. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at 31
December 2023, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
three members, including two independent non-executive
Directors Mr. Li Hanguo (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony, and a non-executive
Director, namely Ms. Fu Zheng.

According to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration paid to the senior management by the Group based

on the remuneration benchmark for the year ended 31 December
2023 is as follows:

AR

Remuneration benchmark

AE

Number of individuals

A RH 50,001 o8 AR 250,000 7T

RMBS50,001 to RMB250,000 2
AN 250,001 JcE AR E 500,000 7T 5
RMB250,001to RMB500,000

AN RHE 500,001 76 (& AR 500,001 ) PLE 5

Above and including RMB500,001

B I 0 SR A S R R
MR+, 5. (D) .

B E 2023 # 12 H 31 HIESEE, #H
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Details of remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out
in note X.5.(1) to the Financial Statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
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Committee held one meeting on 31 March 2023 to evaluate the
performance of the Executive Director, approve the terms of the
service contract of the Executive Director, review the overall
remuneration policy for the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management, determine such policies and propose them to the
Board. The meeting was attended by all the members of the
Remuneration Committee at that time, including Mr. Zhou Tao,
Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony and Ms. Zheng Yuyan.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of all Directors, Supervisors and senior
management and make recommendation to the Directors. The
Board will have final authority to approve the remuneration

recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee of the Board (the
“Audit Committee) on 26 November 2015 with written terms
of reference in compliance with code provisions D.3.3 and D.3.7
of the CG Code. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee reports to the Board and has held
regular meetings since its establishment to review and make
recommendations to improve the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. Other than that, the primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting and oversees internal
control of the Company. As at 31 December 2023, the Audit
Committee consisted of three members Including two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wan Chi Wai
Anthony (chairman of the Audit Committee), and Mr. Guan Jian

and a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Fei.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee
held two meetings on 31 March 2023 and 25 August 2023. On
both occasions, the Audit Committee reviewed, amongst others,
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2023,

and believed that the preparation of such results was in
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compliance with applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules, in addition to reviewing the changing of the accounting
policies adopted for preparing the Company’s financial
statements and the re-appointment of auditors. Mr. Wan Chi Wai
Anthony and and Mr. Guan Jian attended all the above meeting.
Mr. Zhou Tao attended one meeting before his resignation as the
committee member, and Mr. Xu Fei attended one meeting after
taking office.

The Audit Committee was aware about the Group’s existing
system for risk management and internal control and noted that
the system would be subject to annual review.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has not taken
a different view from the Audit Committee on the selection,

appointment, designation or dismissal of external auditor.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters. The Audit
Committee also discussed and reviewed the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2023 of the Company with the

external auditor of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established a risk management committee of the
Board (the “Risk Management Committee”) on 26 November
2015 with written terms of reference. Its terms of reference are

available on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Risk Management Committee are to
annually review the general goals and fundamental policies of
our risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions and made
recommendations to the Board on the same. As at 31 December
2023, the Risk Management Committee comprised three
members, including two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yao
Chuanglong, (Chairman of the Risk Management Committee)
and Ms. Zhang Hanzi and a independent non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Li Hanguo.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Risk Management
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Committee held one meeting on 31 March 2023 where the Risk
Management Committee reviewed the strategy, policy and
guideline of the Company’s risk management, the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of resources, and considered the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate. The meeting was attended by all the members of the
Risk Management Committee at that time, including Mr. Yao
Chuanglong, Ms. Zheng Yuyan and Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established a strategic development committee of
the Board (the “Strategic Development Committee”) on 10

June 2017, and determined its terms of reference in writing.

The Strategic Development Committee is mainly responsible for
studying the overall development strategies for the Company,
major investment and financing plans, and other material issues
that influence the development of the Company, and making
recommendations to the Board. As at 31 December 2023, the
Strategic Development Committee consisted of three members,
including a non-executive Director, namely Mr. Yan Jingbin
(Chairman of the Strategic Development Committee), and two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yao Chuanglong and Ms.

Zheng Yuyan.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Strategic
Development Committee held one meeting on 31 March 2023,
on which the study was carried out on the development
strategies and future development plans of the Company. All the
members of the Strategic Development Committee at that time,
including Mr. Yao Chuanglong, Ms. Zheng Yuyan and Mr. Zhou

Tao, attended the meeting at that time.
Board Committee Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the number of meetings of the
Board committees and the attendance of members were as
follows:
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Yao Chuanglong Not applicable Not applicable
LIS P ANiE ANiE 1 n n
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Ms. Zhang Hanzi Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
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Non-executive Directors
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Anthony PP PP
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The Board adopted the following Board diversity policy:
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With a view of achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity of the
Board as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All the
appointments made by the Board will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be adequately considered against objective
criteria, together with the benefit to the Board made by the
board diversity policy. Selection of Board members will be
based on a range of board diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on the specific demand for
talents in various stages of the business development and
strategic planning of the Company, and also the merits and
contribution to be made by the selected candidates. The
composition of the Board (including gender, age and length of
service) will be disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report

annually.

Set out below is the Board diversity achieved by the Company
as at 31 December 2023:

T ;
Executive Directors
4 At 5
Position Non-executive Directors
B AEPATE S 3
Independent non-executive Directors
5k ]
]l Male
Gender 4k
3
Female
40-49 5
Fie 50-59 3
Age
60-69 1
s <
R/HE Mainland China
Country/Region o [B] 7 vk |
Hong Kong, China
SRR
4
HEEE Bachelor degree
Education level FE- T
H 5
Master degree
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
implementation of the board diversity policy and confirmed its
effectiveness. As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised
three female Directors and six male Directors. The Board is of
the view that gender diversity has been achieved in the Board
and the Company has complied with the requirement of gender
diversity of the Board as set out in Rule 13.92 of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee will continue to review and
strive to maintain an appropriate balance of gender diversity in
the Board.

GENDER DIVERSITY IN THE WORKFORCE

The Company aims to achieve the gender diversity and equality
in the workforce (including officers). As at 31 December 2023,
the Company had 451 male and 380 female employees, the ratio
of male and female employees are 54% and 46% respectively.
The Board is of the opinion that the gender diversity in the
workforce has been achieved. The Company will work to
maintain the existing gender ratio and further enhance the
gender diversity when appropriate.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants (LLP) as the external auditor of the

Company. The fees in respect of audit services provided by
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ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (LLP) to the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to RMBO0.85
million (tax inclusive) , subsidiary audit service amounted to
RMBO0.13 million (tax exclusive), the non-audit service (exclude
services related to continuous related party transactions)
amounted to RMBO0.10 million (tax exclusive).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare accounts of the Group and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and the Company’s
management will provide information and explanation to the
Board to enable it to make informed assessments of the finance

and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt

upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the “Auditors’

Report” contained in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Yao Jiexi being one
of the joint company secretaries of the Company, was primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of the Group.

For the purpose of maintaining the good corporate governance
and ensuring the compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also engages Ms.
Wong Wai Ling from SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited (a corporate service provider) as another joint
company secretary of the Company on 8 April 2022 to assist
Ms. Yao Jiexi in fulfilling her duties as the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Wong Wai Ling’s main contact person in the
Company is Ms. Yao Jiexi.
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In accordance with the requirements under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, each of Ms. Yao and Ms. Wong confirmed that
she has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training during the year ended 31 December 2023.

SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the system of
internal control and risk management; the Audit Committee
assists the Board in performing its duty of monitoring and
corporate governance, which covers the finance, operation,
compliance, risk management and internal control of the
Company, as well as performing the function of internal audit.
Assisted by the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee, the Board is responsible for effectively maintaining
the system of internal control and risk management, to
safeguard the Group’s assets and the shareholders’ interests. The
system aims to manage (not eliminate) the risks that may cause
the failure to fulfill business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable (not absolute) assurance against major mistakes,
losses or fraud.

Composed of a robust organisational structure and
comprehensive policies and procedures, the system of internal
control and risk management of the Company covers all its
operating departments, with clear specification of the duties of
all business and functional departments, to ensure effective
checks and balances. The structure of risk management and
internal control of the Company includes the following parts:

The Board

As the ultimate decision-maker on internal control and
management, the Board is responsible for assessing and
determining the nature and extent of the Company’s risks, to
help it deliver its business strategies and achieve its business
objectives. The Board is also responsible for establishing,
improving, and effectively implementing the Company’s system
of internal control and risk management, as well as supervising
the management in its design, implementation and monitoring of

the system.
The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee

The Board authorises its Risk Management Committee to
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review and approve the risk management policies and guidance
of the Company, make decisions on risk level and preference as
well as relevant resource allocation, and review the
effectiveness and resources of the Group’s internal control
system at least annually.

The Board authorises the Audit Committee to review the
Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems at least annually, discuss with the
management on the internal control system, ensure that the
management has performed its duty to establish an effective
internal control system (taking into account, amongst others, the
sufficiency of the Company’s resources, staff qualifications and
experience in auditing and finance, and the sufficiency of staff
training courses and relevant budgets), and review the Group’s
financial and accounting policies and practice.

The Board of Supervisors

As the supervisory body for internal control and management,
the Board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising the
Board and the management in establishing and implementing

internal control.
The Management

The management is responsible for leading the development and
daily operation of the Company’s internal control, as well as its
coordination and management, identifying, assessing and
managing the risks that potentially affects important operational
procedures, timely responding to and following the matters on
risk management and internal control raised by the internal
auditor, and confirming to the Board and the Audit Committee
as to whether the system of risk management and internal
control is effective.

The Company has also established a corresponding mechanism
for risk management, which provides the framework and scope
of risk management, business objectives, risk assessment

process, and the process of regular assessment and monitoring.

The risk assessment of the Company is mainly composed by 5
fundamental processes, namely risk management concepts and
risk acceptance level establishment, goals formulation, risk
identification, risk analysis and risk response. The Company

conducts risk assessment on regular basis and classifies risks
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based on different Company’s goals, including strategic
environmental risk, procedural risk (business operation risk,
financial risk, authorization risk, information and technology
risk, and comprehensive risk) and strategic decision information
risk. The Company identifies risks and selects suitable risk
response plan in accordance with the results of risk analysis, and
in consideration of the cause of the risks, through analysing all
kinds of risk. It also identifies and controls the potential risk
acceptance abilities and limits of the Company in a timely
manner during the risk assessment process, assesses the risks
that the Company may expose to, and takes specific
countermeasures so as to enhance the Company’s risk-resisting
ability. By a comparison of risk assessment results, the
Company ranks the priority of its risks and determines its risk
management strategies and internal control procedures, to curb,

prevent or reduce risks.

The Board has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and risk management for the
year ended 31 December 2023, discovered no material defect in
internal control, and considered the existing system to be
effective and adequate. The Company also had adequate
resources, staff qualifications, training courses and budgets in its

accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND REPORTING POLICIES

The Group has formulated systems such as the Administrative
Rules on Clean Practices ( ( JE /& & # # & ) ), the
Administrative Measures on Internal and External Complaints
( {94 A FRE PEHE VL) ) and the Administrative Rules on
Gifts ( (f8 M EHHE) ), requesting all employees to sign the
Letter of Commitment to Clean Practices ( { BRIZK## FH) ),
which aim at regulating the behaviors of its employees,
promoting the self-discipline and law-abiding and clean
practices among its employees, as well as eliminating the
occurrence of various irregular and corrupted behaviors in the

course of work or business.

The Group has set up a variety of complaints and reporting
channels such as hotlines, complaint boxes, instant messaging
and emails to receive complaints or reports about illegal
behaviors of employees from its partners and internal sources.

After receiving complaints or reports, the relevant department
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collects information and evidence on the issue to have a full
understanding of the entire process of the issue, and strives to
get the facts of the complaints clear and finally raises its
suggestions of treatment based on the investigation results.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has established a policy regarding the disclosure of
inside information, which sets out the procedures and internal
control measures of the handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The policy and its

effectiveness would be reviewed on a regular basis.

The procedures for handling and publishing inside information

and the internal control measures are as follows:

The Company’s information disclosure is led and managed by
the Board. The chairman of the Board is the first person who
responsible for the implementation of the information disclosure
management system of the Company. The secretary of the
Company is responsible for coordinating and organizing the
specific matters of the Company’s information disclosure under
the leadership of the Board. The general office of the Board is
the competent authority for daily management of information
disclosure. All functional departments, branches and
subsidiaries of the Company will designate special contact
person for significant information, and report relevant
information disclosure materials to the general office of the
Board.

The Company’s information disclosure documents primarily
include periodic reports, interim reports, and various types of
documents disclosed in accordance with the requirements of
relevant regulatory authorities. The announced information shall
be disclosed in the media designated by the relevant regulatory
authorities. The Company may also disclose information in
other media as required, but it shall ensure that the disclosures
are consistent and the time of disclosure by the designated
media is not later than the non-designated media. Save for the
principle regulation of information disclosure, employees of the
Company shall not receive any interviews related to the
Company without authorisation.
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The Board shall take necessary measures to keep the
information insiders within the minimum scope before
information disclosure. Before the inside information is
disclosed in accordance with laws, any information insider shall
not disclose or divulge the information, use the information for
insider trading, or manipulate the trading prices of the securities
and its derivatives with others. When an employee leaves the
Company, he or she shall hand over the relevant inside
information of the Company and must not disclose the above

information.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

Two or more shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) who jointly hold 10% or more of the shares
carrying rights to vote at the proposed meeting may request the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting by signing a
written requirement or several copies with the same format and
content, and to illustrate the subject of the meetings. The Board
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting as soon as
possible upon receipt of the foresaid written requirement. The
aforesaid number of shareholdings is calculated as at the date of
the submission of the written requirement by the shareholders.

If the Board fails to issue a notice of convening such a meeting
within 30 days from the date of receipt of the aforesaid written
requisition, the Shareholders who raise the requisition may
themselves convene the meeting within 4 months from the date
of receipt of the requisition by the Board. The procedures of
convening the meeting shall be the similar as those of convening

a general meeting by the Board as far as possible.

If the Shareholders call and convene a meeting by themselves
since the Board cannot convene the meeting in accordance with
the foresaid requirement, the expenses reasonably resulted
therefrom shall be borne by the Company and deducted from the

amounts owed to the Directors who have neglected their duties.
Putting forward proposals at the general meeting

The Shareholders solely or aggregately holding more than 3% of
Shares of the Company may make an interim draft resolution to

the convener in writing 10 days before the convening of the
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Shareholders’ general meeting. The convener shall, within 2
days after receipt of the draft resolution, issue a supplementary
notice of general meeting and announce the content of such

interim draft resolution.
Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders who request related information or ask for
information shall provide the Company with the written
documents proving their types of shares and the number of
Shares being held. The Company would provide related
information in accordance with the request of the Shareholders
after verifying the identity of the Shareholders and receiving

reasonable fees.
Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned

above to the following:

Address:Joint Company Secretary, Yao Jiexi, No. 235 Song
Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (For the attention of Joint Company
Secretary)

Fax: 86-0754-82752026
Email: Yaojiexi@charmacy.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be

disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-0754-88109272 for

any assistance.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

At the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company held on 31
May 2023, the Company approved amendments to the Articles
of Association to amend the scope of operations to meet the
needs of business development, and the 2023 second
extraordinary general meeting on 20 October 2023 approved

amendments to adjust the Articles of Association simultaneously
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in accordance with the requirements of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and the Stock Exchange. Save for the
above, there were no material changes to the Articles of
Association during 2023.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all Shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company has established the Shareholders’ communication
policy and is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to the Shareholders and its

public investors.

The Company updates the Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications  including annual reports and  public
announcements. Information about the Company’s business for
the year ended 31 December 2023 has been provided in this
annual report. While the annual general meeting provides a
valuable forum for direct communication between the Board
and the Shareholders, the Company also maintains its website
(http://www.chmyy.com) to  provide an  alternative
communication channel for the public and the Shareholders. All
corporate communication and Company’s latest updates are

available on the Company’s website.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board reviewed the
implementation of the Shareholders’ communication policy and

considered the Shareholders’ communication policy effective.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board are pleased to present 2023 annual report together
with the Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal business of the Company is pharmaceutical
products distribution in the PRC. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note VIII of the
financial statements. Business review during the Reporting
Period, discussion on the future business development of the
Group and performance analysis of the Group within the year
based on key financial performance indicators are set out in the
Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
and its financial positions as at 31 December 2023 are set out in

the Financial Statements.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.30 per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31
December 2023, which is subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held by the
Company on 20 May 2024 (the “AGM”). and, final dividend for
full circulation H shareholders of the Company will be paid in
RMB, and the final dividend for other H shareholders of the
Company will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The exchange rate
for the final dividend to be paid in Hong Kong dollars will be the
mean of the exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the PBOC during the 5 business days preceding the
date of approval of the final dividend at the AGM. The final
dividend is expected to be paid on 10 July 2024. The Company
will announce the details in relation to the record date of dividend
payment and the relevant dates when the registration of the
Company will be closed, when appropriate. (2022 final dividend:
RMBO0.45 per share).

As at the date of this report, there is no arrangement under which
a shareholder of the Company has waived or agreed to waive any
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dividends.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or shares.
The distribution of dividends is proposed by the Board in its
discretion after the approval of the Shareholders. The policy on
the declaration or payment of any dividends in the future and the
amount of dividends are depended on a number of factors,
including the Company’s operating results, cash flows, financial
positions, operating and capital expenditure requirements,
distributable profits determined in accordance with the PRC
GAAP, the Company’s articles of association, the Company Law
of the PRC and any other relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, and other factors that the Directors of the Company

considered to be relevant.

The profits of the Company after paying relevant taxes are
distributed in the following order: (1) covering the losses; (2)
withdrawing the statutory surplus reserve; (3) withdrawing the
discretionary surplus reserve; and (4) paying the ordinary shares
dividends.

The Company shall withdraw 10% of profit after tax as statutory
surplus reserve. If the accumulated amount of statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the registered capital, it can no longer
be withdrawn. The discretionary surplus reserve is additionally
withdrawn from the Company’s profits after the withdrawal of
statutory surplus reserve in accordance with the resolution at the

general meeting.

The Company shall not distribute dividends or carry out other
distributions in the form of dividends until it has covered the
losses and withdrawn statutory reserve. The Company’s
dividends are not subject to any interest, unless it does not
distribute the relevant dividends to the Shareholders on its

dividend payable date.

RESERVES

The details of changes in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of change in equity in this annual report. As at 31
December 2023, the distributable reserve of the Company
amounted to about RMB210.82 million.
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LAST FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years ended 31 December 2019 to 31
December 2023 is set out in financial summary. This summary
does not form part of the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in share capital of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note V. 26 to the
Financial Statements.

UNALLOCATED PROFITS AT THE END OF THE
YEAR

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s unallocated profits
amounted to RMB 181.15 million. Details of the movements in
the unallocated profits of the Group in 2023 are set out in Note V.

29 to the Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(1) Suppliers and the quality of products provided

As a pharmaceutical distributor, the Group has limited or no
control over the operation and quality of products of the
suppliers. The suppliers may not always be able to provide
products which satisfy the quality standard of the Group and with
no defects.

As such, in the case that there are no damage in packaging and
relevant documentation including inspection report are properly
attached, the Group would not be able to know whether there are
any problem in the internal quality of the products and hence
could be subject to administrative punishment for selling interior
drugs if the suppliers of the Group fail to supply goods that meet
the quality standard.

Complemented by information system, the Company has
established a stringent verification system for suppliers and
product quality and internal control system for drug quality in
accordance with GSP so as to ensure that the internal control
system could be effectively implemented. Meanwhile, the
Company has entered into an Agreement on Quality Assurance of

Pharmaceutical Products with suppliers, pursuant to which it was
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agreed that suppliers shall be responsible for the quality of
products provided by it during the term of the agreement and all
loss arising thereby shall be borne by suppliers.

(2) Low gross profit margin and net profit margin

As a pharmaceutical distributor, the Group has low profit
margins. Any increase in procurement cost or decrease in selling
price would therefore significantly affect our profits. In addition,
we earn purchase discounts directly or indirectly from our
manufacturer suppliers and such purchase discounts are
significant to our gross profit. If there is a decrease in the amount
of purchase discounts received which result in a decrease in gross
profit margin and net profit margin, the results of operation of the

Group may be adversely affected.

The Company increased its gross profit margin continuously
through the following ways: 1) actively expand the terminal
network of retail pharmacy stores, clinics and health centers; 2)
continue to optimize the product structure; strengthen the
cooperation with well-known domestic as well as international
manufacturers; expand the variety and scale of primary
distribution products; and obtain higher commercial discounts
from suppliers; 3) in order to strengthen our product portfolio,
continue to introduce quality products which are easy to sell and
has high gross profit margin, including Chinese medical drink
and pill, healthcare products and medical device; and 4) take the
initiative to wipe off products with low gross profit margin and

inventory turnover.
(3) Risk of adjustments to policies and regulations

The pharmaceutical distribution industry is a strictly regulated
industry and is greatly affected by policies. In order to promote
the healthy development of the industry, the State Council of the
PRC, the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the State Food and Drug
Administration, local food and drug administrations and other
administrative authorities have successively formulated and
promulgated various policies and regulations including Good
Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products, Two-Invoice
System and separation of pharmacy and medicine. The
implementation of these policies and regulations has profoundly
affected the development direction of the industry and the future
competitive landscape of the market. Enterprises that do not
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standardize operations, and do not attach importance to product
quality management and have small service networks and weak
service capabilities, will be gradually eliminated or consolidated.
As the pharmaceutical reform continues to deepen, the relevant
policies and regulations will change accordingly. If the current
business strategy of the Company cannot keep up with the future
changes in industry policies, the Company will lose its

advantageous position in future competition.

The Company will continue to strictly regulate its own operations
and management in the process of continuous adjustments of
industry policies and regulations, and while adapting itself to the
development trend of the pharmaceutical distribution industry, it
will continue to adhere to its strategic planning, and adjust
business focus according to market demand in order to achieve
sustainable development.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the core staff of the Group is the key to
the future development of the Group. The Group is able to
maintain its market competitiveness with their knowledge in the
industry and the understanding of the market as well as their
sincere services. The Group puts great emphasis on individual
ability enhancement and career development of staff and provides

corresponding training courses for the staff.

The Group maintains a close and stable relationship with existing
and potential customers and suppliers. As a bridge between the
pharmaceutical manufacturers and the customers, the Group is
familiar with the market trend and the diversified demand of
customers, which would extend the sales network coverage for
the pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises in a more cost
effective way. Enriched product portfolio can be provided for
satisfying different demand of customers and ensuring a stable

supply in a timely manner.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, both the revenue
contribution from the Group’s top five customers and the
purchase from top five suppliers out of total purchase were less
than 30%.

The largest supplier of the Group is a subsidiary of Guangzhou
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Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholders who own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial interests in
any of the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the

year.
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in Note VII to the Financial

Statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of changes in fixed assets of the Group during the year of

2023 are set out in Note V.9 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
are set out in Note V.16 and 24 to the Financial Statements. As at
31 December 2023, the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
land use right and inventories with total carrying amount of
approximately RMB641.20 million have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (2022: approximately
RMB652.52 million).

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group, with its long-term focus on protecting the
environment, is committed to making contribution to
environmental protection. Apart from its strict compliance with
the PRC laws and regulations on environmental protection, the
Group tries to minimize its environmental impact during business
operations and remind its staff of following such minimization
practice. Furthermore, the Group has adopted the diesel vehicles
that comply with the National IV emission standard in
pharmaceutical logistics and the control of electricity and water
consumption during operation; the Group also has other measures
in place, such as reducing paper consumption, to mitigate the

environmental impact.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As the Company incorporated and operates its business in
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mainland China, the operation and management are strictly
regulated by relevant laws and regulations in the mainland.
Meanwhile, as the Company is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, it is subject to the relevant regulations. Due to
the certain differences in relevant laws and regulations between
two places, the Company could be bound in various areas such as
corporate governance, information disclosure, dividend policy,
merger and acquisition, and related transactions. The Board is
concerned about the policies and practices to comply with the
requirements of laws and regulations in relation to the Group.
The Group has engaged, legal advisors to PRC and Hong Kong
laws to ensure the transactions and business of the Group are
conducted subject to the applicable laws. The Group has included
the related laws and regulations into the internal management
system in order to supervise the staff to comply on an ongoing
basis. The Group has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report are as follows:
Executive Directors

Yao Chuanglong (Vice chairman)
Zheng Yuyan

Zhang Hanzi

Non-executive Directors

Li Weisheng (resigned on 17 April 2023)
Yan Jingbin (Chairman)

Fu Zheng

Xu Fei (appointed on 31 May 2023)
Independent non-executive Directors

Li Hanguo (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Wan Chi Wai Anthony
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Zhou Tao (resigned on 31 May 2023)

Guan Jian

Mr. Yao Chuanglong and Ms. Zheng Yuyan, the executive
Directors have entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the 31 May 2021 and
subject to termination by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other; Ms. Zhang Hanzi has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 13 July 2022
for a term commencing from 13 July 2022 and expire until the
effective of next session of the Board, subject to termination by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either

party on the other.

Mr. Wan Chi Wai Anthony and Mr. Guan Jian, the independent
non-executive Directors, have entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 31 May 2021 for a term of three years
commencing from 31 May 2021 and subject to termination by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other; Mr. Li Hanguo has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 31 May 2023 for a term commencing from
31 May 2023 and expire until the effective of next session of the
Board, subject to termination by not less than three months’notice

in writing served by either party on the other.

Mr. Yan Jingbin, a non-executive Director, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company on 6 June 2022 for a
term of three years commencing from 6 June 2022 and expire
until the effective of next session of the Board, subject to
termination by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other; Ms. Fu Zheng has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company on 13 July 2022
for a term of three years commencing from 13 July 2022 and
expire until the effective of next session of the Board, subject to
termination by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other; Mr. Xu Fei has entered into a
service contract with the Company on 31 May 2023 for a term
commencing from 31 May 2023 and expire until the effective of
next session of the Board, subject to termination by not less than

three months' notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not



AL SLANAL A — SR N A 2 7] 4 ki 5
SRR RE W E RSN I ARES

HH o

W B S 303 RBE, AR
] R R ST AR BT B R
SRR SV RERR S, TR
P AR AT A AT

AARERE N LB EAR RS H TR
B

B

BVt (ERE, R 202345 H 31 H
FERAT)

gR¥4
Bt A
ELE G 2023 4£ 5 A 31 HEHE)

B E A 2023 4 E N A BN IR &
. BEE A 2023 AT AL
TE B R SR A IR B H IR
A

o

BRI AR H 2023 455 H 31 H
BUARNRFT SRS &R, AR T —
Jeei B AR AR A R, G T A e
E; SR B 2 A1 B RS TH 4 1 A 2021
5 H 31 HELARXF T SR A
[, A =4, 1607 HEisE .

Tt fie BB 2 B IR SLAR (T A 2 A
AR — SR N AR SR AR CBRIL e I
H8) T B AL AR o

E¥. BHEERMSE

EH, BFEM e AR F A R
PNt S R U A AR B R

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered to
be independent.

The Supervisors who held office during the year and up to the

date of this report are as follows:
Supervisors

Zhu Minghong (appointed on 31 May 2023)

Zhang Ling
Zheng Xiyue

Lin Zhijie (resigned on 31 May 2023)

The Board of Supervisors held two meetings during 2023. Details
of the meetings and events conducted by the Board of
Supervisors during 2023 are set out in the Board of Supervisors’

report of this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Minghong, a Supervisor, have entered into a service
contract on 31 May 2023 with the Company his term of office
will expire until effective of next session of the Board of
Supervisors and may be re-elected; Ms. Zhang Ling and Ms.
Zheng Xiyue, the Supervisors have entered into a service contract
on 31 May 2021 with the Company for a term of three years and
may be re-elected.

No Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE
SUPERVISORS AND EMPLOYEES

DIRECTORS,

Details of the emoluments of Directors and Supervisors and the

five highest paid individuals of the Company are set out in Note

-079 -
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X.5.(1)and (2) to the Financial Statements.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, as
authorized by the Shareholders in the annual general meeting of
the Company, having regard to their time commitment and
responsibilities in the Group, the salaries paid by comparable
companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
performance-based remuneration. No Directors are involved in

deciding their own remuneration.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employee and on the basis of the
salary trends in the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to its profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary
bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to

the Group. The Group has no long-term incentive plan.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as otherwise disclosed, there was no material transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company or
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or Supervisor (or its connected entities) directly
or indirectly had a material interest subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or
body corporate to manage the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company during 2023.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”

of this annual report.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

To better safeguard the Group from any potential competition,
Mr. Yao Chuanglong has entered into the deed of non-
competition with the Company whereby Mr. Yao Chuanglong
irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes with the Company
that with effect from the Listing Date and for as long as H shares
of the Company (the “H Shares”) remain listed on the Stock
Exchange and (i) Mr. Yao is, directly or indirectly, interested in
not less than 30% of the Shares in issue; or (ii) Mr. Yao
Chuanglong remains as the executive Director, Mr. Yao
Chuanglong shall, and shall procure that his associates shall:

(a) not directly or indirectly engage, participate or hold any right
or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in
any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the existing business activities of the Group or any business
activities which the Group may undertake in the future;

(b) not take any direct or indirect action which constitutes an
interference with or a disruption to the business activities of the
Group including, but not limited to, solicitation of customers,
suppliers and staff of the Group;

(c) keep the Board informed of any matter of potential conflicts
of interests between Mr. Yao Chuanglong (including his
associates) and the Group, in particular, a transaction between
Mr. Yao Chuanglong (including his associates) and the Group;

and

(d) provide as soon as practicable upon the Company’s request a
written confirmation in respect of compliance by it with the terms
of the deed of non-competition and their respective consent to the
inclusion of such confirmation in the Company’s annual report
and all such information as may be reasonably requested by the

Company for its review.

In addition, Mr. Yao Chuanglong hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally, undertakes that if any new business opportunity
relating to any products and/or services of the Group (the
“Business Opportunity”) is made available to him or his
associates (other than members of the Group), he will direct or
procure the relevant associate to direct such Business

Opportunity to the Group with such required information to
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enable the Group to evaluate the merits of the Business
Opportunity.

Mr. Yao Chuanglong shall provide or procure his associates to
provide all such reasonable assistance to enable the Group to
secure the Business Opportunity. If he (or his associates) plans to
participate or engage in any new activities or new business which
may, directly or indirectly, compete with the existing business
activities of the Group, he shall give the Company a first right of
refusal to participate or engage in the Business Opportunity and
will not participate or engage in these activities unless with the
prior written consent of the Company. None of Mr. Yao
Chuanglong and his associates (other than members of the
Group) will pursue the Business Opportunity unless the Group
decides not to pursue the Business Opportunity because of
commercial reasons. Any decision of the Company will have to
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors taking
into consideration the prevailing business and financial resources
of the Group, the financial resources required for the Business
Opportunity and, where necessary, any expert opinion on the
commercial viability of the Business Opportunity. Mr. Yao
Chuanglong further irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes
that he will (i) provide to the Group all information necessary for
the enforcement of the undertakings contained in the deed of non-
competition; and (ii) confirm to the Company on an annual basis
as to whether he complies with such undertakings.

The deed of non-competition will cease to have any effect on the

earliest of the date on which:

(a) the Company becomes wholly-owned by Mr. Yao Chuanglong

and/or his associates;

(b) the aggregate beneficial shareholding (whether direct or
indirect) of Mr. Yao Chuanglong and/or his associates in the
Shares in issue falls below 30% of the number of Shares in issue
and Mr. Yao Chuanglong shall cease to be the executive Director;

or
(c) the H Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yao Chuanglong has confirmed to the Company of his
compliance with the deed of non-competition provided to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the status
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of compliance and received confirmation by Mr. Yao Chuanglong
of the Company and, on the basis of such confirmation, are of the
view that Mr. Yao Chuanglong has complied with the deed of
non-competition and such deed of non-competition has been
enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note X.2. to the Financial
Statements. Save for the transactions with Jiangyao as disclosed
below, no related party transactions set out in note X.2. to the
Financial Statements constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had the
following continuing connected transactions, and some details of
such transactions have been disclosed in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The following is the transaction party
information related to the connected transactions:

?aﬁﬁoftfe%onnected iz SRS 2 5 B £

person Abbreviation Relationship with the Group
TEREFEAR A TLEE EN/NGIEDESE i

Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. Jiangyao A substantial shareholder of the Company

A 2023 4F 12 H 31 HIEERE, K
SRR T A agaT LA TR 1
WA 5«

A SR i
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into several continuing connected transactions under the

following agreements:
A. Sales of Goods

On 11 April 2022, the Group signed a framework sales contract
with Jiangyao for selling goods to Jiangyao and its subsidiaries

(the “Jiangyao Group”) . For the year ended 31 December
2023, the annual cap and actual amount of transactions for sales
of goods were RMB200 million and nil respectively. The main
terms and conditions regarding the provision of goods in the
sales contract are detailed as follows:
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(1) Term: From the effective date to 31 December 2024

(2) Subject Matter: Any member of the Group may, within the
scope of the framework sales contract, sign a separate execution
agreement with any member of Jiangyao Group from time to
time regarding the sales of drugs, medical devices, health
products and food for which the Group acts as the main
distributor. Any such execution agreement shall not violate the

provisions of the framework sales contract.

(3) Pricing Basis: The sales price of the products shall be
determined and stated in the execution agreement by the Group
and Jiangyao Group through fair negotiation on the basis of
normal commercial terms, taking into account the market
situation, order size, technical conditions, relevant costs and
quotations from independent third-party customers at the time.
With respect to the Group, the specific price terms shall in any
case be similar to the terms provided by the Group to
independent third-party customers.

B. Purchase of Goods

On 11 April 2022, the Group signed a framework purchase
agreement with Jiangyao for purchasing goods from Jiangyao
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the annual cap
and actual amount of transactions for purchasing goods are
RMB240 million and RMB61.19

main terms and conditions in the purchase agreement are

million respectively. The

detailed as follows:

(1) Term: From the effective date to 31 December 2024

(2) Subject Matter: Any member of the Group may, within the
scope of the framework purchase agreement, sign a separate
execution agreement with any member of Jiangsu Yishang
Group from time to time regarding the purchase of drugs,
medical devices, health products and food for which Jiangyao
Group acts as the main distributor. Any such execution
agreement shall not violate the provisions of the framework

purchase agreement.

(3) Pricing Basis: The purchase price of the products shall be
determined and stated in the execution agreement by the Group
and Jiangyao Group through fair negotiation on the basis of
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normal commercial terms, taking into account the market
situation, order size, technical conditions, relevant costs and
purchases from independent third-party suppliers at the time.
With respect to the Group, the specific price terms shall in any
case be similar to the terms provided by independent third-party

suppliers.

C.Framework Loan Agreement
Agreement trading date

2 March 2023 (after trading hours)

The parties to the transaction and the connected relationship

between each other

The Company (as borrower) and Jiangyao (as lender)

Agreement transaction and its purpose

The signing of the Framework Loan Agreement demonstrates
the continuous financial support provided by Jiangyao as the
controlling shareholder of the Company to the Group, and
enables the Group to secure scalable, stable and reliable funding
support to meet its operation needs.

Principal Terms of the Agreement

Both parties obtaining their respective internal approval in
relation to the entering of the Framework Loan Agreement and
the transaction contemplated thereunder, Jiangyao agrees to
provide a loan facility not exceeding the maximum limit (within
a limit of not more than RMB500 million per year) as authorised
by the statutory approval authorities of both parties to the Group

for a term of three years commencing from 17 April 2023.

In accordance with Jiangyao’s financial and credit approval
requirements, the Company shall provide Jiangyao with its or its
subsidiaries’ inventories as a collateral, the specific ratio
depends on the negotiation between the parties and the actual
situation. The interest rate shall be determined by the parties
with reference to the Company’s cost of financing from banks or
financial institutions in the same Period. Repayment
arrangements shall be agreed by the parties and stated in the

individual loan agreement.

-085 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

WAL FIRATIE AR, L M TR AR
[ SCATRI R . AR A RIRAEHIZ R
AR SRR RS, B B TR A R
a2 A FTIE R F A, BARNE
AHEFL T IB AT Z R K

Y

o Nt B o o A A 2

2
AL 5 I, YL T A | 4%
e, (BRAAR S —SUTEI &
) A E 84,656,500 B (A4S
AN T A DT IRA T 78.38%)
HEEARERS . R, RiE (LM
R, TLEERARA T FIBEN L, 1
CHEZR A Ak e M HLIH R B T 2
LG FE AR A T P RFE R A 5

IRHIE 1912

2023 4F 2 A 24 HEH & F ik 0@
i CERRTHE LS 3K A IR 2 RR A B 5 AS
) WAk, HNERANFME R
N B A F] 1 6 R VT 24 R &
FNFT L CHEZAE K k) AR
W 5 BT BE B N R 2 gl
Ak, R & B AR H R =
o MRIE R R AR 2023 MR
PR 2R 4 B B A A R A B AN A 1]
2023 PR RIS S & & Bom R B
PR % N R 3,784,016.69 TG, AAE
AR R NIRHE 3,726,983.34 TG

A CHEZE K IaR) TH N R
Frid A ) — THEY 22 TH 3 FH B 5 2R T
AR TR 5%,  CHEZE R TR K&
CEFE R PREE ST B BRI 14A &
P e B F R A I SR S A
FELER, MA AR H %
B AE 2 A 5 BLLA 2023 4F 4 H
17 H A BIA A 7] 2023 4F 55 — IR g s
MR K i | CHESEAE K e )
DA 35 HE 1k 80 FE ol A R A ] AR B SE S
JE TR B VL gE R EE A N R S
-086 -

In the case of early repayment by the Company, interest shall be
paid according to the actual duration of drawdown. If the
Company fails to repay the principal and accrued interests of the
loan or commits any of the default events as specified under the
individual loan agreement, the lender shall have the right to

recover that particular loan on demand
Connected person and the interests in the connected transaction

As at the date of agreement trading date, Jiangyao is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and is (together with
parties acting in concert with it) interested in an aggregate of
84,656,500 Shares (representing approximately 78.38% of the
total issued share capital of the Company). Therefore, pursuant
to the Listing Rules, Jiangyao is a connected person of the
Company, and the Framework Loan Agreement and the
transaction contemplated thereunder constitutes a continuing

connected transaction of the Company.
Internal approval

On 24 February 2023, the Board considered and approved the
resolution on “Continuing Connected Transactions in Relation
to the Execution of the Framework Loan Contract”, so as to
apply for a loan from Jiangyao, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, within a limit of not more than RMB500 million per
year, and the loan period is three years from the effective date..
According to the proposal and the actual loan amount and loan
term of the Group in 2023, the maximum annual cap for the
financing expenses of the Group in 2023 is calculated to be
RMB3,784,016.69, and the amount incurred in current year is
RMB3,726,983.34.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the annual caps for the Framework Loan Agreement are
expected to be higher than 5%, the Framework Loan Agreement
and the annual caps are subject to the reporting, announcement,
shareholders' approval and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Therefore, the Company
issued the connected transactions announcement on the date of
the agreement and adopted the Framework Loan Agreement at
the 2023 first extraordinary general meeting of shareholders on
17 April 2023, and authorized Mr. Yao Chuanglong to apply for

a loan of no more than RMB 500 million from Jiangyao every
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year according to the needs of business development.
(IT) Confirmation by Auditor

The Company's auditor reported the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Standards for
Other Assurance Services of Chinese Certified Public
Accountants No. 3101 - Assurance Services other than Audit or
Review of Historical Financial Information issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People's Republic of China and by
reference to the Practice Note No.740-Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. With respect to the aforementioned continuing
connected transactions, the auditor has issued an unqualified
conclusion letter containing its findings and conclusions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

With respect to the aforementioned continuing connected
transactions, the board of directors has received a confirmation
letter from ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership), confirming that for the year ended 31
December 2023, for the disclosed continuing connected

transactions:

(1) The auditor did not notice any matter that made it believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions had not been
approved by the Board; (ii) With respect to the transactions
involving the provision of goods or services by the Group, the
auditor did not notice any matter that made it believe that such
transactions did not comply with the Company's pricing policy
in all material aspects; (iii) The auditor did not notice any matter
that made it believe that the transactions did not complied with
the relevant agreements affecting such transaction in all material
aspects; (iv) In respect of the aggregate amount of each
continuing connected transaction set out in the list of subsidiary
continuing connected transactions, we have not noticed anything
that would lead the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the aggregate

annual cap set by the Company.
(III) Confirmation by the Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
existing internal control procedures of the Company and the
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aforementioned continuing connected transactions, and
confirmed that, the internal control procedures are sufficient and
effective, and that such continuing connected transactions are (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii)
based on the normal commercial terms or the terms not inferior
to those provided by independent third parties or the Group; and
(iii) entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
regulating such transactions, of which the terms are fair,
reasonable, and in line with the overall interests of the
Shareholders.

INFORMATION TO BE DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO
RULE 13.51B OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
between the date of announcement of the Company’s 2023
Interim Report and the date of announcement of the Company’s
2023 Annual Report is set out below:

In May 2024, the Company will hold an annual general meeting
and the election of the forth session of the Board and the Board
of Supervisors will be held, and new service contracts into

between the Company and the Directors and Supervisors

After making specific enquiries by the Company and confirmed
by the Directors and the Supervisors, save as disclosed above,
there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES, AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2023, the interests and short positions of
each of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company, the members of the Group and/or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which is required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which is required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
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were as follows:
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St/ HEmtE et 8 B B BRARRI E 2 LEO
EHES f ) .
. Capacity/Nature of Number and class of the Approximate shareholding
Name of Director .
interest Shares percentage of the total
issued share capital®
34,530,000 Jix H fix
e S LEE 2N (L 31979
Mr. Yao Chuanglong Beneficial owner 34,530,00 H Shares ’
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The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined
under Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Note:

The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000 H
Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any other interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company, its members of the Group
or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of
the SFO) which have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
are required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which are required
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests or Short
Positions of the Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in
the Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”, at no time
during the year 2023, the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors and Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate, or any Directors, Supervisors or their
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spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any right
to subscribe for Shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate or exercised any such right.

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons/entities (other than any Directors, Supervisors
or chief executives) had or deemed to have an interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:

16 B #AT A R A O
L I g (O]
R A FERSTEE KX 5y [ty B E RS M%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁtb .
Nature and Number and class of the Approximate shareholding
Name of shareolder . . .
capacity of interest Shares percentage of the total issued
share capital®
34,530,000 ¥ H Jix
Wt L (L 31.97%
Ms. You Zeyan Interest of spouse® 34,530,00 H Shares ’
(D)
29,050,000 i H Jix
HaAAA (L) 26.90%
Beneficial owner 29,050,000 H Shares
@)
N e 17,420,000 fix H
— TR 2O e
L Interest of corporation (L) 16.13%
Jiangyao controlled® 17,420,000 H Shares
@)
FEA B B PR s HEE 5,000,000 /& H /i
SNG2
HIN _ (L 4.63%
Person having a security 5,000,000 H Shares
interest in shares™® (L)
. s 17,420,000 % H
T P T I 24 7 e e
Jiangxi Pharmaceutical B A\ (L) 16.13%
L Beneficial owner 17,420,000 H Shares
Investment Co., Limited T L
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Notes:

The letter “L” refers to a person’s long position (as defined
under Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000
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H Shares in issue of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

(2) Ms. You Zeyan is the spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the
vice chairman and executive Director of the Company, and is
deemed to be interested in these Shares held by Mr. Yao under
the SFO.

(3) Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Limited is wholly-
owned by Jiangyao. Therefore, Jiangyao is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jiangxi Pharmaceutical

Investment Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(4) Jiangyao has security interest over 5,000,000 Shares,
representing the Shares pledged by Mr. Yao in favour of

Jiangyao.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors was aware that any other persons/entities (other than
any Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company)
had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company, its members of the Group or associated
corporations which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which had entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITIONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, save as disclosed in the
Prospectus, none of the Directors or substantial Shareholders or
any of their respective associates conducted any business which
competes, or is likely to compete, with the business of the

Group or had any other conflicts of interests with the Group.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, except for the
Framework Loan Contract signed on 2 March 2023 (detail refer
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to section headed Continuing connected Transactions), the
Company and its subsidiaries did not enter into any contracts of
significance with any controlling sharecholders or any of its

subsidiaries.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance or contract of significance
for provision of services, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed

securities of the Company.
TAX RELIEF

Directors were not aware any details concerning the tax relief

due to any Company’s securities held by the Shareholders.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the PRC’s law applicable to

the incorporation place of the Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information publicly available to the Company
and so far as the Directors are aware, the Company had
maintained the public float stipulated under the Listing Rules as

at the date of this annual report.

CHARITY DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company and its
subsidiaries actively participated in charity and public welfare
undertakings, and contributed the money and materials
amounting to RMBO0.05 million to the society.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

After the Reporting Period and as of the date of this report, there
are no material matters that the Group is required to disclose.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The details of the corporate governance practices of the Group
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual

report.
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders of the Company to attend the AGM to be held on
20 May 2024, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 14 May 2024 to 20 May 2024 (both days inclusive),
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
should be lodged for registration with the H share registrar of
the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30
p-m. on 13 May 2024.

AGM

The AGM will be held on 20 May 2024. The Shareholders
should refer to the circular to be issued by the Company on 26
April 2024 regarding the details of the AGM and the enclosed
AGM notice and proxy form.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, together with the management of the
Company and the external auditor, had conducted review on the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDITORS

The Company will propose a resolution to re-appoint
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ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) as the auditor of the Group for the year of 2024 at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company has not
changed its auditor in the past three years.

By order of the Board

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Yan Jingbin

Chairman

Shantou, the PRC, 28 March 2024
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BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’
REPORT

In 2023, the Board of Supervisors fully performed its
supervisory duties on members of the Board, managers and
other senior management of the Company as authorised at the
general meeting in accordance with the Company Laws of the
PRC (the “Company Law’’) and the Articles of Associations.

DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

On 31 March 2023, it considered and approved the resolutions
on the matters including the work report of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company for 2022, the Financial Statements
for 2022, the Results Announcement for 2022 and the Annual
Report for 2022.

On 26 August 2023, it considered and approved the resolutions
on the matters including the 2023 Interim Financial Statements,
the 2023 Interim Results Announcement and the 2023 Interim
Report.

LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors attended all meetings of the Board
during the year, and fully performed its supervisory duties on
the lawful operation of the Company. It earnestly performed its
duties of supervision and inspection, and effectively discharged
its supervisory duties on the development strategies and the
significant decisions of the Company on a timely basis, thus
exerting its functions in a better way and fully delivering its

duties in the development of the Company during the year.
In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors:

1. In 2023, with care and strong support from all the
Shareholders, as well as the diligent work of all its staff, the
operation of the Company was in compliance with the Company
Law and the Articles, and the procedures for making decisions
on operation of the Company are lawful and normative, thus
making satisfactory achievements in the business.

2. During the Reporting Period, each member of the Board,
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manager and other senior management of the Company
diligently performed his/her jobs and duties in the Company
and, for the benefit of the Company, strictly observed relevant
laws, regulations and the Articles of Associations, and regulated
the work procedures for operation and management of the
Company, thereby protecting the interest of the Company and
the Shareholders.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2023 Auditor’s
Report for submission. In the opinion of the Board of
Supervisors, the financial report of the Company completely,
objectively and fairly reflects its financial position and operating
results. The annual operating results of the Company have been
audited by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) who has also issued an audit report which

is true, objective and fair.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors considers that the Group's connected
transactions in 2023 have been filed, audited, announced and
approved by independent Shareholders in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
THE INTERNAL CONTROL SELF - ASSESSMENT
REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the
Company, and considered that the Company has established an
appropriate internal control system in all important aspects and
the internal control management system has operated
effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation and

normal production and operation.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT
THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to
the contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings.

The Board of Supervisors supervised the implementation of
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resolutions passed at the general meetings, and considered that
the Board was able to implement the relevant resolutions

earnestly.

Being confident of the Company’s development prospects, the
Board of Supervisors will remain consistent in performing its
supervisory function for the operation of the Company and
safeguarding its interest and that of the Shareholders as a whole.

Zhu Minghong

Chairlady of the Board of Supervisors

Shantou, the PRC, 28 March 2024
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Auditor’s Report

XYZH/2024SZAA8B0235
CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO., LD. :

I. AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet and balance sheet of the parent company as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated income statement and
income statement of the parent company, consolidated statement
of cash flow and statement of cash flow of the parent company
and consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of the parent
company for the year 2023, and relevant notes to the financial

statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
requirements under the Accounting Standards for Enterprises,
which give a fair view of the consolidated financial position and
financial position of the parent company of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company as at 31 December 2023 and the
consolidated results of operation and cash flows and results of
operation and cash flows of the parent company for the year
2023.

II. BASIS FOR FORMING AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with China’s Auditing
Standards for the Certified Public Accountants. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the section headed “CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS” in the Auditor’s Report. We are independent
of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company in accordance with the
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Code of Professional Ethics for China’s Certified Public
have fulfilled our
responsibilities in respect of professional ethics. We believe that

Accountants and we other ethical

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

III. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of the greatest significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1 ISR K B TR

1. Impairment of trade receivables

B S 7 A T I

Key audit matter

AT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HubZ 2023 4 12 H 31 H, gIE%EERN
GO IR R M R L. 3 TR, YR
R TH 6 %E F% 98,2890.17 B T, LR ME /5 4
Ry 2,117.28 B on, JEUSCHR KR T (EE &
96,171.89 5yt . HR T 1 E 14 & 2 L ] 92
e, A SR RS Bl 42 i m] B e vk i ]
M 45 A2 SRR W I IS R R B iR Ay R,
25 I TR 167 JEE S AR 11 T S (] 2 T e 4 ]
PR T HIA,

to the
of

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company, as at 31

As set out in the Note V.3 ,

consolidated financial statements

December 2023, trade receivables balance

amounted to RMB 982.8917 million,
provision for bad debts amounted to
RMB21.1728 million and the -carrying

A AT B AL PR

D)7 B S5 7 RSP s 1 A L U A T [ WA AP
AR 1) P S 5

)7 L S I AR A AT TR P AR B 25 R B e
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3) % B T S SRR YE A ) B SOIR FOE IR A,
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WRRAK, 78128 TS &5 G B USUIR AR SR A S Dl & Al
(45 FH LR 0 DA B 3 AR 2R 48 07 SR Y00 1 TR 43 b 5 B P A
TEIE AR R, MR SR BUB SR RE HIE N &
HMES

pezen

E]

Sy G IR MR IG Ditn A, SFEAE LS IR YE M R
(& .

The main procedures we performed are as follows:

1) tested the management’s internal control relating to the
daily management of trade receivables and assessment on
their recoverability as at the end of the period;

2) reviewed the relevant consideration and objective
evidence of impairment test on trade receivables by the
management, and attached importance to the management’s
adequate identification of impaired items;

3) selected samples of trade receivables for which bad debts
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amount of trade receivables amounted to
RMB961.7189 million. As

amount of trade receivables accounts for a

the carrying
relatively high proportion of assets, there
would be a material impact on the financial
statements if the trade receivables cannot be
recovered on schedule or fail to be recovered.
Therefore, we regard the recoverability of
trade receivables as a key audit matter.

was separately provided, and reviewed the basis and
reasonableness of the management’s estimation on the
expected lifetime loss;

4) as for trade receivables with provision made for bad
debts based on credit risk characteristic groups by
management, reviewed the expected credit loss rate
appraised by the management after taking account of,
amongst others, the historical default profile of trade
receivables, current credit risk exposure and the forecast
analysis on future economic condition, and reviewed the
reasonableness of the provision for credit impairment of
trade receivables accordingly;

5) taking into account the checks on the subsequent
recovery of amounts, evaluated the appropriateness of the

provision for bad debts determined by the management.

2RI BEEIR

Impairment of inventories

RS R T S I

Key audit matter

AT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

kA 2023 4F 12 H 31 H, WiAISEgEEAN
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As set out in the Note V .7 Inventories to the
consolidated  financial  statements  of
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company, as at 31
December 2023, the balance of inventories
amounted to RMB780.2029 million, the
provision for impairment of inventories
amounted to RMB4.3612 million and the
carrying amount of inventories amounted to
RMB775.8416 million. Inventories are
measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The Management
determined the provision for impairment of
inventories based on the stock age and the
level of approaching expiry date, taking into
consideration the actual sales of inventories.

AT I L EEF SR -

1) IEVE BLRE SAP R &7 BHAF B A RO BN TR IR ] (14
I N AR 5

2) PUTHENEREY, WEAEINBE ORI
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FEEAT TR, d A w25 B U AE 180
RN HHE#RE H AR B 7 & e e BB E
A

4) WA RA BRI E /IR, IR & Bk (EE
fli AT S 15 YR

The main audit procedures we performed are as follows:

1) tested the management’s internal control relating to the
validity period and stock-in time of inventories in the SAP
system;

2) performed the inventory-taking supervision procedure to
check the quantity and condition of inventories;

3) obtained the list of inventories of year-end stock age and
approaching expiry date, to conduct analytical review on the
inventories in storage for a longer period of time; checked if
the Company made full provision for impairment of
inventories which will expire within 180 days and unsold
prior to the reporting date;

4) obtained the table of subsequent sales performance of
inventories as at the end of period, to test the accuracy of
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We regard the impairment of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the
amount of inventories and the involvement of
significant judgment by the management.
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calculation of such provision for impairment of inventories.
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

The Management of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Management”) is responsible for
the other information. The other information comprises the
information covered in the 2023 annual report of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company, other than the financial statements

and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
should there be any material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

V. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE MANAGEMENT
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with the requirements under the Accounting Standards for
Enterprises, and for the design, performance and maintenance of
necessary internal control which renders the financial statements

free from any material misstatement caused by fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is

responsible for assessing the ability of Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, the matters relating to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
intends to liquidate

Management  either Charmacy
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Pharmaceutical Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of Charmacy Pharmaceutical
Company.

VI. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our audit opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. Meanwhile, we also perform

the following work:

(1)Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overriding of

internal control.

(2)Obtain an understanding of internal control in relation to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

(3)Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
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disclosures made by the Management.

(4)Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of
the going concern basis of assumption and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists in
relation to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, the Accounting Standards require us to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the relevant disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
express our qualified opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
available information up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

(5)Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

(6)Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Company, to express an audit
opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit, and

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
deficiencies worthy of concern in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant professional
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate
with them on all the relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, relevant precautionary measures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of the
greatest significance in the audit of the financial statements of
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the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or
regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our audit report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants

(Special General Partnership)

Chinese Certified Public Accountant : (Project partner)
Pan Chuanyun

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Zhuang linbin

28 March 2024

Beijing, China
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A AR Unit: RMB
2023812831 H (202812431 H
I5H Item H{3E Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
WENE - Current assets:
B Ee Monetary funds Z Vi 634,197,229.09 492,673,555.44
5 PG A Trading financial assets
1A AR 2 Derivative financial assets
R Bills receivables V2 3,633,001.16 5,329,945.37
JESHR K Trade receivables # V3 961,718,850.06 844,442,544.71
JEWGK T & Account receivable financing V4 15,483,006.79
TEATRIE Prepayments Vs 382,948,695.69 388,217,993.17
HoAth K Other receivables Ve 12,075,916.66 96,654,746.27
o SRR Incl: Interest receivable
JEUS R Dividends receivable

HONR A ih  FE Buying back the sale of financial assets
e Inventories V7 775,841,635.16 586,853,688.43
& [F G Contract assets
FAREAE Assets held for sale
—HENBA R AR R B A Non-current assets due within one year
AR B A Other current assets Ve 41,584,593.72 32,705,868.93

WENEE &R Total current assets 2,811,999,921.54 2,462,361,349.11
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2023412 H 31 H

2022 12 A31H

IEH Item Wit Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
EIF‘EEEJ?E : Non-current assets:

fERER & Debt investment
HAh & Other debt investment
TR SR Long-term accounts receivable
R & Long-term equity investments
HABRER TR Other equity instrument investments
HoAth AE B2 ik i Other non-current financial assets
% M s Hh Investment properties
[i] 5 4 7 Fixed assets V9 294,721,220.12 276,489,505.37
@ T Construction in progress
1 FAHE & P Right-of-use assets Z Vo 33,826,415.92 17,590,155.87
B Intangible assets #Z VI 76,722,809.78 80,857,328.57
Bl 532 tH Development expenditure
(R Goodwill Z V2 6,024,104.16 6,024,104.16
R EH Long-term expenses to be amortized Z VI3 16,978,756.37 16,338,602.59
TELE T3 FUA 7 Deferred income tax assets V4 7,382,648.71 6,803,910.58
HAh BB & FE Other non-current assets

JEREVE E AR Total non-current assets 435,655,955.06 404,103,607.14

&L Total assets 3,247,655,876.60 2,866,464,956.25
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20234£ 12 H31 H

20224£ 12 H31 H

HH Item W&t Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TEIELE: Current liabilities:
SRR Short-term borrowings # V16 587,994,113.46 513,251,685.23
2 Gy 1 4 A A% Trading financial liabilities
AT A i & 6% Derivative financial liabilities
JEAT 58 Bills payables AR 936,487,754.65 876,775,586.87
JEA IR Trade payables Vs 659,073,566.35 632,791,945.43
TRBGHKIE advance receipts
&I f il Contract liabilities V19 19,490,768.05 13,528,877.69
JEAS B T 7 T Salaries payable to employees 7V 20 9,688,286.53 13,346,444.66
JEAC L B Tax payables & Vo2 55,950,428.80 94,155,794.37
HoAth A 3K Other payables # V22 341,051,900.01 105,824,075.61
Horpe JEAFE Incl: Interest payable
JEAT R F Dividends payable
FA T Al Liabilities held for sale
Non-current liabilities due within one
— 4 N B AR AR B F Z V23 6,587,383.36 4,154,632.64
year
HoAth R By & 6% Other current liabilities Z V24 2,533,799.78 1,758,754.11
REIRE ST Total current liabilities 2,618,858,000.99 2,255,587,796.61
E|i =08 Non-current liabilities:
IR Long-term borrowings
JEAT Bonds payable
Hrpe BRKR Incl: preferred stock
KA 1 Perpetual note
=V Lease liabilities # V25 30,390,117.80 15,754,772.11
RIS Long-term payables
R AT B T Long-term payroll payable
THET &% Accruals and provisions
B ZEY 3 Deferred income
IRIE PSR 6% Deferred income tax liabilities Z V14 600,901.51 60,256.92
oAb AR B A Other non-current liabilities
FREBAEEET Total non-current liabilities 30,991,019.31 15,815,029.03
AEEsT Total liabilities 2,649,849,020.30 2,271,402,825.64
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20234£12 H31 H

2022412 H31H

JHE Item M7t Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
B RAE Shareholders’ equity:
JieAs Share capital 7 V26 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
HoAh b 25 T A other equity instruments
Hr: Bk Incl: preferred stock
KR Perpetual note
AN Capital reserve V27 278,990,829.04 278,990,829.04
W AR Less: Treasury stock
HoAth s B Wi s Other comprehensive income
BBk Special reserve
KR AT Surplus reserve V28 29,661,138.05 28,186,051.87
— i Ly e General Risk Preparation
Ko EFIE Unallocated profits &V 29 181,154,889.21 179,885,249.70
Total equity attributable to the
BERBAT R RERAET 597,806,856.30 595,062,130.61
shareholders of parent company
B RRE Minority interests
BREREF Total shareholders’ interests 597,806,856.30 595,062,130.61
Total liabilities and shareholders’
BB RS AT 3,247,655,876.60 2,866,464,956.25

interests
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Bz AR¥IT Unit: RMB
2023412 31 H 2022412 A 31 H
IHH Item MIZE Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
WENE Current assets:

BB s Monetary funds 217,959,848.86 181,286,727.19
5 G A Trading financial assets
FTA Al Derivative financial assets
B R Bills receivables 3,633,001.16 5,329,945.37
B Trade receivables 0 XIV 1 371,877,150.38 297,092,712.19
JESGK IH R & Account receivable financing 347,167.69
FEAT K IH Prepayments 86,577,404.76 158,331,601.29
Fofh R Other receivables 10 XIV 2 413,652,378.56 253,122,752.11
Horpe RIS Incl: Interest receivable

JAE A R Dividends receivable
peaay Inventories 173,668,920.22 139,942,500.18
A& Contract assets
FEEAE Assets held for sale
—FE NI SRR A Non-current assets due within one year
AR B A Other current assets 4,606,060.56 4,268,823.92

NENE ESFT Total current assets 1,271,974,764.50 1,039,722,229.94
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20234FE12 H31 H

2022412 H31H

IHH Item W&t Note
31 December 20232 31 December 2022
JeRENE E Non-current assets:

fERER & Debt investment
HABAERER & Other debt investment
RHEIGEK Long-term accounts receivable
RIABRRER S Long-term equity investments 4/ XIV 3 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
oAb fE T B Other equity instrument investments
HAth AR Bh 4 il Other non-current financial assets
¥ v b5 g Investment properties 28,535,293.33 29,569,209.71
[i] 5 ¥ Fixed assets 240,790,086.36 253,902,402.68
EE TR Construction in progress
1 FAHE & 7 Right-of-use assets 31,117,446.71 17,002,489.72
WA Intangible assets 62,283,601.37 65,684,429.18
Bl St Development expenditure
(R Goodwill
RIATEBE E H Long-term expenses to be amortized 13,603,674.56 15,995,400.33
TR AE Fr 1R E Deferred income tax assets 1,789,461.21 1,670,861.67
HAh BB & FE Other non-current assets

JEREIEE A Total non-current assets 598,098,415.78 603,803,645.53

BT Total assets 1,870,073,180.28 1,643,525,875.47
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20234£12 H31 H

2022412 H31 H

HH Item M5t Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TEIELE: Current liabilities:
SR Short-term borrowings 334,132,918.32 277,892,626.55
PR e Trading financial liabilities
AT A G & 6 Derivative financial liabilities
JEAT SR B Bills payables 380,317,525.82 386,038,421.58
JEATIRK Trade payables 164,463,736.49 126,649,871.72
TR IE advance receipts
&I f il Contract liabilities 18,468,535.71 5,164,785.95
JRE A I8 T S T Salaries payable to employees 5,326,060.59 6,811,174.30
JERC L B Tax payables 11,204,381.89 30,633,186.57
HoAth M 3K Other payables 452,944,179.32 289,848,245.16
Horbre MEATRLE Incl: Interest payable
JEAT R Dividends payable
FATE Al Liabilities held for sale
—E N B AR B A S Non-current liabilities due within one year 6,039,021.93 3,886,487.30
HoAth R By & 6% Other current liabilities 2,400,909.68 671,422.17
REEEET Total current liabilities 1,375,297,269.75 1,127,596,221.30
JemEN A& Non-current liabilities:
IR Long-term borrowings
JEAT Bonds payable
Hrpe BRKR Incl: preferred stock
KA 1 Perpetual note
FE A Lease liabilities 28,083,193.16 15,387,798.55
AT R Long-term payables
A AT B T Long-term payroll payable
THET &t Accruals and provisions
JEZEYS 35 Deferred income
I SE T 455 & Deferred income tax liabilities
HA AR E) & Other non-current liabilities
ERBA B Total non-current liabilities 28,083,193.16 15,387,798.55
AEEsT Total liabilities 1,403,380,462.91 1,142,984,019.85
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#% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

20234F 12 H31 H

20224£ 12 H31 H

HE Item W&t Note
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
BRAER: Shareholders’ equity:
JieAs Share capital 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
HoAh b 25 T A other equity instruments
Hr: Bk Incl: preferred stock
KR Perpetual note
AN Capital reserve 282,204,487.50 282,204,487.50
W AR Less: Treasury stock
HoAth s B Wi s Other comprehensive income
BBk Special reserve
KR AT Surplus reserve 29,661,138.05 28,186,051.87
Ko EFIE Unallocated profits 46,827,091.82 82,151,316.25
BRI AR Total shareholders’ interests 466,692,717.37 500,541,855.62
BEMR R AT Total liabilities and shareholders’ interests 1,870,073,180.28 1,643,525,875.47
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year 2023

Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Az NR¥EIT Unit: RMB
2023 £ 2022 4
HE Item M7t Note
2023 2022
—. B¥AKA 1. Total operating revenue 7V 30 4,403,633,478.08 |  4,175,279,039.20
LU ¢ /0N Incl:Revenue # V30 4,403,633,478.08 | 4,175,279,039.20
. BEARS II. Total operating cost 4,332,543,936.81 4,113,291,002.67
Horpre E3REA Incl: Operating cost # V30 4,110,889,553.80 |  3,903,521,213.18
e &K m Taxes and surcharges # V31 9,303,097.63 10,073,659.26
kS di] Selling expenses # V32 122,467,089.60 112,831,003.98
HHEH Management expenses Z# Vo33 47,532,938.44 49,736,270.40
g & Research & development expenses
W% & Finance costs 7V o34 42,351,257.34 37,128,855.85
Hrb: FEEM Incl: Interest expenses 7V o34 40,790,342.89 35,073,142.27
FIE SN Interest income 7V o34 4,301,317.10 4,601,780.21
hne HAd s Add: Other income Z V35 11,263.47 371,738.94
B GHERL (-] 955D Investment income (“-” for loss) Z V36 -100,000.00
o B R SEAIE B SRR Incl: investment income from associates
B e and joint ventures
ASH 6 A S50 1 < 5 E 4% Financial assets measured at
-100,000.00
IERERRIR 7 amortized cost are derecognized earnings
[ fniicas GGHZREL [-] 953D Exchange gains(“-” for loss)
OB GRREL T-] 9% Frequent exposure to hedge gains (-
b5 71p) for loss)
A RfEEEEYE R -] Gain on change in fair value (“-” for
SR loss)
ERREIRSL GRLLL -] 50IA
- Impairment loss of credit (“- for loss) Z V37 -492,054.34 -3,530,457.97
BRERMEHEL GHKUL [-] 5RIA
s Impairment loss of assets (“-” for loss) V38 -4,361,225.47 -3,148,303.99
BB GHKUL (-] 5RIA
s Gains on disposal of assets (“-” for loss) 7 V39 47,339.87 65,839,056.46
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#% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

2023 £EFE 2022 £EFE
IHH Item Hi2E Note
2023 2022
=, BENE OBHEU [-] $REFD I11. Operating profit (“-” for loss) 66,194,864.80 121,520,069.97
e M Add: Non-operating revenue 7V 40 1,322,095.37 906,412.11
W S Less: Non-operating expenses 4V o4l 97,396.20 372,783.97
MU, FIEAEEE GEHEMAEU -] 3R
J IV. Total profit (“-” for total loss) 67,419,563.97 122,053,698.11
F)
e TSR Less: Income tax expense H V42 16,074,838.28 31,581,741.59

T, ERE GRERL (-] $EED

V. Net profit (“-” for net loss)

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

(=) ERBRFEEIH

(I) By continuity of operations

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

LAFR IR GRS L, -]
SRS

1.Net profit from continuing operation(“-” for

net loss)

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

2 AR A GREEHEL (-]
SRS

%

2.Net profit from discontinued operation(

for net loss)

(D) BERGHRRI S

(IT) By ownership

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

157 B T B 2 ) PR 5 B
R T-] 583510

1.Net profit attributable to the shareholders of

parent company (“-” for net loss)

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

2 /bW RS (FRESIRLL [-] 9%
2 ¢7ID)

2.Profit of loss of minority shareholders (“-”

for net loss)
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2023 £ERE 2022 4EFE
IHH Item W&t Note
2023 2022

73~ iz S KRR

VI. Net of tax of other comprehensive

income

S5 2 ) B R At A WAL RS O RS
R

Net of tax of other comprehensive
income attributable to the shareholders of

parent company

(=) PREESBERRENI MRS
L&

(I) Other comprehensive income
not subject to reclassification to profit

or loss in future

LEFEHERE Z o 5l S 8

1. Remeasure the change in the set

benefit plan

2 HERSVE T AN RETEHA 5 A Ho A A B Ui

2. Other comprehensive income

under the equity method that cannot be

i
converted into profit or loss
N ) B 3. Change in fair value of other
3 At RS TR A A AR ) o )
equity mstrument investments
o B 4. Changes in the fair value of the
4438 B 55 R~ SIS 2200 ) o
enterprise's own credit risk
5304 5. Others
. (IT) Other comprehensive income
(2 WESBERESHH G
5 to be reclassified into profit or loss in

future

AR T2 M B 22

1. Other comprehensive income of
convertible profit or loss under the equity

method

2 A GERE B A S 52 )

2. Changes in the fair value of other

debt investments

3. b PE ) SR AN A AR i e

3. The amount of financial assets
reclassified into other comprehensive

income

4 FLAb FEORE £ 88 3 IR B 1

4. Other debt investment credit

impairment provisions

5B ENGH (B EN
E R NEC RIS P D)

5. Cash flow hedging reserve
(effective part of cash flow hedging

profit or loss)

65N W B HRAR AT 22 A

6. Conversion difference of foreign

currency statement

7. 344t

7. Others

S5 0 BB SR At A WAL RS O RS
R

Net other comprehensive income
after-tax which belongs to minority

shareholders
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#% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

JRH

Item

M5t Note

2023 £
2023

2022
2022

£, SEkEan

VII. Total comprehensive income

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

S Bk 2 ) JB R A WA A AR

Total comprehensive income
attributable to the shareholders of parent

company

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

S 7 /0 OB SR A WAL B AR

Total comprehensive income

attributable to minority shareholders

I\ BB VIIL. Earnings per share:
(=) HeARmRka Ge/go (I) Basic earnings per share 0.4754 0.8377
(=) Wl Ge/go (I1) Diluted earnings per share 0.4754 0.8377
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Income Statement of the Parent Company

For the year 2023

Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

Bz AR Unit: RMB
V=3 2023 £ 2022 ERE
HE Item
Note 2023 2022
—. BEKRA L. Operating revenue +VY XIV 4 1,793,152,127.98 1,645,219,775.53
B: BERE Less: operating cost 104 X1V 4 1,633,800,015.12 1,489,877,698.41
A4 K B hn Taxes and surcharges 4,979,614.53 5,990,773.52
95 B Selling expenses 82,219,724.89 76,106,383.24
2 H Management expenses 23,815,267.23 26,623,622.68
4% 2 A Research & development expenses
A5 B Finance costs 28,390,172.24 26,665,810.02
Hoep IR Including: Interest expenses 26,478,133.74 24,036,069.17
FLEYN Interest income 1,871,620.15 1,361,208.39
hne HAd s Add:  Other gains 4,478.89 61,926.36
Bt GRKLL (-] R
Investment income (“-” for loss)
7ID)
Ho HEECENGEAEN Incl: investment income from
BE associates and joint ventures
DU R A 512 1 4 i 3 Financial assets measured at
JEE ¢ L TERR I B amortized cost are derecognized earnings
RO E IS GRKDL -] Frequent exposure to hedge gains (“-”
SR for loss)
AR GRKRRL - Gain on change in fair value (“-” for
1 SRIEED loss)
EHBIEIRR GRKLL -] 5%
Impairment loss of credit(““-” for loss) 484,819.72 -2,537,541.57
HF))
BERMEAEL BRU [-] 5
Impairment loss of assets(“-” for loss) -906,192.54 -679,905.59
HF))
R E A (AL -] 58
5 Gains on disposal of assets(“-” for loss) 41,783.12 76,913,023.85
A1)

=L BREFE OBRU -] SIEFD

II. Operating profit (“-” for loss)

19,572,223.16

93,712,990.71

ne B EIMIN Add: Non-operating revenue 180,790.85 567,928.37
W BN Less: Non-operating expenses 60,688.77 184,138.21
=, FE4AEE GBBRAED -] 9 I11. Total profit (“-” for total loss)
19,692,325.24 94,096,780.87
5
R TSR E A Less: Income tax expense 4,941,463.49 23,516,256.39
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#% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

ir:3 2023 fEE 2022 ERE
HE Item
Note 2023 2022
V0. SBFIE (BEEHEL (-] $BESD IV. Net profit (“-” for net loss) 14,750,861.75 70,580,524.48

() FrACEH AR GPREALL -
SRS

[

(I).Net profit from continuing operation (“-

” for net loss)

14,750,861.75

70,580,524.48

(2D #abEH A GPERLL -
SRS

[

(I).Net profit from discontinued operation

“-” for net loss)

T, HAtsz Sl B ER

V. Net of tax of other comprehensive income

(—) AREERIERE R AL S
(&

(I) Other comprehensive income not
subject to reclassification to profit or loss in

future

LIHr R R i At A D) EH

1. Remeasure the change in the set benefit

plan

2 HERSVE T A HETEHA 25 1 Ho At A il

2. Other comprehensive income under the

equity method that cannot be converted into

profit or loss
N ‘ 3. Change in fair value of other equity
3 AR A T AR A fo R A 5 E)
instrument investments
" N 4. Changes in the fair value of the
4403 E BB U 2 50 TR A S )
enterprise's own credit risk
5.3tk 5. Others
() S 43 4R A 1 A &R AUk (IT) Other comprehensive income to be
ol reclassified into profit or loss in future

LHERSIE T AR RS A F b A Ui it

1. Other comprehensive income of

convertible profit or loss under the equity method

2 HABMEAE B A R (EE 2 )

2. Changes in the fair value of other debt

investments

3. Rl PE T MR A At AR i 2
R

3. The amount of financial assets

reclassified into other comprehensive income

4 FLAb FEORE £ 28 13 IR B 1

4. Other debt investment credit

impairment provisions

SEEHEENHMN (Rehasl
R A B

5. Cash flow hedging reserve (effective

part of cash flow hedging profit or loss)

65N W B FRAR AT 22 A

6. Conversion difference of foreign

currency statement

7.5 A

7. Others

N~ R EAE

VI. Total comprehensive income

14,750,861.75

70,580,524.48

-118 -



FHREMER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

FERE R

202 3 ANNUAL REPORT

20234 For the year 2023
A AL AISEEEZENR A R A A Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Az NR¥T Unit: RMB
2023 £ 2022 £
JEH Item Hit Note
2023 2022
— RERHELENRERE: I. Cash flow from operating activities:
) Cash received from sales of goods and rendering
SHEETR L SRS RN B 4 3,790,827,966.19 3,522,129,057.65
of services
WSO A BRI Tax refund received 2,373,277.71
e oAt BRAS 25 1 B B R B4 Other cash received relating to operating activities | 7 143 64,545,887.85 172,081,792.29
REBFHBEMANDGT Sub-total of cash inflow from operating activities 3,855,373,854.04 3,696,584,127.65
- Cash paid for purchases of goods and receiving
WEE R 2B TIIRE 3,605,378,643.65 3,284,071,704.48
services
_ Cash paid to employees and on behalf of
SCATARIE T VAR R TS B B 93,023,987.18 75,731,717.42
employees
SCAHHR) A5 TE AR B Cash paid for various taxes 58,861,950.64 38,389,843.79
AT HAR BRAS VR B A B B 4 Other cash paid relating to operating activities 7# V43 194,646,917.70 254,340,557.50
RBFEHBEWH DT Sub-total of cash outflow from operating activities 3,951,911,499.17 3,652,533,823.19
REBEHELENFESERETHR Net cash flow from operating activities 7# V43 -96,537,645.13 44,050,304.46
=\ BEEREANRERE: II. Cash flow from investing activities:
W TR R R B Recover cash received on investments
BAFHR B W B i B 4 Cash received from investment gains
B B E A MG ERIANE | Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
. ) . 80,186,100.00 80,351,000.00
I RE IR A B VR AR intangible assets and other long-term assets
BE B AT RIS S AR | Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries and
T &g other business units
A3 At B S TR B A B A IR 4 Other cash received relating to investing activities | 7 143
BEBEHTREMANDGT Sub-total of cash inflow from investing activities 80,186,100.00 80,351,000.00
TR e B RE . ML EFEMIEAME | Cash paid for acquisition and construction of fixed
. ) 40,848,0644.46 8,588,536.73
W& E S AT IR 4 assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets
B AT B 4 Cash paid for investments
IS A A R A 2 2 BAT SAF /0 | Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and
T4 other business units
A FA B AR B A B B 4 Other cash paid relating to investing activities 7# V43
BB RGBSR H DT Sub-total of cash outflow from investing activities 40,848,644.46 8,588,536.73
BREEHELENRERERR Net cash flow from investing activities 39,337,455.54 71,762,463.27
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Bl -CHMEI

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

Wit 2023 £ 2022 4EBE
HE Item
Note 2023 2022
=, BREYEENBRERE: I11. Cash flow from financing activities:
WS R 1 B 4 Absorb cash received from investments
Horp, FARRYBCDERFILE Y | Of which: the subsidiary absorbs cash received
BB 4 from minority shareholders' investments
IASAE AT R i 3R Cash received from borrowings 836,600,000.00 825,887,076.38
OB FiAh B R A B R 4 Other cash received relating to financing activities | 7 1 43 2,496,052,916.88 2,033,068,697.50
EBRFEHHSHENDET Sub-total of cash inflow from financing activities 3,332,652,916.88 2,858,955,773.88
TR AR A T S AT R 4 Cash paid for repayment of debts 762,300,000.00 1,070,916,359.46
SECRER) . FEEEE A RS BT SC AT | Cash payment for distribution of dividends and
75,500,263.17 28,439,933.69
B4 profits or interest payment
i FATAHE D BATEARL | Of which: dividends and profits paid by
Fl. FIH subsidiaries to minority shareholders
STA HAt B A A I8 R Other cash paid relating to financing activities V43 2,393,590,786.00 1,950,811,039.46
SRFHBTEEHRB DaT Sub-total of cash outflow from financing activities 3,231,391,049.17 3,050,167,332.61
ERFYEENBREHRETH Net cash flow from financing activities 101,261,867.71 -191,211,558.73
., ERSEHNTEERRESLEBYN IV. Effect of change in exchange rates on cash and
5,730.90 33,475.19
24 cash equivalents
i\ REXKBRESEEYFH N V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 44,067,409.02 -75,365,315.81
. Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
hne WIRIBL G R G B R 7V 44 68,861,408.60 144,226,724.41
of the period
R VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
A~ BRBRERBRESEEAMHRE V44 112,928,817.62 68,861,408.60

period
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ANNUAL REPORT

20234 For the year 2023
A AL BISSEEZE R A IR A A Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
A AR Unit: RMB
Vifi3 2023 4EFE 2022 4ERE
RH Item Note 2023 2022
— REFEHEENRENE: I. Cash flow from operating activities:

SHET i RO B B Bl

Cash received from sales of goods and rendering
of services

1,847,297,971.81

1,468,232,962.05

W B AR B i

Tax refund received

W28 EL A BRLA 4 U B I B <

Other cash received relating to operating
activities

1,703,513,029.84

1,538,715,600.06

RBEHHETWA DT

Sub-total of cash inflow from operating activities

3,550,811,001.65

3,006,948,562.11

W R PRSI BLE

Cash paid for purchases of goods and receiving
services

1,827,686,086.94

1,397,355,962.32

SO AR DA RS2 B <6

Cash paid to employees and on behalf of
employees

50,376,278.59

42,976,740.46

AT TE R B Cash paid for various taxes 36,637,602.07 15,379,438.63
AT HAB B S TR B AT B ) B Other cash paid relating to operating activities 1,735,336,216.26 1,468,174,313.61
KBFHHE LR B Det Sub-total of cash outflow from operating activities 3,650,036,183.86 2,923,886,455.02
REBFYEENRERETH Net cash flow from operating activities -99,225,182.21 83,062,107.09
=\ BEERELANRERE: II. Cash flow from investing activities:
WS ET 4 3 A3 o B 4 Recover cash received on investments
A R W R 1 B 4 Cash received from investment gains

s B 2 . R E AL R

U FE VA Y <6 i A

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

80,061,800.00

80,054,000.00

B

BB T A Fe A S EEAT R
T

Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries and
other business units

e HAh B IR B0 A R 4 B

Other cash received relating to investing
activities

BEEHHERMN /DG

Sub-total of cash inflow from investing activities

80,061,800.00

80,054,000.00

R E B . MR EA R

W pE SO I

Cash paid for acquisition and construction of
fixed assets, intangible assets and other long-term
assets

2,858,871.35

7,769,398.19

PRSI BG

Cash paid for investments

B

AT ) B St SE BT SO AT A
T

Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and
other business units

SCATHAB S E B A B 0 3

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

BEEHH STt

Sub-total of cash outflow from investing activities

2,858,871.35

7,769,398.19

BRENELENHESRETH

Net cash flow from investing activities

77,202,928.65

72,284,601.81
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g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

JRH

Item

H,

Note

E&.

2023 £EFE
2023

2022 4EFE
2022

=, BREVELNRSRE:

III1. Cash flow from financing activities:

W B B WA B 3 <

Absorb cash received from investments

A S A B

Cash received from borrowings

403,600,000.00

412,400,000.00

e Hfth B3 T B T ) B

Other cash received relating to financing
activities

667,491,713.27

623,906,595.92

SREHHEMNDE

Sub-total of cash inflow from financing activities

1,071,091,713.27

1,036,306,595.92

IR BB AT B

Cash paid for repayment of debts

347,400,000.00

583,510,408.36

Sy BRI I A A AT Y
Bl

Cash payment for distribution of dividends and
profits or interest payment

66,656,416.89

19,853,169.90

SR At SRS T B B 0 B

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

634,644,418.38

593,950,813.37

SRFHTEEHRB DaT Sub-total of cash outflow from financing activities 1,048,700,835.27 1,197,314,391.63

ERFYEENBREHRETH Net cash flow from financing activities 22,390,878.00 -161,007,795.71

. ERSIHNREKRESEEDHN I\A Effec.t of change in exchange rates on cash and 5,730.90 33,475.19
-4 cash equivalents

i\ REXKBRESEEYFH N V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 374,355.34 -5,627,611.62

1| O CETIB RS SURGER kY] -3 ]

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period

58,281,002.69

63,908,614.31

N BIRRERREGHEYRH

VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

58,655,358.03

58,281,002.69
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s
Equity

For the year 2023

Unit: RMB

Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

2023 £EJE

2023

JRH

Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company

) SETNS e S

Item

BeA
Share capital

BAAH

Capital reserve

BERAH
Surplus
reserve

g Wil
Unallocated
profits

Nt
Subtotal

DBR

B
Minority
interests

B AR
Total
shareholders’
equity

—. EEERBE

I. Closing balance for last year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

28,186,051.87

179,885,249.70|

595,062,130.61

595,062,130.61

e frat B R

Add: changes in accounting policies

IS 22 8 5 1E

Correction of previous errors

[ —F2 T 2 E 0F
Business combinations under
common control

At
Others

= REEPRE

II. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

28,186,051.87

179,885,249.70|

595,062,130.61

595,062,130.61

=, ZEHBBSHER BRI (-] $E
2Ip)

I11. Movement for the year (“-” for decrease)

1,475,086.18

1,269,639.51

2,744,725.69

2,744,725.69

() FEEIRaR AR
(I) Total comprehensive income

51,344,725.69

51,344,725.69)

51,344,725.69

(=) BB R BA
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and
capital reduction

Wi Es IR Biiil 4
1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary
shares

2 Fo AR s T HFFA HHRNEA
2. Capital contribution by holders of
other equity instruments

3B STATRE NI R AE 2 I 42 AR
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4. Atk
4. Others

(=) FiE8C
(IIT) Profit allocation

1,475,086.18

-50,075,086.18

-48,600,000.00,

-48,600,000.00

L3RI Bk A T

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

1,475,086.18

-1,475,086.18

2. FREHR S E A

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

-48,600,000.00

-48,600,000.00,

-48,600,000.00

3R A 2 e

3. Allocation to shareholders

4 HAth
4. Others

(Y B SRORE B P9l
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’
equity

LA N T A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share
capital

2. B ER A TR G A

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share
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2023 %
2023
BRI R ) N
=H Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company d’%gﬁ H{i%ﬁf]ﬁﬁ
&3 BARNTE BEAM | R EAE /NEE Minority | shareholders’

Surplus Unallocated Subtotal interests equity
reserve profits

Item

Share capital | Capital reserve

capital
3.8 R A TSR IR
3. Surplus reserve for making up losses
43 E R ot vt B B AR AL B A7 s
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried
forward to retained earnings
5. A A A VA 4 R AU
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings
6. 344t
6. Others
(D IR
(V) Specific reserve
LA
1. Appropriation for the year
2R
2. Use in the year
(CAPRE:
(VI) Others

A, j:ﬂiﬂij{ﬁ%%ﬁ 108,000,000.00, 278,990,829.04| 29,661,138.05(181,154,889.21| 597,806,856.30) 597,806,856.30
IV. Closing balance for the year
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2022 EEE
2022
R R \ .
HH Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company ﬂzgﬁ &ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁ
;&3 BEARNE B | ARABAE et Minority | shareholders’

Surplus Unallocated Subtotal interests equity
reserve profits

Item

Share capital | Capital reserve

i J:.£|5$§k§g§ﬁ 108,000,000.00| 278,990,829.04| 21,080,432.34| 96,030,718.25| 504,101,979.63 504,101,979.63
1. Closing balance for last year

st E&%iﬁ . . 47,567.08 440,627.38 488,194.46 488,194.46
Add: changes in accounting policies
(IR SEZE =T ans
Correction of previous errors
[F]—#i RSO
Business combinations under
common control
Foft
Others
= j&ﬂ?ﬂimﬁggﬁ 108,000,000.00, 278,990,829.04| 21,127,999.42| 96,471,345.63| 504,590,174.09 504,590,174.09
I1. Opening balance for the year
=, REWMBREESH BDLL -] S
L21b) 7,058,052.45| 83,413,904.07| 90,471,956.52 90,471,956.52
I11. Movement for the year (“-” for decrease)
ISR TR
() GaRamER 90,471,956.52]  90.471,956.52 90,471,956.52
(I) Total comprehensive income
(2D BRI B A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and
capital reduction
1B R BN IR
1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary
shares
2 HARE R T AR ERNEA
2. Capital contribution by holders of
other equity instruments
3B SAS EE N i AR 2 1) R
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity
4. JuAl
4. Others

(=) A
(111) Profit allocation 7,058,052.45| -7,058,052.45

= I\
1 S A7 7,058,052.45| -7,058,052.45
1. Appropriation of surplus reserve
2 AR I — R o Y A
2. Appropriation of general risk provision
3B R K4 BT
3. Allocation to shareholders
4. $Ath
4. Others
QIO B SRR i P 0
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’
equity
1A A TR A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share
capital
2. BR A TR i A
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share
capital
3. BB A TR 1R
3. Surplus reserve for making up losses
4.7% 0 S afa T H SA BN AR A R AU 2R
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried
forward to retained earnings
5. HoAth i A A 2 A R AE R B
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings
6.4t
6. Others
() BUIRREA
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2022 £
2022
BER AR BRI
] 7> A
#H Equity attributable to shareholders of parent company DRUBRR | B it
fem RIAR | RATAN B | o
&3 BARNTE S ‘Ll‘ Unallocated /NEE Minority | shareholders’
Share capital | Capital reserve urprus naflocate Subtotal interests equity
reserve profits
(V) Specific reserve
LAEEARHL
1. Appropriation for the year
2 A
2. Use in the year
() HAth
(VI) Others
W, AAEEARER 108,000,000.00[ 278,990,829.04 28,186,051.87|179,885,249.70| 595,062,130.61 595,062,130.61

IV. Closing balance for the year
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Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity of the Parent

Company
20234 For the year 2023
Ami| BT BISEZEERAAIRAT  Prepared by: Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Bz AR Unit: RMB
2023 £
2023
. Bk BALH EHAW | kpmpm | BOREREH
. otal
Share Capital Surplus Unallocated hareholders’
capital reserve reserve profits share 0.
equity

—. LEFERGH

I. Closing balance for last year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

28,186,051.87

82,151,316.25

500,541,855.62

. EEBREE

Add: changes in accounting policies

AP 2286 5 1E

Correction of previous errors

oAt
Others

=\ EEEYIGH

I1. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

28,186,051.87

82,151,316.25

500,541,855.62

=, KERBEYEHE (WHU -] 5E
1))

II1. Movement for the year (“-” for decrease)

1,475,086.18

-35,324,224.43

-33,849,138.25

(—) AFEI A
(I) Total comprehensive income

14,750,861.75

14,750,861.75

(=) BRBNFRA G A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and
capital reduction

W35 PR Biiil 4
1. Shareholders’ contribution to
ordinary shares

2 AR R TR AERANE A
2. Capital contribution by holders of
other equity instruments

3B SR NI SR AE AR 1 42 AT
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4. H A
4. Others
pu—y .3l N
Elﬂ))Pi)inl%i:ﬁfEation 1,475,086.18 -50,075,086.18 -48,600,000.00
H AN
LR R AT 1,475,086.18 -1,475,086.18

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2 BRI 2 i

2. Allocation to shareholders

-48,600,000.00

-48,600,000.00

3. oAt
3. Others

(IO B SRR i P9 0 e
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’
equity

1A A TR A
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share
capital

2R A BRI
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share
capital

3.J AR A TR S 1

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses
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HE

Item

2023 £
2023

;2
Share
capital

2 /NG
Capital
reserve

BSRATE
Surplus
reserve

RO EEFE
Unallocated
profits

BEHERS A
Total
shareholders’
equity

4.BEE 52w AT HIR AR AS T A7 UR
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried
forward to retained earnings

5. Hofth i A U 2 A R AE R B
5. Other comprehensive income carried
forward to retained earnings

6. Atk
6. Others

(1) HIARHE

(V) Specific reserve

LAEEARHL

1. Appropriation for the year

2ARHEA
2. Use in the year

(%) HAth
(VI) Others

. AEERBRH
IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

29,661,138.05

46,827,091.82

466,692,717.37
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2022 £ F
2022
JHE ] A
o Bk eI Bt AT komag | BREEER
. Total
Share Capital Surplus Unallocated y
; shareholders
capital reserve reserve profits .
equity
— J:‘ﬁf:li}liﬁ%gﬁ 108,000,000.00, 282,204,487.50 21,080,432.34 18,200,740.51 429,485,660.35
I. Closing balance for last year
. LA
hn: JH%.&E . .. 47,567.08 428,103.71 475,670.79
Add: changes in accounting policies
AT 2285 B IE
Correction of previous errors
Foft
Others
. AR

I1. Opening balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

21,127,999.42

18,628,844.22

429,961,331.14

=, KERBEYEHE (WHU -] 5EFD

I11. Movement for the year (“-” for decrease)

7,058,052.45

63,522,472.03

70,580,524.48

() FFEWRER AR
(I) Total comprehensive income

70,580,524.48

70,580,524.48

(=) BRI B A
(IT) Contribution of shareholders and capital
reduction

(WS ERININE=Bliiliq
1. Shareholders’ contribution to
ordinary shares

2 HABKER T AR HERNE A
2. Capital contribution by holders of other equity
instruments

3B SR NS 2 1 2 B
3. Share-based payment credited to
shareholders’ equity

4.3 Ath
4. Others

(=) FHEA R
(IIT) Profit allocation

7,058,052.45

-7,058,052.45

LARHR R 65 A T

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

7,058,052.45

-7,058,052.45

2 B BR A 2 B

2. Allocation to shareholders

3. HoAth
3. Others

CIY> LSRR 2 P9 s
(IV) Transfers within the shareholders’ equity

1A T P A

1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital

2.0 R N T A

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to  share capital

3. o S s 1R

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

438 R ot vt B B AR AL B A7 2
4. Change in defined benefit plan carried forward
to retained earnings

5. oAb A WA 2 A AR U 2
5. Other comprehensive income carried forward to
retained earnings

6. H:Ath
6. Others

(1) HIAfHE

(V) Specific reserve

LA
1. Appropriation for the year

2 A

2. Use in the year

(7)) il
(VI) Others

M. FEFERBH

IV. Closing balance for the year

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

28,186,051.87

82,151,316.25

500,541,855.62
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY

1.General Information

As approved by Shantou Commission for Restructuring the
Economic Systems, Shantou Economic Committee, Shantou
Finance Bureau and Shantou State-owned Property
Management Office with Circular [2000] No.6 of Shantou
Reform Commission, Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or “Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company”, together with its subsidiaries
referred to as the “Group”) was restructured from “Shantou
Pharmaceutical Trading Development Company (71l 55 7 & 4
E 5 4% & 5 BR /A 7)) and established as a limited liability
company by Shantou Medicine (Group) Limited (7l 55 &
(%)~ F]), Shantou Chuangmei Trading Limited (/IlIEA T £
% ¥ % A R A A]) and Shantou Chuangmei Advertising
Limited (JlIFH T A 36 f& &5 A FR A7) with joint investments
in 2000. The Company obtained the BUSINESS LICENSE
OF THE ENTERPRISE LEGAL PERSON issued by Shantou
Administration for Industry and Commerce on 6 March 2000.
On 28 May 2015, the Company changed its name to
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. The registered address of
the Company is No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Longhu
District, Shantou City with a uniform social credit number of
91440500722414635C.

The Company operates in the pharmaceutical distribution
industry and is mainly engaged in the distribution of
pharmaceutical products. The business scope is: Licensed
items: drug wholesale, distribution of Class III medical
devices, food sale, road transportation of goods (excluding
dangerous goods), urban distribution and transportation
services (excluding dangerous goods), sale of disinfection
equipment, online drug information services, and online
medical device information services. Sale of Class I medical
devices, sale of Class II medical devices, sale of health foods

(prepackaged), sale of foods (only prepackaged foods),



MRS R Al Al A (A& 2 % IR
B A S BRI 8 B A R
(AN fa B A0 5% i 558 75 W RT3 At A B
2 KR AR NS Ehi i 5 i 55 7
CAIEE AV & SRR &K &1 T R
gt axat AL AR R A ML A
it e AL B IR 5, e 2 st f AL 5 s, 7
HHEHE (AEEEesn fE
Bk TS B, AL i 3 52 A i 2
Az P R — VA P e o P L
AT AE Y B B, B ol PR R R R 5, H
P it 865, I 3t 5% A0 T i 0 65
CAE RS T ) 95 B Okt
vin B 65 T 25 B I D B B W R
7 it WA, e S o B B T TR ZE i 4
N 2R N HOE B i B T RS A
JIR 755, s ) S A s, LA A (BB
B FET T RIR D R A N
(ESHEHRBE M)  HHNE (F
B S BN " 5, LS R
(AE TR E ), 555 s
(AEHHIRE) , Bl H, &
adfE T, BRI, CRVR AL
FHLVEE (1 B 5 A Bl 0 1T b v 4% RT B
JEACETEED

NNESEEN S NI = N
. ORKHE ., AR TRERT L.
HHMESCRF RO WL A
Ei

I

A

=
BF

A EA TR A A 2024 4E 3 H 28 HHE A
ANE|EEERERE .
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domestic cargo transportation agency, information consulting
services (excluding information consulting services subject to
licensing), health consulting services (excluding medical
services), enterprise management consulting, general cargo
warehousing services (excluding hazardous chemicals and
other items subject to licensing and approval), low-
temperature warehousing (excluding hazardous chemicals and
other items subject to licensing and approval), information
technology consulting services, advertisement design and
agency, non-residential real estate leasing, warehousing
equipment leasing services, office equipment leasing services,
sale of disinfectants (excluding hazardous chemicals), sale of
sanitary pesticides, cosmetics wholesale and retail, sale of
sanitary products and disposable medical products, sale of
personal hygiene products, sale of food detergents, sale of
daily groceries, wholesale of daily necessities, sale of
chemical products (excluding chemical products subject to
licensing), sale of labor protection products, sale of special
labor protection products, purchase of primary agricultural
products, sale of agricultural by-products, primary processing
of edible agricultural products,loading and unloading, cargo
transportation and packing services, packaging services,
consulting and planning services, online sale (except for sale
of commodities  subject to licensing), online sale of foods
(only prepackaged foods), sale of daily masks (non-medical),
domestic trade agency, and leasing services (excluding leasing
services subject to licensing), labor services (excluding labor
dispatching), import and export of technology, import and
export of foods, and import and export of goods. (For special
projects subject to approval according to law, business
activities can be carried out only after being approved by
relevant departments)

The Company has the General Meeting, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Supervisors and the General Manager.
The Company has functional departments such as marketing
centre, operation and maintenance support centre, logistics

centre and finance department.

The financial report was approved and published by the Board
of the Company on 28 March 2024.
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II. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.Preparation basis

The financial statements of the Group are prepared according
to the actually incurred transactions and matters, the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises promulgated
by the Ministry of Finance and its application guidelines,
interpretations and other related provisions (hereinafter
referred to as the "Accounting Standards for Enterprises"),
the Preparation Rules for Information Disclosure by
Companies Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 - General
Provisions on Financial Reports (Revision 2023) of China
Securities Regulatory Commission (hereinafter referred to as
the "CSRC") and related provisions, and the Company
Ordinance of Hong Kong, as well as disclosure related
provisions in the securities listing rules of SEHK ("Listing
Rules").

2.Going concern

The Group has conducted the evaluation on the 12-month
going concern capacity from December 31, 2023. According
to the evaluation, no matters or circumstances which give rise
to great doubts about the going concern capacity are found.
The financial statements are presented on the basis of going

concern.

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Tips for specific accounting policies and accounting
estimates: The specific accounting policies and accounting
estimates formulated by the Group according to the actual
production and operation characteristics include business
cycle, recognition and measurement of bad debt reserves for
receivables, measurement of issued inventory, classification
and depreciation methods of fixed assets, amortization of
intangible assets, and recognition and measurement of

income.

1.Declaration on compliance with Accounting Standards
for Enterprises

The financial statements meet the requirements of the



K, HE. B, TR T AL
A AR A 2023 4F 12 H 31 HIOM
5RO BA fe 2023 4F FE A8 2 Rl R A1 B 4
MESHRER.

2. &5

AEFP G HMAEE1L A1 HE
12 H 31 H.

3.BEEH

AR S SR 12 H 3% BUHAE
A B AR (B T ) AR

4. FCAR AL ¥
AL DL R AT IR A B
5. B MR R i v AR IR K

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and truly,
accurately and completely reflect the financial situation of the
Company and the Group on December 31, 2023, and 2023
operating results and cash flow, as well as other related

information.
2.Accounting period

The Group’s accounting period begins on 1 January and ends

on 31 December of the calendar year.
3.Business cycle

The Group treats 12 months as a business cycle and the

criteria for classifying the liquidity of assets and liabilities.
4.Functional currency
The Group adopts Renminbi as its functional currency.

5.Determination Method and Selection Basis of
Materiality Criteria

BREZEEFEEAGNNEFTH | XFREAMBRKMNEFOHE | EEERREETENRRK

Items for Disclosure Involving the AR i 3
Judgment of Materiality Criteria Location for Disclosure in the Notes Determination Method and
to the Financial Statements Selection Basis of Materiality
Criteria

L B IHE R BR A (10 EGK
IH

Significant account receivables with
bad debt allowance set aside

separately

B IH AR I 200 BT B

Single amount exceeding RMB2

M. 3 (2)

Note V. 3 (2) "
million

JEE VAT R T AR S0 S5 R Y A AL [ e [
SRAE T

Significant recovery of bad debt
allowance (amount) for accounts

receivable during the period

B IH S AR 200 #oC UL B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

A% S B ) IR AT TR A, 51
Significant accounts receivable written

off during the period

B IH S AR 200 &0 LL B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

A Y B S HLA SR A 81
Significant other receivables written

off during the period

FELIR G A 200 BTl B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

HRES I 1 4 H SR B A FRAT K

B IH AR 500 BT B
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¥ R B B AR Y A M B S R IR
Items for Disclosure Involving the

Judgment of Materiality Criteria

ZEIREAMBIRERMEF KB E
AN
Location for Disclosure in the Notes

to the Financial Statements

BBV YEREE T AR
7%

Determination Method and

Selection Basis of Materiality

Criteria

H
Prepayments aged over one year and

with a significant amount

Single amount exceeding RMBS5

million

FRES BRI 1 47 0 B 2 AR K
Significant accounts payable aged

over one year

B TE S RH I 200 # oL B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

St A 1 4 0 3 S A A K
Significant other payables aged over

one year

My Fi. 22.1 (2)

HLTH S AEAEE 300 oLl ER

Single amount exceeding RMB3
Note V. 22.1 (2) "
million

IRESERIE 1 R E A R A
Significant contractual liabilities aged

over one year

BTG AR E 200 B LK
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

6.7 — il T Ak R — il T2 A0
K& st BB Tk

(1) FA—#HITHeESH
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H 4% 42 & Bf J7 1E B & FE 10 7 & fF ¥R
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(2) JEFA—#=H T HeE A

S ELE ORI & 7 A A PR AT AR A 52 A —
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6. Accounting methods for business combinations under
common control and business combinations not under
common control

(1) Business Combinations under Common Control

A business combination involving enterprises under common
control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the combination, and that

control is not transitory.

The assets and liabilities obtained by the Group as the
merging party in a business combination are measured at the
combination- date carrying amount of the merged party in the
consolidated statement of ultimate controller. The difference
between the carrying amount of net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the combination consideration paid shall
adjust additional paid-in capital; if the additional paid-in
capital is not sufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings
shall be adjusted.

(2) Business Combinations not under common Control

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by
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the same party or parties before and after the combination.

When the Group is the acquirer, the acquiree's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obtained from a
business combination not under common control are measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition.Where the cost of
combination exceeds the acquirer’s share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognized as goodwill; where the cost of combination is less
than the acquirer’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, the measurement of the fair values of
all the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
obtained in the business combination and the fair values of
non-cash assets or equity securities issued as the consideration
for combination are firstly reviewed. If, after that review, the
cost of combination is still less than the acquirer’s share of the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets in the
business combination, the difference shall be included in the

consolidated non-operating revenue for the period.

7.Criteria for Control and Preparation Method of
Consolidated Financial Statements

The scope of consolidation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements is determined on the basis of control,
including the Company and all the subsidiaries controlled by
the Company. The Group controls an entity if it is exposed, or
has rights, to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the entity.

When preparing consolidated financial statements, if there is
inconsistency on the accounting policies or accounting periods
between the subsidiaries and the Company, necessary
adjustments will be made to the financial statements of the
subsidiaries based on the accounting policies or accounting

periods of the Company.

The effects of internal transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, and those between subsidiaries, on the
consolidated  financial statements are offset upon
consolidation. The share in a subsidiary's owner's equity that
does not belong to the parent company and the share in net

profit and loss, other comprehensive income and

-135 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

W g5k A WURCRRE 2 . D BURR
HAL G R D WUBE R A At A Al
f K i s /b WO R IR A 1 Wi 7 A
w7 ITHE SR

B R — N SR ORI T A
A, HEBREMBEREAEMHE
IR & OF I 85 R . A i EL R
o OF B R, B EEM B IREER N
B IH A IEAT A, R & IR K
1 T WS E B AR ) B 4 A R
Hhl— EAFAE

B ARR — 26 T XSG T A
GIEREY=95'% ilE: e rih - S N L /B
R HIREZ HR N & O 35 R & .
72 & ] & OF I B5 3R Iy, DU H B
ERAIHM PR EE . ARLEA A
TR 2 S BAE 2 B 35 0 = 0 A 25
R IEAT T

A B B AE A 12 R P 1R RE 1S U0 T A
Wi BT AR RS, a8
(URUE R E AR E Y -3
R BB E=A 7R AEE H
ol BF L BA 46 5 A8 R 500 5 0
Z IR 2250, A A R B A i
B, BEAXNTALMRE, FHBEAF
et o

8.RERBREFED

A B SRR R R EAHE
LA K ] AR IRy HY RS SEAT A7 R Bl
MR B e H Y16 R R A B
3 EH . REMEE. HRERAE
S0 < AR B 4 HLOEE 5 R B AR /DN R 4%
Ao

-136 -

comprehensive income for the current period that belongs to
minority shareholders' equity are presented separately in the
consolidated  financial  statements under  "minority
shareholders' equity, minority shareholders' profit and loss,
other comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders, and total comprehensive income attributable to

minority shareholders” .

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
beginning of the period of the combination. When preparing
the comparative consolidated financial statements, relevant
items in the financial statements of the previous year will be
adjusted as if the reporting entity formed after the
combination had been in existence since the time when the

ultimate controlling party gains control.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination not under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements since the
date when the Group gains control. When preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of
the subsidiary shall be adjusted based on the fair values of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

determined on the acquisition date.

For the partial disposal of the Group’s long-term equity
investments in a subsidiary without losing control, the balance
between the disposal price and the share of net assets (being
calculated from the acquisition date or combination date) of
the subsidiary enjoyed correspondingly in the disposal of the
long-term equity investment shall be used to adjust the capital
premium or share premium, or the retained earnings if the
capital reserves are not sufficient for offsetting, in the

consolidated financial statements.
8.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the cash flow statements of the Group refers to cash
on hand and the deposits ready for payment at any time. Cash
equivalents in the cash flow statements represent the
investment with a term less than 3 months, which are highly
liquidated, easy to be converted into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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9.Foreign currency business
(1) Foreign currency transactions

Upon initial recognition of the Group's foreign currency-
denominated transactions, the foreign currency amount is
converted into RMB amount at the spot exchange rate on the
day when such transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
items are converted into RMB at the spot exchange rate on the
balance sheet date, and the conversion differences resulted
therefrom, except that those arising from special foreign
currency loans related to the acquisition and construction or
production of assets eligible for capitalisation should be
treated on the capitalisation principle, are all included in the

current profit or loss.
10.Financial Instruments

(1) Recognition and Derecognition of Financial

Instruments

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset/a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized, i.e., written off from its
account and balance sheet if: 1) the right to receive the cash
flows of the financial asset is terminated; 2) the right to
receive the cash flows of the financial asset has been
transferred, or the obligation to timely pay cash flows to a
third party in full amount is undertaken under a transfer
agreement. And, substantially all of the risks and rewards
related to the ownership of the financial asset have been
transferred, or the control over the financial asset has been
given up although the Group does not transfer or retain
substantially all of the risks and rewards related to the

ownership of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognized if the liability towards it
has been discharged, canceled, or expired. If the existing
financial liability is replaced by the same creditor with another
one under almost totally different terms and conditions in
substantial aspects, or almost all the terms and conditions on
the existing liability are modified substantially, such
replacement or modification results in derecognition of the old
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liability and recognition of the new one, with the difference
included in current profit and loss. The financial assets traded
in a conventional way are recognized and derecognized on the
transaction day.

(2) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The classification of financial assets is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. On initial recognition, a
financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair
value through profit or loss. All related financial assets
affected will be reclassified when and only when the Group

changes its business model of managing financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at fair value when initially
recognized, but if the accounts or bill receivable arising from
the sale of goods or the provision of services do not contain
significant financing components or do not consider financing
components for no more than one year, the initial

measurement is made at the transaction price.

For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction expenses are directly recognized in the
current profit or loss. For other financial assets, transaction

expenses are included in the initial recognition amount.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets is subject to their
classification:

1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both
of the following conditions: A. it is managed within a business
model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual
cash flows; and B. its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. This type of
financial assets is initially measured at fair value, with
relevant transaction costs included in the initially recognized
amount, and they are subsequently measured at amortized
cost. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured at



BRI — M MRZA e E, %K
TSR AL S . e . BE ST R A B
e #& 1 g R IR PE 2E I MR BB R, RT
NE MR . AR BN &
ML E AR BWES. EIJR
A EUCESE . HAd RO

2) DA fofEfE s H S EE AR
bR St i 65 T RIE

< E R BRR A 5 T B AR 1) e
PE 73 RS L 2d e TR MR B HL L Eh st
ANHAtE S WS EmEE. OFH
A% <o R E ) S8 AR S RE AR )
B i B RS H AR DA M A R < i ¥
R AR @n% < il B ZE 104 1R ko8
E, EREHMELANRERE, &
o AR < R LR B A A < < R RS 2
RIS AT o il 3 E 4 R
FAEEETYIGE R, M #
AP ANWIIATE R B3 . AN B AT T 01
R — & 0 1 2 8 e il ¥ 2 T E 2R 1Y
FiT A AR BR O, B A P O8(E 8 2% B
FIAT B S 4H 2 0 0 M) kR
S Rl S E MR A, BTEE AR
HAb AR EIR R, BEt A AR AR S ik
o RRVEEAOERERERE, ZATERA
Hopth &5 G WAL 2 1) R AT RIS B K B
A AR Al e T, FENVE A
e AR N S EA
e EUCHIHR .

3) Bl e fEfEEE H LS HE AR
bR Sl et R R TR

2 G [ AN T SREH b 3 R Ry AR A B
PERE 8 TR S 6 R LA fe B R
B H SR BhEE N At & 5 i 2 ) <
HPE. daE &R, AEHEGHE.
A 2 190 R AR Bl Pl MR T HEEAE R
B RRAHR 73 W 1m] BRI WSCN BR A0
RPN E RS, A fo (B AR S 8
AP AN g s, AT AT S IR E YR
o Rl AL, At

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is
derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to
recognize impairment gains or losses. Specifically, the Group
classifies the following into this type of financial assets: cash
on hand/in bank, accounts receivable, notes receivable, and
other receivables.

2) Debt instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if it meets both of the following
conditions: A. it is managed within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and B. its contractual terms give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
This type of financial assets is initially measured at fair value,
with relevant transaction costs included in the initially
recognized amount. All gains or losses arising from such
financial assets that are not part of any hedging relationship,
other than credit impairment losses or gains, exchange gains
and losses and interest on such financial assets calculated with
the effective interest rate method, are included in other
comprehensive income; when the financial assets are
derecognized, the accumulated gains or losses previously
included in other comprehensive income shall be transferred
from other comprehensive income into the current profit and
loss. The Group mainly classifies the following into this type

of financial assets: receivables financing.

3) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Group irrevocably designates part of non-trading equity
instruments as financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Once the designation is made, it
cannot be revoked. The Group only includes relevant dividend
income (except that recovered as investment costs) in the
current profit and loss and subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income, and no impairment provisions
are required. When the financial asset is derecognized, the

accumulated gains or losses previously included in other

-139 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

O\ FC At A A W R 1R 3R AT BR R A
Hphgradaidm, sk,

4) DA fofEEEE LS EE AN E
SRR 1 B R

il

B 3 73 J5URS DL 6 A R 1) <z
B E ANy RS DL o MR B B HL L
BTN A AR S W 0 < R PE 2 A1
M & E, REFEEIBRULX
SEEAFE H LS HE A R W
KA I R S R VCR/AD W
EEATYIRET R, MBS B %
FENE R . R <l E R AT
AR, FIANE WA,

éj\
éj\

AL AR [A] — F 1 R 14 3 5 pF
MERR M A SR R M E E, 7%
<R PE > R LA fe fEAE AR B
SRR E IR 10 B R B E .

(3) &MAFETE. BEKBMETE
Ttk

B 7S B R R A R DR T
35 P 2 B ) BRI X i R
P S AN R B 4% LB R AR 1 B AR S
NS <5 Rl A PE T R 18R < i 4 £
CAAN, A 52 [ <o 6 8 7 400 4 e o
R MR DL SRR AT 2 H AL 2 5)
AENE R o 1 et AR DABEER R
KRt BN SR ARE. BRUAREE
At H LS EhE N E WA a8 1) et A
i, MRS &M E &R E B
i, DAHRER AT R Al AR AT
22 o B AT N AT Un i RR

el SR AR SR R AU e M

1) DA AR AT B (1 Bl B AR

LS R A SR it B AR, SR
PR A3k, % M 6 A O AT 4R T

H o

comprehensive income are transferred out and included in the

retained earnings.

4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as
described above are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. This type of financial assets is initially measured at fair
value, with relevant transaction costs included directly in the
current profit and loss. Gains or losses arising from such

financial assets are booked into the current profit and loss.

If the contingent consideration recognized by the Group in a
business combination not under common control constitutes a
financial asset, the financial asset is classified as a financial

asset measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(3) Classification, recognition basis and measurement
method of financial liabilities

Except the financial guarantee contracts awarded,
commitments to loans at lower than market interest rates and
financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets
that do not meet the conditions for derecognition or continued
involvement in the transferred financial assets, the Group's
financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost upon initial recognition.
Relevant transaction expenses for financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are directly booked into profit or
loss, while those for financial liabilities measured at amortized

cost are booked into initially recognized amount.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is subject to
their classification:

1) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate method.
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2) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivatives that contain financial liabilities) include
trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Trading financial liabilities (including derivatives falling
under financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair
value. All changes in fair value are included in the current
profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at fair value.
Except that changes in fair value that are brought about by
changes in the Group's own credit risk are included in other
comprehensive income, other changes in fair value are
included in the current profit or loss. Unless inclusion of such
changes in other comprehensive income causes or expands
accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Group will include
all changes in fair value (including the amount affected by
changes in its own credit risk) in the current profit or loss.

(4) Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Group conducts impairment treatment of financial assets
measured at amortized cost and contract assets and recognizes

related loss provisions based on expected credit loss.

Expected credit loss refers to the weighted average of the
credit losses of financial instruments weighted by the risk of
default. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate and
receivable according to the contract and all cash flows
expected to be collected of the Group, i.e., the present value of
all cash shortfalls. Factors reflected in the Group's
measurement methods of expected credit loss of financial
instruments include: A. unbiased probability weighted average
amount determined by evaluating a series of possible results;
B. time value of money; and C. reasonable and reliable
information about past events, current situation and future
economic situation forecasts that can be obtained on the

balance sheet date without unnecessary extra costs or efforts.

The Group assesses the expected credit loss of financial
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instruments based on single items and combinations. For the
later, it divides financial instruments into different
combinations on the basis of common credit risk
characteristics. Common credit risk characteristics adopted by
the Group include: financial instrument type, credit risk rating,
debtor's geographical location/industry, overdue information,
and aging of account receivable.

To use the expected credit loss model for assessing the
impairment of financial instruments and contract assets, the
Group needs to make significant judgments and estimates by
taking into consideration all reasonable and evidence-based
information, including forward-looking information. When
making these judgments and estimates, the Group infers
expected changes in the debtor's credit risk based on historical
repayment data and with due regard to economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, and industry risks, among other
factors. Different estimates may affect impairment
provisioning, and the impairment provisions that have been
set aside may not be equal to the actual amount of future

impairment losses.

1) Impairment testing methods for accounts receivable and

contract assets

The Group uses simplified methods to measure the loss
provisions for accounts receivable, notes receivable,
receivable financing and other receivables arising from day-
to-day business activities such as selling goods and providing
services, which do not contain significant financing
components, i.e., calculating them on a basis equivalent to the

expected credit losses during the duration.

The Group recognizes receivables with a single amount
exceeding RMB2 million and that have credit impaired as
receivables with significant individual amount and tests their

impairment separately.

Except separately determining the credit loss of a receivable
with significant single amount and having credit impaired, the
Group prepares a comparison table of accounts receivable
aging and default loss rate based on the portfolio of common
credit risk characteristics, with consideration to the factors
that the expected credit loss measurement methods should
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reflect, and with reference to historical credit loss experience,
and calculates expected credit losses based on this table. If the
credit risk characteristics of a customer are significantly
different from other customers in the portfolio or have
changed significantly (e.g., the customer trapped in serious
financial difficulties), causing the expected credit loss rate of
the accounts receivable from the customer significantly higher
than that of other customers in the same aging and overdue
interval, etc., the Group accrues loss provisions for the

accounts receivable from the customer on an individual basis.

@ Portfolio categories and determination basis of accounts
receivable

The Group classifies accounts receivable by the similarity and
correlation of credit risk characteristics based on information
such as age of accounts receivable, nature of payment, credit
risk exposure, and historical payment collection. The Group
identifies aging as the main factor affecting the credit risk of
accounts receivable. Therefore, the Group assesses its
expected credit losses based on the aging portfolio. The Group
determines the aging of accounts receivable based on the

confirmation date.

@ Portfolio categories and determination basis of notes

receivable

The Group classifies notes receivable into different portfolios
based on the common risk characteristics of the acceptor's
credit risk and determines the accounting estimation policy for
expected credit losses: a. banker's acceptance bills. The Group
deems that banker's acceptance bills are exposed to low credit
risks and thus does not recognize expected credit losses; b.
commercial acceptance bills, the expected loss rate of which is
confirmed and loss provisions are made with reference to the
Group's accounts receivable policy. They are classified the

same as the portfolios of accounts receivable.
2) Other Receivables

The Group accrues the expected credit loss using a general
approach (three-stage method). On each balance sheet date,
the Group assesses whether its credit risk exposure has
increased significantly since the initial recognition. If the
credit risk has not increased significantly since its initial
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recognition and is in the first stage, its loss reserve is
measured at an amount equivalent to its expected credit loss in
the next 12 months, and the interest income is calculated at the
book balance and the effective interest rate; if the credit risk
has increased significantly since the initial recognition but no
credit impairment has occurred, and it is in the second stage,
then its loss reserve is measured at an amount equivalent to its
expected credit loss throughout its duration, and the interest
income is calculated at the book balance and the effective
interest rate; if the financial instrument is credit-impaired
since its initial recognition and it is in the third stage, the
Group measures its loss reserve at an amount equivalent to its
expected credit loss throughout its duration, and calculates the
interest income at the amortized cost and the effective interest
rate. If, on the balance sheet date, the credit risk of the
financial instrument is judged to be low, the Group assumes
that the credit risk of the financial instrument has not

increased significantly since the initial recognition.

Expected credit losses throughout the entire duration refer to
the expected credit losses caused by all default events that
may occur during the entire expected life of a financial
instrument. Expected credit losses in the next 12 months refer
to the expected credit losses caused by the financial
instrument default events that are likely to occur within 12
months after the balance sheet date (the expected duration if
the expected duration of a financial instrument is less than 12
months), which are part of the expected credit losses
throughout the entire duration.

Please refer to Note IX.1 for disclosures on the Group’ s
criteria for determining a significant increase in credit risk and

the definition of credit-impaired assets.

For other receivables, when the Group is unable to obtain
sufficient evidence of a significant increase in credit risk at a
reasonable cost at the individual instrument level but can
assess whether the credit risk has significantly increased on a
portfolio basis, it will classify other receivables by taking the
type of financial instrument, credit risk rating, and relationship
with related parties as common risk characteristics, consider
and evaluate whether the credit risk has significantly increased

on a portfolio basis.
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The Group adopts the following accounting estimation policy
for measuring expected credit losses based on actual credit
losses in previous years and taking into account the forward-
looking information for the current year: Calculate expected
credit losses with reference to the past experience of credit
loss, in combination with the current situation and anticipation
on future economic conditions and based on default risk
exposure and expected credit loss rates in the next 12 months

or throughout the duration.

(5) Recognition Basis and Measurement Method of
Financial Asset Transfer

If substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred financial asset have been transferred, the financial
asset is derecognized; if substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred financial asset have been
retained, recognition of the financial asset is continued; if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred financial asset have not been transferred or
retained, the financial asset is derecognized with the resulting
assets and liabilities recognized when the Group gives up
control over the financial asset, or the relevant financial asset
is recognized to the extent of its continuous involvement in
the transferred financial asset with the relevant liability
recognized accordingly when the Group does not give up

control.

If the whole transfer of the financial asset meets the conditions
for derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount
of the transferred financial asset at the date of derecognition
and the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and
the accumulative amount of fair value changes originally
recorded into other comprehensive income which is relevant
to the portion of derecognition (the transferred financial asset
shall meet all of the following conditions: the Group's
business model for managing the financial asset is to collect
contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset; and the
contractual terms of the financial asset require that the cash
flow generated on a specific date is only for the payment of
interest based on the principal).

If the transfer of financial asset partially satisfies the

conditions of derecognition, the entire carrying amount of the
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transferred financial asset is, between the portion which is
derecognized and the portion which is not, apportioned
according to their respective relative fair value, and the
difference between the sum of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulative amount of the changes of the
fair value originally included in other comprehensive income
which shall be apportioned to the derecognized portion (the
transferred financial asset shall meet all of the following
conditions: (D the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets is aimed at both receiving contract cash flows
and selling the financial assets; @ The terms of the contract
for the financial asset provide that the cash flow generated on
a particular date is only for the payment of principal and
interest based on the amount of the outstanding principal.),
and the apportioned entire carrying amount of the said

financial assets are included into current profit or loss.

If the Group continues to be involved by providing financial
guarantee for the transferred financial assets, the assets
formed by the continued involvement are recognized at the
lower of the book value of the financial assets and the amount
of financial guarantee. The amount of financial guarantee
refers to the maximum amount of the consideration received

that will be required to be repaid.

(6) Distinction between and treatment of financial
liabilities and equity instruments

The Group distinguishes between financial liabilities and
equity instruments in accordance with the following
principles: (1) A contractual obligation meets the definition of
a financial liability if the Group cannot unconditionally avoid
meeting that obligation by delivering cash or other financial
assets. Some financial instruments do not explicitly contain
terms and conditions for delivery of cash or other financial
asset obligations, but it is possible that contractual obligations
may arise indirectly through other terms and conditions. (2) If
a financial instrument is required to be, or may be, settled with
the Group’ s own equity instruments, it’ s needed to take
into account whether the Group’ s own equity instruments
used to settle the instrument in question are intended as a
substitute for cash or other financial assets or are intended to
give the holder of the instrument in question certain residual

interest in the assets of the issuer net of all liabilities. If the
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former prevails, the instrument will be treated as a financial
liability of the issuer; or if the latter prevails, the instrument
will be treated as an equity instrument of the issuer. In certain
circumstances, a financial instrument contract requires or
allows the Group to settle the financial instrument with its
own equity instruments, where the amount of the contractual
right or contractual obligation is equal to the number of the
Group’ s own equity instruments available for acquisition or
required for delivery multiplied by their fair value at the time
of settlement, then the contract is classified as a financial
liability regardless of whether the amount of the contractual
right or obligation is fixed or varies, in whole or in part, with
variables other than the market price of the Group’ s own
equity instruments (for example, interest rates, the price of a

commodity or a financial instrument).

When classifying financial instruments (or their components)
in the consolidated statements of operations, the Group takes
into account all terms and conditions agreed between the
members of the Group and holders of financial instruments.
An instrument shall be classified as a financial liability if the
Group as a whole has borne an obligation to deliver cash,
other financial assets or to settle in a manner that otherwise
results in the instrument becoming a financial liability.

(7) Offset of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
presented separately in the balance sheet without offsetting.
But whenever all of the following conditions are met, they
shall be presented in the balance sheet at the net amount after
offsetting: 1) The Group has the legal right to offset
recognized amount and is currently able to execute this legal
right; and 2) The Group plans to settle on a net basis, or
realize the financial assets and settle the financial liabilities at

the same time.
11. Inventories

The inventories of the Group mainly include merchandise
inventory and goods shipped in transit.

The inventories are initially measured as per costs. The
inventory costs are purchase costs. The perpetual inventory
system is carried out for the inventories. When the inventories
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are received or shipped, the actual costs are determined by the
moving weighted average method.

On the balance sheet date, the inventories are measured by the
costs or net realizable value, whichever is lower. If the
inventory costs are higher than the net realizable value, the
inventory falling price reserves are accrued, which is included
into the current profit or loss. The net realizable value refers to
the amount of estimated sales price of inventories minus the

purchase costs in the daily activity.

Regarding the merchandise inventory of the Group, according
to the single inventory item, the inventory falling price
reserves are accrued. The net realizable value of merchandise
inventory is determined according to the estimated sales price

of such inventory minus the purchase costs.
12. Contract Liabilities

The contract liability reflects the obligation of transfer of
goods to the customer due to the customer consideration
received or receivable of the Group. Before the Group
transfers the goods to the customer, if the customer has paid
the contract consideration or the Group has gained the right of
unconditionally receiving the contract consideration, the
contract liability is recognized according to the amount
received or receivable based on the money actually paid by

the customer or matured money payable, whichever is earlier.
13. Long-term Equity Investment

The long-term equity investment of the Group is the
investment in the subsidiary primarily.

(1) Judgment of Significant Impact and Common Control

It is the equity investment of the Group with significant
impact in the investee, namely, investment in the joint
venture. The significant impact refers to  “the Group has the
power to participate in the decision-making of financial and
operation policies of the investee, but cannot control the
formulation of these policies or jointly control the formulation
of these policies together with other parties” . If the Company
possesses more than 20% but less than 50% voting rights of
the investee directly or indirectly through the subsidiary, it is

usually deemed that the Company has the significant impact
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on the investee, unless there are explicit evidences showing
that the Group cannot participate in the decision-making of
production and operation of the investee or form the control

over the investee.
(2) Accounting Treatment Method

The Group initially measures the long-term equity investment

according to the initial investment cost.

For long- term equity investment acquired through business
combination under common control, the share of the book
value of net assets of the combined party in the combined
statement of the ultimate controlling party on the combination
date shall be accounted for as the initial investment cost of the
long-term equity investment. If the book value of net assets of
the combined party on the combination date is negative, the

cost of the long- term equity investment is determined as nil.

For long-term equity investment acquired through business
combination not under common control, the combination cost
is regarded as the initial investment cost; for the combination
of enterprises not under common control by steps through
multiple transactions, if it is not a package transaction, the
sum of book value of originally held equity investment plus

newly-added investment costs is the initial investment cost.

Except the long-term equity investment due to the business
combination, for the long-term equity investment acquired
through cash payment, the actually paid purchase price and
expenses directly related to the acquisition of long-term equity
investment, taxes and other necessary expenditures are
regarded as the initial investment cost; for the long-term
equity investment acquired through issuing the equity
securities, the fair value of issued equity securities is regarded

as the investment cost.

The investment of the Company in the subsidiary is accounted
by the cost method in some financial statements. When the
cost method is adopted, the long-term equity investment is
valuated according to the initial investment cost. When the
investment is added, according to the fair value of cost
amount paid in the added investment and relevant transaction
fees incurred, the book value of long-term equity investment
cost is increased. The cash dividends or profits allocated by
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the investee are recognized as the investment income of

current period according to the amount.

The investment of the Group in the cooperative enterprise and
joint venture is accounted by the equity method. When the
equity method is adopted, for the portion of initial investment
cost of long-term equity investment greater than the fair value
of net identifiable assets of the investee in the investment, the
book value of long-term equity investment is not adjusted; for
the portion of initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment less than the fair value of net identifiable assets of
the investee in the investment, the book value of long-term
equity investment is increased based on the difference, which
is included into the current profit or loss of investment

simultaneously.

In the subsequent measurement, for the long-term equity
investment accounted by the equity method, during the period
when the investment is held, with the change of owner’ s
equities of the investee, the book value of long-term equity
investment is increased or decreased accordingly. When the
portion of net profit and loss of the investee enjoyed is
recognized, based on the fair value of identifiable assets of the
investee in the investment acquisition, according to the
accounting policy and accounting period of the Group, after
the offsetting of unrealized internal transaction profit and loss
due to the non-business transaction with the cooperative
enterprise and joint venture, the part of the Group is calculated
as per the proportion (if the internal transaction loss belongs to
the asset impairment loss, it is recognized by full amount), and
the net profits of the investee are recognized after adjustment.
The Group recognizes the net losses of the investee subject to
the write-down to zero of book value of long-term equity
investment and other long-term equities which constitute the
net investment in the investee in essence, except that the

Group bears the additional loss obligation.
14. Investment Property

The investment property of the Group refers to the property
held for earning the rentals or capital appreciation, which is

measured by cost model.

The investment property of the Group shall be depreciated or
amortized on straight-line basis. The estimated useful life, net
residual value rate and annual depreciation (amortization) rate
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of various investment properties are as follows:

FEBREE%) FEHTEE(%)
FFaR =Bl FEERE) Estimated Annual
No. Category Depreciation Period (year) Residual Depreciation
Value Rate (%) Rate (%)
i AEHUT IR
1 . Remaining term upon 0 -
Land use rights
transfer
s R 3R
2 Buildings and 30 5 3.17
structures
15.F e B E 15. Fixed assets
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Fixed assets are tangible assets refer to the following
characteristics at the same time, that are held for use in the
production of goods, supply of labour, rental or operation
management, with a unit value of more than RMB2,000 and
have a useful life of more than one year.

Fixed assets are recognized only when its related economic
benefits are likely to flow into the Group and its cost could be
reliably measured. The Group’s fixed assets include houses
and buildings, machinery, transportation equipment, office
equipment, etc.

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the
economic benefits related to such fixed assets are likely to
flow into the Group and its cost could be reliably measured,
such expenses are included in the cost of fixed asset, and the
book value of the replaced part will be derecognized. Save for
the above, other subsequent expenses are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they are incurred.

The Group depreciates all fixed assets, except for those that
have been fully depreciated and continued to be used as well
as land that has been separately stated in the accounts.
Depreciation is recognised using the average service life
method (or other methods). The categorised depreciable
service life, estimated net residual values and depreciation
rates of the Group’s fixed assets are shown as follows:
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At the end of each year, the Group reviews the estimated
useful life, estimated net residual value and depreciation
method of fixed assets, and if there is a change, it treats it as a

change in accounting estimate.
16. Borrowing Costs

The to-be-incurred borrowing costs of construction or
production which may be directly attributed to the assets
meeting the capitalization conditions of the Group are
capitalized and they are included into relevant asset costs, and
other borrowing costs are included into the current profit or
loss. For the borrowing costs of assets meeting the
capitalization conditions determined by the Group, including
fixed assets which may reach the predetermined serviceable or
sellable state after more than I-year construction or
production activity, investment property and inventory, when
the asset expenditures are incurred, the borrowing costs are
incurred, and the construction or production activity necessary
for the assets to reach the predetermined serviceable or
sellable state starts, they are capitalized; when the assets
meeting the capitalization conditions of construction or
purchase reach the predetermined serviceable or sellable state,
the capitalization is stopped, and the borrowing costs incurred
thereafter are included into the current profit or loss. If the
assets meeting the capitalization conditions suffer from the
abnormal suspension during the construction or production,
and the suspension time exceeds three (3) months, the
capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended till the asset
construction or production activity re-starts.

Regarding each accounting period during the capitalization
period, the Group recognizes the capitalized amount of
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borrowing costs according to the following methods: for the
borrowing of special loan, it is determined according to the
amount of actually incurred interest expenses after the
deduction of interest income gained of unused loan fund
deposited into the bank or investment income from temporary
investment; for the occupation of general loan, it is
determined according to the weighted mean of asset
expenditures of accumulated asset expenditures greater than
the special loan multiplying by the capitalization rate of
occupied general loan, and the capitalization rate is calculated
and determined according to the weighted average interest rate
of general loan.

17. Intangible Assets

The intangible assets of the Group include land use right,
software and software use right, customer resources, and they
are measured according to the actual costs in the acquisition.
For the purchased intangible assets, the actually paid prices
and related other expenditures are regarded as the actual costs;
for the intangible assets invested by the investor, the actual
costs are determined according to the value agreed in the
investment contract or agreement, but the actual costs are
determined according to the fair value if the value agreed in

the contract or agreement is unfair.

(1) Service Life and Determination Basis, Estimate,

Amortization Method or Review Procedure

The land use right shall be evenly amortized when it is
obtained from the date of transfer. The software and software
use rights, customer resources are amortized evenly by stages
over the shortest of estimated useful life, beneficial term
stipulated by contract and legal effective term. The
amortization amount is credited into relevant asset cost and
profit or loss for the period according to its beneficiaries. The
Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortization
method of intangible assets with limited useful life at the end
of each year, and any changes will be treated as changes on

accounting estimates.
18. Long-term Asset Impairment

On each balance sheet date, the Group checks the long-term
equity investment, fixed asset, right-of-use asset, intangible
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assets with limited service life and other items. If the
impairment sign exists, the Group conducts the impairment
test. For goodwill, no matter the impairment sign exists, the
impairment test is conducted at the end of each year.

(1) Impairment of Non-current Assets except Financial
Assets (Except Goodwill)

In the impairment test of the Group, according to the higher
one between the net amount of fair value of asset minus the
disposal expenses and present value of predicted future cash
flow of asset, the recoverable amount is determined. After the
impairment test, if the book value of such asset exceeds the
recoverable amount, the difference is recognized as the

impairment loss.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount based on the
single asset. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable
amount of single asset, based on the asset group of such asset,
the recoverable amount of asset group is determined. The
asset group is identified based on whether the main cash
inflow of asset group is independent of cash inflow of other

assets or asset group.

The net amount of fair value minus the disposal expenses is
determined based on the sales agreement price or observable
market price of similar asset in the fair transaction minus the
incremental cost which may be directly attributed to such
asset disposal. When the present value of future cash flow is
predicted, the Management must estimate the predicted future
cash flow of such asset or asset group, and choose the proper
discount rate to determine the present value of future cash

flow.
(2) Goodwill Impairment

For the goodwill of the Group due to the business
combination, from the purchase date, the book value is
amortized to the related asset group according to the
reasonable method. If it is difficult to amortize the book value
to the related asset group, it is amortized to the related asset
group portfolio. In the impairment test of related asset group
or asset group portfolio including goodwill, if the goodwill
related asset group or asset group portfolio has any

impairment sign, the impairment test is conducted on the asset
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group or asset group portfolio excluding goodwill at first, and
the recoverable amount is calculated, the comparison is done
with related book value, and the corresponding impairment
losses are recognized; after that, the impairment test is
conducted on the asset group or asset group portfolio
including goodwill, and the book value and recoverable
amount are compared, and the impairment loss amount offsets
the book value of goodwill amortized to the asset group or
asset group portfolio at first, and then offsets the book value
of other assets in proportion according to the proportion of
book value of other assets in the asset group or asset group
portfolio, except goodwill, if the recoverable amount is lower
than the book value.

Refer to Note V (12) for the goodwill impairment test method,

parameter and assumption.

Once recognized, the impairment losses of abovementioned
assets are not reversed during the later accounting period.

19. Long-term Unamortized Expenses

The long-term unamortized expenses of the Group include the
expenses whose period is more than 1 year and which have
been paid by the Group and should be amortized in the current
period and later periods, for example, house decoration
expenditures. Such expenses are averagely amortized during
the benefit period. If the long-term unamortized expenses
cannot bring benefits to the later accounting period, the
amortized value of unamortized item is converted into the

current profit or loss entirely.
20. Staff remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration includes short-term
remuneration, post- employment benefits, termination benefits

and other long-term benefits.

The short-term salaries mainly include the staff wages and
staff benefits. During the accounting period when the staff
provide services, the actually incurred short-term salaries are
recognized as liabilities, which are included into the current
profit or loss or related asset cost according to the benefit
object.
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The post-employment benefits mainly include the basic
endowment insurance expenses and unemployment insurance
expenses, and they are classified into the defined contribution
plan and defined benefit plan according to the risks and
obligations borne by the Company. For the defined
contribution plan, the contribution money paid to the
independent subject for gaining the services provided by the
staff during the accounting period on the balance sheet date is
recognized as liabilities, which is included into the current
profit or loss or related asset cost according to the benefit

object.

Termination benefits is due to the compensation to employees
when the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the expiry of the employment contracts or
as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy. If the Group provides termination benefits to the
employees, the liabilities arising from termination benefits
will be recognized and included in profit or loss for the period
at the earlier of the following dates: (O when the Group
cannot unilaterally withdraw termination benefits for the
employment termination plan or the redundancy offer; and @
when the Group recognizes the costs or expenses related to the
reorganization involving in payment of termination
benefits.Of these, compensation paid in excess of one year is
discounted at a discount rate and credited to current profit or
loss.

21. Income Recognition Principle and Measurement
Method

When the performance obligation in the contract is fulfilled,
namely, the customer gains the control right over related
goods or services, the Group recognizes the income.

Income of the Group includes income from goods sales and
income from provision of consulting services. The specific
accounting policies related to the main activities are described

as follows:

The specific income recognition policies for the Group’s
products: the Group and the customer sign a sales contract to
agree that the opposite party should conduct the acceptance
within three (3) days after receiving the goods according to

the goods quality requirements and GSP acceptance standards.
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If no acceptance is conducted within the period, it is deemed
that the goods are qualified. If the provided goods are
inconsistent with the order, or they are damaged, polluted or
expired, the feedback should be given to the Group within
three (3) days after the goods arrive, and detailed data should
be provided. If the Company is responsible after verification,
the return formalities will be handled after confirmation.
Based on the abovementioned clauses and the prudent
principle, three (3) days after the goods are shipped, it is
deemed that the control right of goods has been transferred to

the customer, and the income is recognized.

The specific income recognition policies for the Group’s
service fees: income of the Company’s other business is
mainly the advisory service income from provision of brand
promotion, product marketing, etc. for some pharmaceutical
manufacturers and distributors. The advisory service fee is
charged on the specific service content provided according to
the service agreement signed, which is independent of the
product procurement contract. The income will be recognized
by the Company after the end of the evaluation period of
provision of advisory service to the extent that payment from
the customers is received or it is determined that the amount

can be fully received.
22. Government Subsidy

The government subsidy is recognized when the conditions
are met and the subsidy can be received. If the government
subsidy belongs to the monetary asset, it is measured
according to the actually received amount. For the subsidy
allocated according to the fixed quota standard, or there are
concrete evidences showing that related conditions specified
in the fiscal support policy can be met and it is predicted that
the fiscal support fund can be received at the end of the year, it
is measured according to the amount receivable; if the
government subsidy is the non-monetary asset, it is measured
according to the fair value. If the fair value cannot be obtained
reliably, it is measured according to the nominal amount
(RMB 1).

Asset-related government subsidies refer to government
subsidies obtained by the Group for the construction or, in
other means, for the formation of long-term assets; revenue-

related government subsidies refer to government subsidies
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other than those related to assets. If the targets of the subsidies
are not specified in government documents, the Group shall
make judgments in accordance with the above-mentioned
distinction principles, and where distinctions are difficult to be
made, the subsidies shall be classified as revenue-related

government subsidies as a whole.

The asset-related government subsidy is recognized as the
deferred income and averagely distributed and included into
the current profit or loss during the service life of related
asset. If related asset is sold, transferred, scrapped or damaged
before the service life ends, the balance of undistributed
related deferred income is converted into the current profit or
loss of asset disposal.

When the government grants related to the revenue are used to
make up the relevant expenses or losses incurred in
subsequent periods, they shall be recognized as deferred
revenue and shall be included in the profit or loss for the
period during the period in which relevant expenses are
recognized. When the government grants are used to make up
the relevant expenses or losses incurred, they shall be directly

included in the profit or loss for the period.

come according to the economic business essence. The
government subsidy unrelated to the daily activity of the

Group is included into the non-business income.

The Group accounts for interest subsidies of policy-based
preferential loans it obtains on the following principles and

under two circumstances:

(1) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the
lending bank and the lending bank loans to the Group at the
policy- based preferential interest rate, the Group records the
amount of loan it actually receives as the entry value of the
loan, and calculates the related borrowing costs based on the
principal amount of the loan and the policy-based preferential
interest rate (or records the fair value of the loan as the entry
value of the loan and calculates the borrowing costs based on
the effective interest rate method; and recognises the
difference between the actual amount received and the fair
value of the loan in deferred income. The deferred income is
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amortised over the duration of the loan using the effective
interest rate method and is used to offset the related borrowing

costs.)

(2) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the
Group directly, the Group offsets the related borrowing costs
with the subsidy.

23. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred Income Tax
Liabilities

The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities of the Group are calculated and recognized
according to the (temporary difference) due to the difference
between taxation basis of assets and liabilities and book value,
and the difference between taxation basis of the item which is
not recognized as asset and liability but whose taxation basis

may be determined according to the tax law and book value.

The Group recognizes the deferred income tax liabilities for
all taxable temporary differences, except the following
circumstances: (1) initial recognition of goodwill which gives
rise to the temporary difference or initial recognition of assets
or liabilities due to the transaction of non-business
combination which neither affects the accounting profits nor
affects the taxable income (or deductible loss); (2) taxable
temporary difference related to the investment of subsidiary,
cooperative enterprise and joint venture, the Group can
control the reversal time of temporary difference, and it is
likely that such temporary difference will not be reversed in

the foreseeable future.

Subject to the future taxable income which is likely to be
gained for offsetting the deductible temporary difference,
deductible loss and tax credit, the Group recognizes the
deferred income tax assets regarding the deductible temporary
difference, deductible loss and tax credit, except the following
circumstances: (1) the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities in the transaction of
non-business combination which neither affects the
accounting profits nor affects the taxable income (or
deductible loss); (2) the deductible temporary difference
related to the investment of subsidiary, cooperative enterprise
and joint venture fails to simultaneously meet the following
conditions: the temporary difference is likely to be reversed in
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the foreseeable future, and it is likely to gain the taxable
income for offsetting the deductible temporary difference in
the future.

Within the limit of sufficient taxable income for offsetting the
deductible loss probably, the Group recognizes the deferred
income tax assets regarding all unutilized deductible losses.
The Management estimates the time and amount of taxable
income obtained in the future through tremendous judgments,
and decides the amount of to-be-recognized deferred income
tax assets based on the taxation planning strategy, so the
uncertainty exists.

On the balance sheet date, the deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are measured according to the
applicable tax rate during the period of anticipated recovery of

such assets or settlement of such liabilities.
24. Lease
(1) Identification of Lease

On the contract start date, the Group assesses whether the
contract is lease or includes lease. If a contract party assigns
the right to control the usage of one or multiple identified
assets during a certain period for exchange of consideration,
such contract is lease or includes lease.

If multiple separate leases are included simultaneously in the
contract, the Group splits the contract and accounts the
separate leases separately. If lease and non-lease parts are
included in the contract simultaneously, the Group carries out
the accounting treatment after splitting the lease and non-lease
parts. The lease parts are accounted according to the lease
criteria, and the non-lease parts are accounted according to
other applicable accounting standards for business enterprises.

(2) The Group as the Lessee
1) Recognition of Lease

Except the short-term lease and low-value asset lease, on the
start date of lease term, the Group recognizes the right-of-use

asset and lease liability for the lease.

The right-of-use asset refers to the right for the Group as the

Lessee to use the lease asset during the lease term, which is



AKEATIRET . AT O
BaMMmhE e, QM E LM
46 H Bl BT SOAT AL AT AR TN ER O
SR E BB R @A MRIh
HEEMH: ORIE RBRHEEEE.
18 IR B 2 P 35 3t R i E 1K
1R 2 AL B Ak A S R R TR T 92 1) A
A OB REEAF BN ZEAERBRID o &
5 B AL 5 YR R AT B EH R AR
BRI SR R A I RE A E O R T
HiE-

A S AR s SRS P R 8 AT o] PO A 7 R
i A TRV AR 7 S LA AR A A
PERHIRITEE . REZ 5 BELARE AL E Y] iy
e U AL B ZE T ME R, FE AL B
R ] 5 NSRS s V%A PR
52 AL I Je o P E S HPS AR B P P A
RER, 7EAH B Y] SR AH 5 3 P R R 1 35
i E A AR N R AT . RHE
Irs AR AL T REE 2E AR, AT
HH I 4 P A B SR S

AL 2 AL E B 46 H R SO AR
BB S EN AL E A BT YIS
o MEAREERE. OB/ E AL
TR E A RER, B AL SR AR B
BH; QLR AR Bl b i T SR A S A
A AR & B e R AT (o %
FERERY, M RERIBRENATHERERS: O
B B A SR R AT il A L AL B SR 4
HERE, AT 18R R AL B RERR SOAT AR
IH; ©OMRIEA T R P04 OR eRE TR
JEESTA BRI

fEET AL B AR A, AR E
BIAHEE M B SRR, SRR
AP ZAE R B . A B 4 I i 1
TIPER R G AR AR BN A
WIRRAE B, Wak NEIE, 3
T B AL ERSb .

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

initially measured based on the cost. Such cost includes: (1)
Initial measurement amount of lease liability; (2) Lease
payment made on or before the start date of lease term minus
the enjoyed lease incentive related amount; (3) Initial direct
expenses incurred; (4) predicted to-be-incurred costs (except
the costs incurred for inventory production) for dismantling
and removing the lease asset, restoring the lease asset location
or restoring the lease asset to the state specified in the lease
clause. If the Group re-measures the lease liabilities according
to related rules of lease criteria, the book value of right-of-use

asset is adjusted accordingly.

According to the anticipated consumption method of
economic interests related to the right-of-use asset, the Group
accrues the depreciation of right-of-use asset by the straight-
line method. If the acquisition of use right of lease asset upon
the expiration of lease term can be reasonably determined, the
depreciation is accrued during the remaining service life of
lease asset; if the acquisition of use right of lease asset upon
the expiration of lease term cannot be reasonably determined,
the depreciation is accrued during the period of lease term and
remaining service life of lease asset, whichever is shorter. The
accrued depreciation amount is included into the cost of
related asset or current profit or loss according to the purpose
of right-of-use asset.

According to the present value of lease payment which has not
been made on the start date of lease term, the Group initially
measures the lease liability. The lease payment includes (1)
Fixed payment and substantial fixed payment minus lease
incentive related amount; (2) Variable lease payment subject
to the index or ratio; (3) Exercise price of call option when the
Group reasonably determines the exercise of call option; (4)
Money paid for exercise of termination of lease option when
the Group’s exercise of termination of lease option is reflected
during the lease term; (5) Predicted money payable according

to the guaranteed residual value provided by the Group.

In the calculation of present value of lease payment, if the
Group fails to determine the lease interest rate, the interest
rate of incremental loan is regarded as the discount rate.
According to the fixed periodical interest rate, the Group
calculates the interest expenses of lease liabilities regarding

different periods during the lease term, and includes them into
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the current profit or loss, except the capitalized expenses.

After the start date of lease term, when the Group recognizes
the interest of lease liability, the book amount of lease liability
is increased; when the lease payment is made, the book
amount of lease liability is decreased. In case of any change to
the substantial fixed payment, any change to the predicted
amount payable of guaranteed residual value, any change to
the index or ratio for determining the lease payment, or any
change to the assessment result or actual exercise of call
option, renewal option or termination option, the Group re-
measures the lease liability according to the present value of
lease payment after change.

2) Short-term Lease and Low-value Asset Lease

For the short-term lease whose lease term is less than twelve
(12) months and low-value asset lease when the single lease
asset is the new asset, the Group chooses not to recognize the
right-of-use asset and lease liability. The Group includes the
lease payment of short-term lease and low-value asset lease
into related asset cost or current profit or loss according to the
straight-line method regarding different periods during the

lease term.
(3) The Group as the Lessor

When the Group acts as the Lessor, if a lease substantially
transfers almost all risks and rewards related to the ownership
of lease asset, the Group classifies such lease as the financing
lease, and the rest is the operating lease.

1) Financing Lease

On the start date of lease term, the Group recognizes the
financing lease money receivable regarding the financing
lease, and de-recognizes the financing lease asset. In the initial
measurement of financing lease money receivable of the
Group, the net amount of lease investment is regarded as the

entry value of financing lease money receivable.

The net amount of lease investment is the sum of
unguaranteed residual value and present value of unreceived
lease receipts on the start date of lease term after the discount

according to the interest rate of lease. The Group calculates
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and recognizes the interest income regarding different periods
during the lease term according to the fixed periodical interest
rate. The variable lease payment which is gained by the Group
and brought into the measurement of net amount of lease
investment is included into the current profit or loss when it is

actually incurred.
2) Operating Lease

Regarding different periods during the lease term, the Group
recognizes the lease receipts of operating lease as the rental

income by the straight-line method.

The initial direct expenses of the Group related to the
operating lease are capitalized to the cost of lease object asset
and they are included into the current profit or loss by stages
according to the recognition basis same as the rental income
during the lease term. The variable lease payment which is not
included into the lease receipts and which is gained by the
Group and related to the operating lease is included into the

current profit or loss when it is actually incurred.

In case of any change to the operating lease, from the effective
date of change, the Group regards it as a new lease for
accounting treatment. The lease receipts collected in advance
or receivable in connection with the lease before the change

are regarded as the new lease receipts.
25. Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to a component of the Group
which meets one of the following requirements and can be
distinguish separately and has been already disposed of or
classified as held-for-sale: (1) the component represents an
independent major line of business or a major independent
geographical area of operations; (2) the component is part of a
plan for the contemplated disposal of an independent major
line of business or a major independent geographical area of
operations; (3) the component is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively for the purpose of resale.

26. Changes of significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates
(1) Changes of significant accounting policies

The Ministry of Finance issued the Accounting Standards for
-163 -
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Business Enterprises No.16 Interpretation (hereinafter referred
“ No.16 Interpretation ” ) on November 30, 2022,
standardized the accounting treatment of initial

to as
which
recognition exemption of deferred income tax related to the

assets and liabilities arising from relevant single transaction.

The scope of initial recognition exemption of deferred income
tax in the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.
18 - Income Tax has been revised in No. 16 Interpretation.
According to the document, the provisions on exemption of
initially recognized deferred income tax liabilities and deferred
income tax assets in the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 18 - Income Tax are inapplicable for the single
transaction which does not belong to the business combination,
which neither affects the accounting profits nor affects the
taxable income (or deductible loss), and where the initially
recognized assets and liabilities give rise to the equivalent
taxable temporary difference and deductible temporary
difference. Such provisions have been put into force from
January 1, 2023 and may be implemented in advance. They are
put into force by the Group from January 1, 2023. Regarding
the single transaction from the beginning of earliest period of
presentation of financial statements to December 31, 2022, the
accounting treatment is done by retroactive adjustment
approach, and the financial statements of comparison year have

been re-stated. The specific impacts are presented as follows:

1) Impacts at the beginning of comparison period

CLiiE e BARHRE
Consolidated Statement Statement of Parent Company
ZHENIRE
AT 2021 4 12 FEEK 2022810 | FAB 2021 F 12 FEE 2022 & 1
Impacted Items H31H ARG 1 H H31H FRESE HiH
Adjusted Adjusted
December 31, 2021 January 1, 2022 December 31, 2021 January 1, 2022
amount amount
before adjustment after adjustment before adjustment after adjustment
21,080,432.34 47,567.08 21,127,999.42 21,080,432.34 47,567.08 21,127,999.42
Surplus reserves
AR BEAE
Undistributed 96,030,718.25 440,627.38 96,471,345.63 18,200,740.51 428,103.71 18,628,844.22
profits
BREREARR
R A
Total of
504,101,979.63 488,194.46 504,590,174.09 — — —
shareholder’s
equities
attributed to

-164 -



20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

parent company
R AR
Total of
504,101,979.63 488,194.46 504,590,174.09 429,485,660.35 475,670.79 429,961,331.14
shareholder’s
equities
2) ¥ LA B Y R 2) Impacts on comparison year
BHERE (2022 FFFD) RAF]RE (2022 5D
Consolidated Statement (2022) Statement of Parent Company (2022)
LWEHRA ABI AL AL
Impacted Items FE% AR %
Before Adjusted Adjusted
. After adjustment Before adjustment After adjustment
adjustment amount amount
B
Income tax 31,673,359.34 -91,617.75 31,581,741.59 23,608,534.62 -92,278.23 23,516,256.39
expenses
HHE
. 90,380,338.77 91,617.75 90,471,956.52 70,488,246.25 92,278.23 70,580,524.48
Net profits
Hb. BERE
AT B ERS
FIE
Including: net 90,380,338.77 91,617.75 90,471,956.52 — — —
profits attributed
to the owner of
parent company
3) SRR R 3) Impacts at the beginning of statement period
AR AT R
Consolidated Statement Statement of Parent Company
ZHENIRA W 2022412 A 20234E 1 71 | ¥R 2022412 7 20234E1 H 1
HESH HEESH
Impacted Items 31 H H 31H H
Adjusted Adjusted
December 31, 2022 January 1, December 31, 2022 January 1,
amount amount
before adjustment 2023 before adjustment 2023
EAE R
X 6,224,098.37 579,812.21 6,803,910.58 1,102,912.65 567,949.02 1,670,861.67
Deferred income tax assets
BER A
28,129,256.97 56,794.90 28,186,051.87 28,129,256.97 56,794.90 28,186,051.87
Surplus reserves
AR
Lo 179,362,232.39 523,017.31 179,885,249.70 81,640,162.13 511,154.12 82,151,316.25
Undistributed profits
BER AR RRAER A
Total of shareholder’ s
594,482,318.40 579,812.21 595,062,130.61 — — —
equities attributed to parent
company
R AR
Total of shareholder’ s 594,482,318.40 579,812.21 595,062,130.61 499,973,906.60 567,949.02 | 500,541,855.62
equities
2) EEGFHEFIEE (2) Changes of significant accounting estimates
AR AL 1 e s R R g AR There is no change in the significant accounting estimates of
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B, the Group for the reporting period.
~ BIR IV. TAXATION
LEERERRE 1. Main types of tax and tax rates
BitE CIRAGR S
Type of tax Tax basis Tax rate
Hh B K A SE T A AR JEAAR 1545 0
. ) . 25%
China Enterprise Income Tax Taxable income
HEAE AR JERIN o/ R0, o Qo 0
VAT Taxable income 0%, 3%, 6% 9% 13%
Ik T A A A

B RN A A

5 V)
Urban maintenance and Amount of actual payable turnover tax %
construction tax
FUH E I n B A AR 0
. 3%
Education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
H 5 HOE B BN A A 0
. 2%
Local education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
s AR 3 AR SE BRI
Tax on land use Land area Fixed rate
} o/ alr KH 4> .
I 700/}%%%@5;] 7?/"%’&@&)\{ 1.2%5% 12%
Property taxes o of original value of the properties 1.9% or 12%
or rental income
5. AHMHRREEFEEE V . NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP EE A RS IR R R, B AR For data in the financial data as disclosed below, “beginning

Wl hh,  “HEH]” R18 20231 H 1 of the year” represents 1 January 2023, “end of the year”
H, “4EXR” F#i#g 2023 F 12 A 31 represents 31 December 2023, “the year” represents the period
H, “KE” RF2023F1H1HE from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, “last year”
12 H31H, “E4FE” R$g 2022 F 1 represents the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
H1HZ 12 H31 H, B%EMAANR 2022, and the monetary unit shall be RMB, unless specified
Wt otherwise.
1.E¥MES 1. Monetary funds
RH FARERER Balance asﬂzaj‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JEAFIR 4
Cash on hand 238,303.54 600,530.39
SRATAEK
Cash in bank 112,690,514.08 68,260,878.21
T A e 5 A
HARF T 521,268,411.47 423,812,146.84
Other monetary funds
&at
634,197,229.09 492,673,555.44
Total
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RH FARERER Balance asﬂjtjgt]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
Forbr: FFIAESE MR IHAR AR
Incl. the total amount of money 404,255.17 398,926.50
deposited abroad
87 32 30 R A Y B W A 4 Use of restricted monetary funds
AH PR Balance asf?tjffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
SRAT 7K S RE SRR
ﬁ%%

Bank acceptance draft margin,
borrowing margin

521,268,411.47

423,812,146.84

=
521,268,411.47 423,812,146.84
Total
2. JEWE R 2. Bills receivables
(D) JERCEERE 2 FPR (1) Classification of bills receivables
RH FARBE Balance asﬂjtjgt]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year

FRAT A ST b 22
Bank acceptance bills
e A il i)
ﬁﬁ%g{ﬂ‘!@ 3,645,761.32 5,348,665.70
Commercial drafts
it

3,645,761.32 5,348,665.70
Subtotal
Tk SEHR ME

12 1 18,720.

Less: Provision for bad debt ,760.16 8,720.33
&3t

3,633,001.16 5,329,945.37
Total

(2) FEHREHRITVE D EHIR

(2) Classification by the

methods for making provisions for

bad debt
FEARGH
Balance as at the end of the year
il R T BB BEAR TR
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt HE T A
e Ll (%) it FHELLH (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)
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FEREGBH
Balance as at the end of the year
_— BT AR SR
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt R B
| LBl (%) & aHREEH (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)

17 IR IR e A
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
A AT IR YA
Bad debt provision 3,645,761.32 100.00 | 12,760.16 035 | 3,633,001.16
made on a collective
basis

. HEEA4H O
EEP 'Em e . 3,645,761.32 100.00 12,760.16 0.35 3,633,001.16
Incl: Aging portfolio
A
I’l?oi:l 3,645,761.32 100.00 12,760.16 — 3,633,001.16

(#) (continued)
R
Balance as at the beginning of the year
_— B T 64 AR
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt I T AL
&# Bl (%) &8 FHREEH (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)

o BTG SRR YE A
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
F A AT SRR YEA
Bad debt provision 5,348,665.70 100.00 | 18,720.33 035| 532994537
made on a collective
basis

. HEEA4H O
EEP ’ 'Em 48 . 5,348,665.70 100.00 18,720.33 0.35 5,329,945.37
Incl: Aging portfolio
P
’Foiil 5,348,665.70 100.00 18,720.33 — 5,329,945.37

D F A RHR B R R e A

1) Bad debt provision for bills receivables made on a collective

basis

FERBER
25 Balance as at the end of the year
Title FRIEI AR AR BEARYEM aHREH (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
A G A

E‘Eg? 48 . 3,645,761.32 12,760.16 0.35
Aging portfolio
=Eil 3,645,761.32 12,760.16
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FERBER
25 Balance as at the end of the year
Title HRTH AR %R BEARTEM ATIRELHI (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
Total

AE 1 PR AR EFA I P 36 AR S0 B 5 Note 1: For the aging portfolio comprising the amounts of the
AR ORI BAEE & AR H ARSI commercial drafts held as at the end of the year and the

1R SE 7R SRR SR SRR E ARG AL S, 2 commercial drafts discounted as at the end of the year but not
HE RS HR A P TRTA S FH $R R SR EL il mature at the balance sheet date, the impairment losses of
P15 HIE R R credit are provided for with reference to the expected credit

loss rates for trade receivables.

FE 20 AR R R B CCE S F RS Note 2: The age of the aforementioned bills receivables of the

W1 FEZ N, Group as at the end of the year was within 1 year.
(3) ECEREASEG R, Ul g (3) Provisions for bad debt accrued, recovered and reversed
A 152 AR E {5 for bills receivables in the year
FEEBE G
Changes in the year
R sy | PR R
X7 Balance as at K8
N - [ Balance as at the
Category the beginning of =Hg Written | HAth
Recovered end of the year
the year Accrued back or | Other
revgll:sed written
off
P € 7K 53 B
e
- . 18,720.33 -5,960.17 12,760.16
Commercial
drafts
a3t
18,720.33 -5,960.17 12,760.16
Total
(4) FROEM M ESCESE (4) Pledged bills receivables as at the end of the year
IHH FEROEMNEH
Item Pledged amount as at the end of the year
6 L SE ) o B
RIS RSEHE S 3,400,000.00
Commercial drafts
3t
3,400,000.00
Total

(5) AEFEFRECKE ZUHH A (5) The Group had no notes receivable that had been endorsed
TR B AR H R B U R or discounted at the end of the year and were not yet mature at
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(6) AN S [ A 48 1 B P A 1 1) B WAL 232

the balance sheet date.

(6) The Group has no actually written-off bills receivable this

ye year.
3EIRER K 3. Trade receivables
RE £ AR Balance asq;j‘)t]ffﬁ inning of
Name of Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JRESCHR K

Trade receivables

982,891,686.13

865,013,450.04

I BURYEA

Less: Provision for bad debt

21,172,836.07

20,570,905.33

k]

Net amount

961,718,850.06

844,442,544.71

(1) BRI RS 5178

FERLAIT 25 20, AR N
{5 B R BOR AR S A 2 5 45
RN E R AR . AR 5 ) %
FEA R 15 RO, (5 —
NIRRT SREHE, DA HIE
TR 0 i BT A R B UUIR AR A 7 2R i
NHIRERRRR B, A0 B AT HARES .

(1) Accounts receivable by aging

Before accepting new customers, the Group assessed the credit

worthiness of potential clients and set corresponding credit

limits according to the internal credit assessment policies. The

Group applies different credit policies to different customers,

credit period is generally six months. As for commodity sales,

the trade receivables and operating revenue are recognized and

the age of the same is calculated after the control right has been

transferred to the buyers.

R FEARGBE FYIRE
A N Balance as at the end of the Balance as at the beginning of
ge
year the year
L £ LAPY 956,817,773.59 838,690,868.18
Within 1 year
1-2 4 10,258,740.50 10,677,499.45
1 to 2 years
23 4 1,254,876.36 1,380,979.86
2 to 3 years
3 UL 14,560,295.68 14,264,102.55
More than 3 years
P
,;,' il 982,891,686.13 865,013,450.04
otal

(2) BRI AR EHR Tk 70
I
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SEREREH
Balance as at the end of the year
PR TH B8R 8 BEARYEM
ER| Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification L4 =3 L) EEmEE
&8 (%) &8 (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
Y B THGH PRI AR e A
Bad debt provision 17,125,410.33 174 | 16,915,061.23 98.77 210,349.10
made on individual
basis
TRl B At PRI R e A
Bad debt provision 965,766,275.80 98.26 | 4,257,774.84 0.44 | 961,508,500.96
made on a collective
basis
H. WA GH A
Horbs Eﬁﬁ? Al . 965,766,275.80 98.26 4,257,774.84 0.44 | 961,508,500.96
Incl: Aging portfolio
A
Tnoil 982,891,686.13 100.00 | 21,172,836.07 — | 961,718,850.06
(4D (Continued)
SEVIEREH
Balance as at the beginning of the year
AR TH AR5 BEHR Ef
ER| Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification L8] =HE EF) ARTHE/E
&8 (%) &8 (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
Y B IEGH IR e A
Bad debt provision 17,137,505.02 1.98 | 16,525,274.67 96.43 612,230.35
made on individual
basis
Fedl B At PRI R e A
Bad debt provision 847,875,945.02 98.02 |  4,045,630.66 0.48 | 843,830,314.36
made on a collective
basis
Joh, BRI AL
Hrk: Eﬁﬁ? Al . 847,875,945.02 98.02 4,045,630.66 0.48 | 843,830,314.36
Aging portfolio
A
Tnoil 865,013,450.04 100.00 | 20,570,905.33 — | 844,442,544.71

1) EHSCHR R 15 B IH R S SR YE

1) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on individual

basis
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Balance as at the beginning Balance as at the end of the year
R of the year
2148
Company | mmew | MR | EESE | WEME T 000 | s
Book Provision for Book Provision for Provision Reasons for
balance bad debt balance bad debt . provision
ratio(%)
BT K F RNV e}
NEEREH WIARREE, HW
MR YT €2
Huizhou 6,436,891.56 | 6,436,891.56 | 6,436,891.56 | 6,436,891.56 100.00 Default in overdue
Dachuan goods payment, and
Pharmacy involvement in a
Co., Ltd. number of litigations
HINTIR AP TR Bk
FUEXR WIARRMEE, HW
MR YT €2
Shenzhen 3,007,101.83 | 3,007,101.83 | 3,007,101.83 | 3,007,101.83 100.00 Default in overdue
Yuanxin goods payment, and
Pharmacy involvement in a
Co., Ltd. number of litigations
B T i A TR Bk
JREEZEH WIARREE, HW
MR YT €2
Huizhou 2,953,162.16 | 2,953,162.16 | 2,759,942.29 | 2,647,042.29 9591 Default in overdue
Haichen goods payment, and
Pharmacy involvement in a
Co., Ltd. number of litigations
AP TR B
HIRReMHE, THE
HoAih A A PG
Others 4,740,349.47 | 4,128,119.12 | 4,921,474.65 | 4,824,025.55 98.02 Default in overdue
goods payment, low
expected
recoverability
CEL
Total 17,137,505.02 | 16,525,274.67 | 17,125,410.33 | 16,915,061.23 — —

ab: Al &R 200 H LT /NEZ F .

2) JEBCRRIZ A AR AR YE A

Note: Other small customers under 2,000,000.

2) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on a collective

basis

FERRE
ER#s Balance as at the end of the year
Age SR THI BR AR BIRYER AHRELH] (%)
Book balance Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
! EE U N 956,299,254.40 3,347,047.38 0.35
Within 1 year
1-2 4 9,467,021.40 910,727.46 9.62

1 to 2 years
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23 4F
2 to 3 years

34D

Over 3 years

At

965,766,275.80 4,257,774.84 —
Total

(3) JEUWHRR AR (a5 (3) Provision for bad debt accrued, recovered or reversed this

[ 1 S5 R YR 175 year regarding accounts receivable
FEBHSH
Changes in the year
\ IR B | WS FREE
il Balance as at the ’ A Balance as at
Item beginning of the 5 =l ﬁ.ﬁ HAh the end of the
year Acecrued Recovered | Written Others year
or back or
reversed | written off
B IR
Individual 16,525,274.67 | 1,144,368.27 | 552,722.02 | 201,859.69 16,915,061.23
provision
HREC AL
Ageing 4,045,630.66 | 212,144.18 4,257,774.84
portfolio
&t
Total 20,570,905.33 | 1,356,512.45 | 552,722.02 | 201,859.69 21,172,836.07

A A 1 R AE A U [ BX i R 4 4H 35 2% /NER The recovered or reversed amount of provision for bad debts
B AR AU R] sl E] this year is the small-amount payment for goods, and there is

no important recovery or reversal.

(4) A B REAZ S I SR s (4) Actually written-off accounts receivable this year
IRHE BesH S8R
Item The amount of write-off
o o A it HE 25
S 1 O | 201.859.69
Actually written-off accounts receivable
AR S I BRS8N R K The written-off accounts receivable this year are small-amount
ANAEAE E ) BISIR A% 8 payment for goods, and there is no write-off of important
accounts receivable.
(5) ¥&RRT7 BEE W AFE R BREH AT 1o (5) Details of top five balances of trade receivables classified by

24 ) AT R 1 L borrowers as at the end of the year
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AAEFE R R T7 B AR (WA R BRBE AT 1L 4
JEUCHR R ORE AR & B A AR
257,836,719.11 JT, i JE IR 2k 45 K
BRER A AT BN EL ] 26.24%, AH ERT
2 (1) 15 TR VB A AP R R BHRE AR S B 2 A
L 902,428.52 .

In the year, the sum of accounts receivable of five borrowers
with the largest closing balance of accounts receivable was
RMB257,836,719.11, 26.24% of the total closing balance of
accounts receivable. Accordingly, the bad debt provisions set
aside had a total closing balance of RMB902,428.52.

4. UK IR 4.Accounts receivable financing

THH FEARGRER FYIRER

Item Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year

P SN B
MATHRGER 15,483,006.79
Bank acceptance bills
ARt
15,483,006.79
Total
5. FAa{t2kIE 5. Prepayments
(1) TEAFRIAMRES (1) Aging of prepayments
FEARGRH FYIRER
IHH Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Item £ HBil (%) £ BB (%)
Amount Proportion(%) Amount Proportion(%)

! EEUW 382,143,556.42 99.78 347,917,602.08 89.62
Within 1 year
1-2 4 681,258.81 0.18 40,091,532.78 10.33
1 to 2 years
2-3 4 119,020.35 0.03 156,403.52 0.04
2 to 3 years
3FLLE 4,860.11 0.01 52,454.79 0.01
More than 3 years
A
l"l?oﬂ-l 382,948,695.69 100.00 388,217,993.17 100.00

(2) TR 3 G 4R (0 4 R eR B Al
T ARSI

AR TRAT B SR AR I A R R ER AT L
ZOVAAT EIEBE A8 & E A N R
172,675,868.87 JG, it THAT 3K IHF K
BREAG BTN LLAE] 45.09%

(2) Details of top five balances of prepayments classified by
payees as at the end of the year

In the year, the sum of prepayments from five companies with
the largest closing balance of prepayments by payee was
RMB172,675,868.87, 45.09% of the total closing balance of

prepayments.

6. FAth WK 6.0ther receivables
HH A R Balance asﬂj?t]ffﬁﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
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JRH FARBRER Balance asﬂ;?tjffﬁﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JEUSCR R
Interests receivable
JECBF
Dividend receivable
HoAh B 3k
”ﬁﬁgq&’f}\ 12,075,916.66 96,654,746.27
Other receivables
ARt
12,075,916.66 96,654,746.27
Total
6.1 HoAh ISk 6.1 Other receivables
(1) HoAth EWGR 33k TH M 7 45 (1) Classification of other receivables by nature
IR SRR TH SRR SEAIRRTH AR ER
. Book balance as at the end of the | Book balance as at the beginning
Nature of amounts
year of the year
e
EHRR 80,000,000.00
Land collection and storage
2ye A
1%::3@ 10,559,202.00 11,133,162.00
Deposit
43 7l B
AR 1,239,324.91 5,983,095.11
Current accounts
PN
fi il 2 1,109,179.48 686,054.81
Reserve
FoAt
N 898.20 10,898.20
Others )
ARt
12,908,604.59 97,813,210.12
Total
W IR YEL
Less: Provision for bad debt 832,687.93 1,158,463.85
B 12,075,916.66 96,654,746.27
Net amount
(2) HAREBGRIZRES F17R (2) Aging analysis of other receivables
RRdie FARBRER Balance as aﬁzﬁfﬁnnin of the
Age Balance as at the end of the year year g g
! iU\W 2,271,597.42 85,898,648.95
Within 1 year
124 339,326.00 983,849.72
1 to 2 years
2-3 4 963,849.72 947,181.25
2 to 3 years
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Rt AR Balance as aﬁfﬁijﬁinnin of the
Age Balance as at the end of the year year g g
3LlE 9,333,831.45 9,983,530.20
More than 3 years
a3t
12,908,604.59 97,813,210.12
Total

(3) HoAt EWOH F AR E 52 77 %70

(3) Other receivables are classified and presented according to

LSRN the accrual method of bad debt.
FERBREE
Balance as at the end of the year
R TH fR 81 BERYER
| Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification =R ARTHE(E
¥ tEBl (%) 4 ¥H i (%) Book value
Percentage . .
Amount (%) Amount | Provision ratio
° (%)
Yo B IHETH R MR A
Bad debt provision made on 1,240,223.11 9.61 [832,687.93 67.14 407,535.18
individual basis
A ARt IR I AR YA
Bad debt provision made on a 11,668,381.48 90.39 11,668,381.48
collective basis
Horpe )RS AL A 11,668,381.48 90.39 11,668,381.48
A
a&t 12,908,604.59 100.00 832,687.93 — 12,075,916.66
Total
(#D (continued)
SEVIRE
Balance as at the beginning of the year
BRI BREH BEREMR
cl ﬁiﬁu Book balance Provision for bad debt
assification =
sHgtp | SREEE
458 EEBl (%) & 58 (%) Book value
Percentage . .
Amount (%) Amount |Provision ratio
’ (%)
¥ B IEGH PRI R A
Bad debt provision made on 592,343.92 0.61 | 592,343.92 100.00
individual basis
T G TR AR YE M
Bad debt provision made on a 97,220,866.20 99.39 | 566,119.93 0.58 96,654,746.27
collective basis
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FEVIRRER
Balance as at the beginning of the year
FR TH] B 3R BARYEH
. iﬁf“ Book balance Provision for bad debt
assification =
gkl | REEE
et 2] EeB (%) ot 2| (%) Book value
Percentage . . .
Amount (%) Amount |Provision ratio
’ (%)
Hrh, EATRAS
Ao ﬂi}jﬂl&“ o 92,231,751.99 94.29 92,231,751.99
Incl: low-risk portfolio
EA G A
EE%.'? ol . 4,989,114.21 5.10 | 566,119.93 11.35 | 4,422,994.28
Aging portfolio
i
Total 97,813,210.12 100.00 [1,158,463.85 — 96,654,746.27

1) Sfl Mk I R A

1) Provision for bad debts for other receivables made

individually
ENIRE ERGBREH
Beginning Balance Ending Balance
FHRLL
Gl SR SR il
Name BRIEBRER L BRIEBRER . 0 FHRE R
Book bal Provision for Book bal Provision for (%) A ]
ook balance bad debt ook balance bad debt Acerual ccrual reason
proporti
R PR E
i 3t 9 5 KA B
FBEEA R A A Lﬁ H ¥ Kk
Hunan =2
Pharmaceutical 586,445.72 586,445.72 698,143.66 698,143.66 100.00 The  payment
Company Limited for goods of
of TUS Guhan such customer
Group is delayed and
there are many
lawsuits.
THFT U R
e It is estimated
iﬁﬁ% 523,181.25 115,646.07 22.10 that such
Yin Lihua
amount cannot
be recovered
HAh LR S
5,898.20 5,898.20 18,898.20 18,898.20 100.00
Others
Cancelled
A5 592,343.92 592,343.92 1,240,223.11 832,687.93 — —
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2 Aty NS RR $2 IR TS FH 48 2k —

FEAR AL T SRR K HE 2

CO.,LTD.

2) Accrual of provision for bad debt according to the general

model of expected credit loss regarding other receivables

Eoal 124
First stage

o124

Second stage

=B
Third stage

BEEREM

Provision for bad debt

R 12 8 A 6
fERBR
12-month expected
credit loss

BEAETHBERA
RORF AR
Lifetime expected
credit loss (not credit-
impaired)

BEFENTEMERA
R(EHERSRAWE)
Lifetime expected credit
loss (credit-impaired)

A
(=)

Total

2023 4E 1 A 1 H&%
Balance on 1 January 2023

566,119.93

592,343.92

1,158,463.85

202341 A 1H

A A K R T R AR A AR
Book balance of other receivables
on 1 January 2023 in the year

YNy =

--Transfer to the second stage

BN B =R B
-- Transfer to the third stage

-98,542.89

98,542.89

- [n] 5 BB

-- Reversed to the second stage

-k [m 5 — [ B

-- Reversed to the first stage

AEEFHR

Accrued for the year

-467,577.04

161,801.12

-305,775.92

A ]

Reversed in the year

A

Written off in the year

AEERZ S

Cancelled in the year

20,000.00

20,000.00

Hfth s dh
Other changes

2023 £ 12 A 31 H&R#
Balance on 31 December 2023

832,687.93

832,687.93

(4) HAthJESCRAFFT . el 5 (4) Provisions for bad debt accrued, recovered or reversed this
T[] ey 3 PR VEE e 15 year regarding other receivables
FEEBE S

R B ?@Jﬁ%@ﬁ ¢ Changes in the year B%*ﬁ%ﬁ .

alance as a . - alance as a
Item the beginning =i el g e ﬁ%ﬁ&% HAh the end of the

of the year Acerued Recovered | Written back Others year

or reversed | or written off

WL
Individual 592,343.92 260,344.01 20,000.00 832,687.93
provision
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IRESH G
Ageing 566,119.93 -566,119.93
portfolio
a3t
1,158,463.85 -305,775.92 20,000.00 832,687.93
Total
(5) ZR4F LB BEAZ S 1) H A B GR (5) Actually written-off other receivables this year
IHH YSH &
Item Write-off amount
¢ J7 Al e

B DA 3L A, 20.000.00

Actually written-off other receivables

A S A% S 11 At B W X 2 N B K
T, AN AE EE ) A SR 3 o

(6) 2R T5 i B ) 4R R R AR AT

The written-off other receivables this year are small-amount

money and there is no write-off of important other receivables.

(6) Top 5 other receivables based on balances at the end of the

24 ) A RS T year by debtors
A Fofth FEBCR R R .
- BEERYELE
J A
B e BET ML e
B 42TE Nat Balance as at R 0 Balance of
Company name ature the end of the Age Percentage provision for bad
of of total year-end
year debts at the end of
amounts balances of other the vear
receivables (%) y
P W R LA IR A A -
EicA L
Zhuhai Jinming Pharmaceutical | oL 5,600,00000 | 3 FHL 4338
Deposit Over 3 years
Co., Ltd
R £ ) B R B S i TR
INE 2ye A >
A~ : . Rtz 1,050,00000 | 3 FELE 8.13
Taiji Group Chonggqing Fuling Deposit Over 3 years
Pharmaceutical Factory Co., Ltd
A4 T 2 T S AU B i FEYN
Fujian Nan'an Lianhua Peak Y 1,000,000.00 3L 7.75
. Deposit
Pharmaceutical Factory
e v AR P U P B AR A TR A
= 4 A
EJ ) ’fEE}EfTJ\ lgzuw\ 2_
Enlightenment Guhan Group Current 698,143.66 541 698,143.66
. 34
Hunan Pharmaceutical Co., money
LTD
RN HE BB SE A IR =) e
Guangzhou Longzehui Property Deu;si ‘ 644,800.00 1 LW 5
Management Co., LTD P
a3
— 8,992,943.66 — 69.67 698,143.66
Total

(7)) ALEMAFEREENE SEAE

(7) The Group has no money presented in other receivables
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P 271 3 17 JFL At JRE KK 1) 3R T
THE
(D) &y

due to the centralized capital management this year.

7. Inventories

(1) Classification of inventories

FERERER FHIRH
Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
RH TR T E B
Item BRIE AR EH Provision for BRI EE BRIE AR EH Provision for BRI EE
Book balance inventory Book value Book balance inventory Book value
impairment impairment
JEEFE 7 i
Goods in 719,424,210.78 4,361,225.47 715,062,985.31 486,851,833.77 3,148,303.99 483,703,529.78
stock
% 60,778,649.85 60,778,649.85 103,150,158.65 103,150,158.65
Goods sold
PNEN
;ofil 780,202,860.63 4,361,225.47 775,841,635.16 590,001,992.42 3,148,303.99 586,853,688.43
(2) fF&EIEER (2) Provision for inventory impairment
AN AR
FHIRRER Addition for the year Reduction for the year FARGE
HH Balance as at o R Balance as at
Item the beginning =g HAh 5z HAfpr | the end of the
of the year Accrued Others Reversed or Others year
written back
7 [

Eﬁﬁ.m 3,148,303.99 4,361,225.47 3,148,303.99 4,361,225.47
Goods in stock
&t
Total 3,148,303.99 4,361,225.47 3,148,303.99 4,361,225.47

(3) ARG EFERGHEAEE

(3) The Group’s year-end balance of stocks does not include

BB A S . capitalization of borrowing costs.
8. H AR EN & 2 8. Other current assets
T FRGH R
Balance as at the beginning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year the year
i i TE FR ZE
FrRATAE AL . 41,080,324.46 32,077,369.36
Input tax to be credited
/==t
KLl 504,269.26 628,499.57
Deferred expenses
A
sl 41,584,593.72 32,705,868.93
Total
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9.FH B E 9. Fixed assets
e AR FE Book vaﬁlzj)zf%liﬁéﬁ%nnin of
Item Book value at the end of the year g g
the year
2o YR
..;Eé}% 294,721,220.12 276,489,505.37
Fixed assets
SE B A NG P
Liquidation of fixed assets
3t
294,721,220.12 276,489,505.37
Total
9.1 [H5E ¥ & 9.1 Fixed assets
(1) [ & A 1 T (1) Situation of fixed assets
RN BRI WS WARE A
HH . : . At
Buildings and Machinery and Transportation Office
Item . o . Total
structures equipment facilities equipment
— HRI R E
1. Original book value
LAFEYIERER
1.Balance as at the 269,201,751.39 66,969,425.46 15,657,365.97 9,723,582.79 | 361,552,125.61
beginning of the year
# w5
Q'ZISEE.% Mz 29,008,957.34 4,016,381.27 2,215,683.60 572,041.33 35,813,063.54
2. Addition for the year
(1) WBH 29,008,957.34 4,016,381.27 2,215,683.60 572,041.33 35,813,063.54
(1) Purchase
N =]
3'2&%@? A 210,795.62 1,979,284.91 11,035.00 2,201,115.53
3. Reduction for the year
(1) i B ol g
(1) Disposal or 210,795.62 1,979,284.91 11,035.00 2,201,115.53
retirement

(2) EONFTE Dy Hi e
2) Transfer to
investment real estate

4 SR EGREH
4 Balance as at the end of
the year

298,210,708.73

70,775,011.11

15,893,764.66

10,284,589.12 | 395,164,073.62

=, HEtihE
II. Accumulated
depreciation

LAY

1 Balance as at the 41.475321.46 2533561046 | 942635594 | 8.825.33238 | 85.062.62024
beginning of the year
s
LA S 8,653,174.94 6.183.576.71 | 1.970.641.29 633.423.90 | 17.440.816.84
2. Addition for the year
=L 4H,
(1) FHe 8,653,174.94 6.183,576.71 | 1970,641.29 633.423.90 | 17.440.816.84
(1) Accrue
PN
3G S 19910685 | 1,852,906.31 8,570.42 2,060,583.58

3. Reduction for the year
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HH

Item

BEREEY
Buildings and

structures

MRSt
Machinery and
equipment

R
Transportation
facilities

WA
Office
equipment

s
Total

(1) JE 5 sk
(1) Disposal or
retirement

199,106.85

1,852,906.31

8,570.42

2,060,583.58

(2) BHNBLANE 5 E
(2)Transfer to
investment property

4 FERERER
4.Balance as at the end of
the year

50,128,496.40

31,320,080.32

9,544,090.92

9,450,185.86

100,442,853.50

= DB

[I1. Impairment provision

LAEYIEREH
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

2 ARG N4 5
2. Addition for the year

3 AR S HH

3. Reduction for the year

4 R EREH
4 Balance as at the end of
the year

VY. HRTEEME
IV . Book value

LERREEMR
1.Book value at the end
of the year

248,082,212.33

39,454,930.79

6,349,673.74

834,403.26

294,721,220.12

2 YRR TR
2.Book value at the
beginning of the year

227,726,429.93

41,633,815.00

6,231,010.03

898,250.41

276,489,505.37

AE [ 58 B2 IR I D0 LB RE L

15,

(2) A EEANAE A8 2 1Ry PR LI [

(3) KREMMALAEIE

A AR A

Note: For the fixed assets mortgage, see Note V. 15.

(2) The Group has no fixed assets that are temporarily idle.

(3) The Group has no fixed assets leased out through operating

H (%) 2] 5 5 leases.
(4) RIS I G (4) Fixed assets without property right certificate
HH BRI (B E Rz EREREREE
JE AR AISE 2 m) R AR 29,008,957.34 IETEH R 3 3
10.fF R E 10. Right-of-use assets

(1) o FHHE 35 28 50
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IHH BEREEY &t
Item Buildings and structures Total

— HRm AR

I. Original book value

LAY

1.Balance as at the beginning of the year

30,808,548.78

30,808,548.78

2 ARG N4 5
2. Addition for the year

23,076,325.31

23,076,325.31

(O MA
(1) New lease

23,076,325.31

23,076,325.31

3R B HA
3.Reduction for the year

2,045,151.09

2,045,151.09

(D EHE
(1) Disposal

(2) FE#HE
(2)Leasing change

2,045,151.09

2,045,151.09

4R ERER

4.Balance as at the end of the year

51,839,723.00

51,839,723.00

=, BEtinE

II. Accumulated depreciation

1AEA) AR

1.Balance as at the beginning of the year

13,218,392.91

13,218,392.91

2 ARG N4 5
2. Addition for the year

4,794,914.17

4,794,914.17

(1) #HE
(1) Accrued

4,794,914.17

4,794,914.17

A SR
3.Reduction for the year

(D) EHE
(1) Disposal

4R ERAR

4.Balance as at the end of the year

18,013,307.08

18,013,307.08

= AE

II1. Impairment provision

1 AEA) AR

1.Balance as at the beginning of the year

2 AN A
2. Addition for the year

AL SR

3. Reduction for the year

4R ERAR

4.Balance as at the end of the year

Y. FRIEE
IV. Book value

1LEARREBEE

1.Book value at the end of the year 33,826,415.92 33,826,415.92
2EEIEREE A

1 155. 1 155.
2.Book value at the beginning of the year 7,590,155.87 7,590,155.87
1B EE 11. Intangible assets

(1) I8 WA

(1) Details of intangible assets
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JHH

Item

A IR
Land use rights

SR

Computer
software

=958 ¢/

Customer
resources

£t
Total

= MR ERAE

I. Original book value

LA ER AR
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

83,404,212.62

18,814,928.89

2,697,830.16

104,916,971.67

2 ARG N4 5
2. Addition for the year

99,750.00

99,750.00

(DA
(1) Purchase

99,750.00

99,750.00

3 ARG &R
3. Reduction for the year

(1) Jig B ok

(1) Dispose of or scrap

4 FERERER
4.Balance as at the end of
the year

83,404,212.62

18,914,678.89

2,697,830.16

105,016,721.67

. BRETRE
II. Accumulated
amortization

LAEYIERER
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

12,317,776.49

11,168,455.46

573,411.15

24,059,643.10

2 ARAEIG N4 5
2. Addition for the year

2,105,223.14

1,859,262.64

269,783.01

4,234,268.79

(1 FHg
(1) Accrued

2,105,223.14

1,859,262.64

269,783.01

4,234,268.79

3R SR

3. Reduction for the year

(1) i B ot
(1) Dispose of or scrap

4 FERERER
4.Balance as at the end of
the year

14,422,999.63

13,027,718.10

843,194.16

28,293,911.89

=\ WAEER

III. Impairment provision

LAEYIEREH
1.Balance as at the
beginning of the year

2 AN A
2. Addition for the year

3R SR

3. Reduction for the year

4 FRERER
4.Balance as at the end of
the year

VY. HRTHEE
IV. Book value

LAERREEE
1.Book value at the end of
the year

68,981,212.99

5,886,960.79

1,854,636.00

76,722,809.78

2EYARTE R AE
2.Book value at the
beginning of the year

71,086,436.13

7,646,473.43

2,124,419.01

80,857,328.57
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1 BE 2023412 H 31 H, K Note 1: As at 31 December 2023, no intangible asset arose
B [F R A7 AE NS E 55 T R 1) 8 T B through the internal research and development of the Group.
E o

AE 2 M A KA U0 B RE T Note 2: For the pledge of intangible assets, please refer to Note
15, V. 15.
12.758 12. Goodwill
(1) maEE (1) Original value of goodwill
AW AR
FHIRRER Addition for the period Reduction for the FAREGBH
BB B4R Balance as at the period Balance as at
Name of the investee beginning of the OB the end of the
year As a result of business . year
R Others | Disposal | Others
combination
FRitF A1 A
Zhuhai Charmacy 4,567,297.19 4,567,297.19
Company
JE& I A6 7]
Guangzhou Charmacy 26,328.12 26,328.12
Company
BN AR A F
Huizhou Charmacy 2,896,416.16 2,896,416.16
Company
I~
7,490,041.47 7,490,041.47
Total
(2) T2k e A (2) Provision for impairment of goodwill
, A H3E N A
, AR Addition for the Addition for the FREHE
BB B E Balance as at the period period Balance as at
Name of the investee beginning of the = the end of the
B e o it HE s vear
Accrued Others Disposal Others
Bt AL A
Zhuhai Charmacy Company 1,465,937.31 1,465,937.31
J& I AISE 2 7]
Guangzhou Charmacy
Company
B AR A F
Huizhou Charmacy Company
=
1,465,937.31 1,465,937.31
Total
(3) HBEEEMANEEHHAE (3) Relevant information about asset group or asset group
AR B A5 B portfolio of goodwill
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REHELL
PR 5 ﬁ?_’if"
2B E]“E Qéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ‘]ﬁﬁi&ﬁiﬁ %B&ﬁkjg Consistent
Name Composition of Asset Group or Portfolio and Basis Business i
p p Segment with the
. Previous
and Basis Year or
not
AT 2017 SFHCEIRIGAISR AR BHE, [ RIS
O P AN RS S 3 7 s A ey | P SR
S 1 AT B DA IR A A, Pharmaceutical |
Zhuhai Charmacy Company _The Company acqulreq the equities of Z_huhal Charmacy Compan_y o
in 2017. The cash inflow of Zhuhai Charmacy Company is | Distribution Yes
basically independent of the cash inflow due to other assets or asset
group. Therefore, it is affirmed as an asset group. Sector
AR F] TR 2017 AU B N A1 SE A F) RHE, TR IR 7 ] A1 55 .
O M BN T B S 3 7 s e e ey | P SR
JEIH AISE 2 =] BB . PR R e A — M 2 AL Pharmaceutical 2
Guangzhou Charmacy The Company acquired the equities of Guangzhou Charmacy
Company Company in 2017. The cash inflow of Guangzhou Charmacy | Distribution Yes
Company is basically independent of the cash inflow due to other
assets or asset group. Therefore, it is affirmed as an asset group. Sector
AN F] A 2020 S BN A6 4 R BHE, R e 7S BN A1 3R -
O AL RS S 38 7 s A ey | P SR
B AL F] BRI o DRI AR 28— ¥ A Pharmaceutical I
Huizhou Charmacy The Company acquired the equities of Huizhou Charmacy
Company Company in 2020. The cash inflow of Huizhou Charmacy | Distribution Yes
Company is basically independent of the cash inflow due to other
assets or asset group. Therefore, it is affirmed as an asset group. Sector

(4) AT IE] £ AR I LB e vk (4) Specific determination method of recoverable amount
T RSN EES | Belin | BedinmEe
A &5 ﬁﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁ ER | RS EL K BmEKE | WE28| BRRERKE
IHH AREEE Impairme Determination Key Determination
Recoverable Year of | Key Parameters of . .
Item Book Value nt . . . Basis of Key (Parameter| Basis of Key
Amount A Predictio| Prediction Period
mount n Period Parameters of |s of Stable| Parameters of
Prediction Period| Period Stable Period
y (e TN /ASEIE i A7 55 #0 M B TEOA
TERH T | s o i )
, s 10,790, 3 [T AL R N
SRSIEIA s 13 (BB BON Rl i
| 5 4F Durin {he r.e diction Comparable 0% Predicted data
Zhuhai 3,403,797.18 74,619,476.61 e e estimated Income |basis of marketing
Charmacy 5 years ?ncom’e rowth rfte s expected ROI of |growth department  and
Company 10.73% gthe discount business asset rate: 0% |consideration  of
. 0. .
AR igroup of the actual completion
rate is 13.34%. Company rate
' w |RAE T L2 A i AT SR R T
FRI P 2 (KT SPIHITRA
‘ et 12.08%, 4 |FRH A ALY BB E
BRI 2 R 1334, (DR RN IR e ok
] 54 20 IComparable %:0% Predicted data
During the prediction . . .
Guangzhou 5,476,484.80 193,516,960.51 eriod. the average estimated Income  |basis of marketing
Charmacy 5 years ?ncom’e rowth ragte s expected ROI of |growth department and
Company 12.03% gthe discount business asset rate: 0%  |consideration of
ra{e s (1)’3 349 u group of the actual completion
e Company rate
FEMIHH NSO 353 |48 7T LE 2 =) Al AT SR R T
BMAISEA RHZA14.03%, 7 [HEREEMN MO REEEIEHET S &
] 54 (BRI B ERE |F:0% TR 6 ORI I
Huizhou 3,639,153.65 8,351,433.19 13.34%During the ~ (Comparable Income  |Predicted data
Charmacy 5 years |prediction period, the [estimated growth basis of marketing
Company average income expected ROI of [rate: 0%  |department and
lgrowth rate is 14.03%, business asset consideration of
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TR RS EES Bl | Bedmgs
an | ommme | Teem  FEER el spmampey  BEOREKE WSk B KE
R Impairme Determination Key Determination
ecoverable Year of | Key Parameters of . .
Item Book Value nt . . . . Basis of Key |Parameter| Basis of Key
Amount Predictio| Prediction Period
Amount n Period Parameters of |s of Stable| Parameters of
Prediction Period| Period Stable Period
the discount rate is  |group of the actual completion
13.34%. Company rate
&5t 12,519,435.63 276,487,870.31 — — — —

FE: AFJA 2017 H 2 AL 2017 %6
H 2020 4 7 H 45 ol Wi Bk i A1 5%
AFS BEINBISEATE . EIEIEAF
P HE, TR T NR ¥ 456.73 &

L. NR ¥ 263
289.64 T K,

Ho. AR
e T AR 1R

0152 o BT A SRS R — 5.
e B SAT T DI, 8
SR, AR R A AR

Note: The Company acquired Zhuhai Charmacy Company,

Guangzhou Charmacy Company and Huizhou Charmacy
Company in February 2017, June 2017 and July 2020
respectively, resulting in a goodwill of RMB4.5673 million,
RMBO0.0263 million and RMB2.8964 million. The asset group a

goodwill belongs to is the same with that at initial recognition of

the goodwill. The Group carried out an impairment test of

goodwill at the end of the year, finding no impairment in the

year.

1B EHABER 13. Long-term expenses to be amortized
FHERE AR sEmE | AEgims | RS
IHH Balance as at the e N . Balance as at
.. Addition for Amortization Other reduction
Item beginning of the the end of the
the year for the year for the year
year year
5
%1"%% 16,338,602.59 3,591,482.69 2,951,328.91 16,978,756.37
Renovation costs
a3
Total 16,338,602.59 3,591,482.69 2,951,328.91 16,978,756.37

4IREFTRREEMIELETBRA

14. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

& liabilities
(1) ARECHLES IR AL P15 F & (1) Deferred income tax assets not offset
FEREGH FEHIER
I6H Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Item T R 2 R SBIEFTARE T R 2 R SBIEFTARE
Deductible temporary Deferred income tax Deductible temporary Deferred income tax
differences assets differences assets
P A T A
Provision for asset 26,379,509.63 6,594,877.41 24,896,393.50 6,224,098.37
Impairment
e %ﬁil e 36,977,501.16 9,244,375.29 19,909,404.75 4,977,351.18
Lease liabilities
A
”ll“jofil 63,357,010.79 15,839,252.70 44,805,798.25 11,201,449.55

(2) RACHRSHIEIE FraFe & &

(2) Deferred income tax liabilities not offset

JHH

FRBE

FHIRE
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Item Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
ARt ER | BERERAR AR R Rt 2 2 RIE B AR
Taxable temporary Deferred income Taxable temporary Deferred income
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
B I Y BB 5 4R AR
Unrealized internal sales gains 2,403,606.05 600,901.51 241,027.68 60,256.92
and losses
itk 33,82641592 | 8.456,603.99 17,590,155.87 4,397,538.97
Right-of-use assets
A
’Il‘jofil 36,230,021.97 9,057,505.50 17,831,183.55 4,457,795.89

(3) DAIRSH AR 3 B S om 1R IE T 13

(3) Deferred income tax assets or liabilities presented by net

MU e B R amount after offsetting
HEHRIBIEFTR | HEHTRIRIE AR
. . RIE TR HE A
BEFTAREEN | MBEERAESE £ & A HE AR & ESAFER
AEERTHREE KRR Year-beginning B
IEH Year-end Mutually | Year-end Balance Mutually Offset Year-beginning
Item Offset Amount of of Deferred Amount of Balance of
Deferred Income Income Tax Deferred Income Deferred Income
Tax Assets and Assets or Tax Assets and Tax Assets or
Liabilities Liabilities after Liabilities Liabilities after
Offsetting Offsetting
AL TR 4

Year-beginning
Balance of Deferred
Income Tax Assets
or Liabilities after
Offsetting

8,456,603.99

7,382,648.71

4,397,538.97

6,803,910.58

TR AE 1570 &
Deferred income tax
liabilities

8,456,603.99

600,901.51

4,397,538.97

60,256.92

(4) RFEREIEFTAF AL E 7 WA

(4) Breakdown of unrecognised deferred income tax assets

JRH FARBRER Balance asﬂzaj‘)t]l?fiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
AT HEAT Y Ry P 2 5
Deductible temporary differences
AT R 11,270,325.55 13,848,683.73
Deductible losses
a3t
11,270,325.55 13,848,683.73

Total
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(5) Deductible losses of unrecognised deferred income tax

assets will become due in the following years

F4r FEREH FVIEHR ik
Year Year-end amount Year-beginning amount | Additional information
2024 4
2024 567,073.74 3,065,562.09
2025 4
2025 1,946,242.01 1,946,242.01
2026 4
2026 4,143,605.02 4,223,703.77
2027 4
2027 4,613,404.78 4,613,175.86
2028 4
2028
AR
11,270,325.55 13,848,683.73 —
Total

15. 7 HEER A P HE 52 2 R ) I8 22

15. Assets with restricted ownership and rights of use

R
IHH At the end of the year
Item FRIEI AR AR BRTE EE ZREH ZRBN
Book balance Book value Restricted type Restricted situation
SRAT A ST BE R R AE
IRTION YN & IR &
Bl s 521,268,411.47 521,268,411.47 1%'1%?42 Bank acceptance bills
Monetary funds Margin . )
deposits, borrowing
deposits
RS 4 ZEL LS 2k
Bills receivables 3,400,000.00 3,388,100.00 Pledge Bill pledge
[CesE s
Account receivable
financing
1&
i . 350,000,000.00 350,000,000.00 TEE?EE TEEEFEE
Inventories Security Security
YR
Eé}% 276,281,948.08 222,218,665.07 }EETEE }EETEE
Fixed assets Security Security
TG
RREE 83,404,212.62 68,981,212.99 il il
Intangible assets Security Security
a3t
1,234,354,572.17 1,165,856,389.53 — —
Total
() (continued)
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FH
IHH At the beginning of the year
Item HR T BR AR SR EE ZRER ZREN
Book balance Book value Restricted type Restricted situation
PRAT 7K ST R R E
N o & BRI
Silane 423,812,146.84 423,812,146.84 ﬁ”i Bank acceptance
Monetary funds Margin . ;
bills deposits,
borrowing deposits
JEW 2 4 B SRR
) . 5,348,665.70 5,329,945.37 - o
Bills receivables Pledge Bill pledge
JEWCHRIA R E . 5
Account  receivable 11,500,000.00 11,500,000.00 gt S A
. Pledge Bill pledge
financing
poa
i . 350,000,000.00 350,000,000.00 *&#ﬁ. T&ﬁ.]
Inventories Securit Security
e YR
Eé‘é 276,281,948.08 231,435,859.11 }qua. }qu.a
Fixed assets Securit Security
AL
ERRE 83,404,212.62 71,086,436.13 ok i
Intangible assets Securit Security
a3t
1,150,346,973.24 1,093,164,387.45 — —
Total
16. 59 HAfE =X 16. Short-term borrowings
(D) KIS 8 (1) Types of borrowings
R ERGH FRE
. Balance as at the beginning of
Types of borrowings Balance as at the end of the year
the year
7% jﬂ:ifb
e . 366,367,768.45 218,781,245.96
Guaranteed borrowings
H- 5
AT . 126,351,584.99 138,683,400.78
Secured borrowings
o [ gk
fRRfER 60,114,564.59
Credit borrowings
Jo H df
HEfER 55,274,760.02 55,272,473.90
Pledged borrowings
JRE AT S5 48 e 3L K
Borrowings from discounted bills 40,000,000.00 40,400,000.00
receivables
&8
587,994,113.46 513,251,685.23
Total

(2) ASEE MR AR RAFAE CE IR M

T8 R AR
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17. B 238 17.Bills payables
o= SEHIRRAR
.m%.ﬁﬁ . AR B Balance as at the beginning of
Classification of bills Balance as at the end of the year the year
BH 4= % A E B
SATRIRR 936,487,754.65 876,775,586.87
Bank acceptance bills
A
At 936,487,754.65 876,775,586.87
Total

AE 1 AR OB AR SOAT I AT 5 0B
HEHE A 726,093.41 J6, BIHARAT R
Al 7% 2023 47 12 H 30 H . 31 H &%
E R H, BB H % 2023 4 12
H 30 H B HEAT 52 55 ML AT, TR
2024 4F 1 H 2 HE & 8B f@At

b 20 AR BB AREAFE R
BYITE 1 2N

Note 1: The total amount of expired and unpaid bills payable at
the end of the year is RMB 726,093.41. As the legal holiday and
festival fell on December 30 and December 31, 2023, the bills
payable which expired on December 30, 2023 cannot be paid.
The bills payable were all paid on January 2, 2024.

Note 2: As at the end of the year, the age of the aforementioned
bills payables of the Group was within 1 year.

18.JEfTER K 18. Trade payables
(1) JEAHRK SR (1) Trade payables
e AR Balance asﬂ;j‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
#%
Y 656,543,625.36 631,927,855.43
Loans
2L
ﬁ%ﬁiw\ 2,529,940.99 864,090.00
Equipment costs
it
659,073,566.35 632,791,945.43
Total

(2) AEAFAEIRE B 1 FE
FEATHRK

(3) JEN IR HRES 51

2023 12 H 31 H, EATER %
T 5 H W ERES 2 Bl R

(2) There are no important accounts payable whose account age

exceeds 1 year this year.
(3) Aging analysis of trade payables

As at 31 December 2023, the age analysis of accounts payable
by transaction date is as follows:

AR AR Balance asqjj‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Age Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year

1 LAY

657,001,244.78

627,284,478.84
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Rt PR Balance asq;j‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Age Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
Within 1 year
i_tonyears 775,097.42 4,226,813.06
2-3 542,337.03 755,347.04
2 to 3 years
3L 754,887.12 525,306.49
More than 3 years
A%t
Total 659,073,566.35 632,791,945.43
195 F&E 19.Contract liabilities
(D EFRAMER (1) Situation of contract liabilities
JRH FARBRER Balance asﬂj:gt]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
i
ok 19,490,768.05 13,528,877.69
Payment for goods
CELl
Total 19,490,768.05 13,528,877.69

(2) ARG PIAE T EHE 146 1

5 EA F R

(3) A B A oF ok R v R fEL 95 2E

ERETISL.

20 84T B T %7 BN
(1) JEAT B H 7 55

(2) The Group has no important contract liabilities whose

account age exceeds 1 year this year.

(3) The Group is free from any major change to book value this

year.

20. Salaries payable to employees

(1) Classification of salaries payable to employees

EYRE ALER AR SRR
JEH Balance as at the .. . Balance as at
.. Addition for the Reduction for
Item beginning of the the end of the
year the year
year year
5 H]
FEL RN 13,346,444.66 84,202,643.62 87,860,801.75 9,688,286.53

Short-term remuneration

Pl AR AR M- R A7 R

Post-employment benefits — 5,813,430.29 5,813,430.29
Defined contribution plan

PI——

RHEARA 55,157.43 55,157.43

Termination benefits
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— 4 Y 3 A A At A R
Other benefits due within
one year

&3t
Total

13,346,444.66

90,071,231.34

93,729,389.47

9,688,286.53

(2) 115

(2) Short-term remuneration

JHH

Item

EHIRRER
Balance as at the
beginning of the

year

ARAEIG
Addition for the
year

AR
Reduction for
the year

FEREGHH

Balance as at the
end of the year

T&. 884, HER AL
Salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies

13,288,012.51

73,651,632.78

77,311,444.74

9,628,200.55

AR

Staff welfare payments

5,142,231.06

5,142,231.06

A DR R B

Social insurance premiums

2,769,957.99

2,769,957.99

Forpr: BRORBGEE EE
Trbe 2

Of which: medical
insurance premium and
maternity insurance
premium

2,710,481.62

2,710,481.62

T DRk
In dustrial injury insurance
premium

59,476.37

59,476.37

(E N
Housing provident fund

1,654,040.00

1,654,040.00

TEEEMB TR R
Labor union expenses and
staff education expenses

58,432.15

942,268.73

940,614.90

60,085.98

SRUL RN )

Short-term paid absences

TR 7 A
Short-term profit sharing
program

HAth
Others

42,513.06

42,513.06

&3t
Total

13,346,444.66

84,202,643.62

87,860,801.75

9,688,286.53

(3) BERAFRTH

NS B H AR E 2 INBURT B LI A
wORbEt . MRYEETH, AL

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Group participated in social insurance plans operated by the
government authorities according to the regulations. Pursuant to

-193 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

L BUR HAT B ALE 172 55 /T d7
B Br g &SN, AREEA
PSS IE— B 30A 5. MBI SO
Ji> S AR I N B U148 B O 2
ZN

AREFAT T 2 RbE . K%
(e ees LU

the plans, the Group made contributions to those plans in
compliance with the relevant provisions of local government
authorities. Apart from the aforesaid contributions, the Group
assumed no further payment obligations. The corresponding
expenses shall be credited to the profit or loss for the period or
the cost of related assets when incurred.

The Group’s contributions payable to pension insurance plan
and unemployment insurance plan for the year are respectively

as follows:
AR AN KEWD ARG
HH Balance as at the » .
.. Addition for the Reduction for the Balance as at the
Item beginning of the
year year end of the year
year
e YN AN T
Basic pension 5,646,572.60 5,646,572.60
insurance
UNE VR TEE
Unemployment 166,857.69 166.857.69
insurance
premium
&5t
5,813,430.29 5,813,430.29
Total

AE 1 AR [ ACAE JE ) 2 B R 2
17 5 8 4017 & AN R 05,813,430.29
g6 (20224 AN R ¥ 5,426,551.17
JG) o AEEEA20234E12 31 H it #
BHAN I 32 22 DR B RN % SE OR B A8 A0
AT e

FE2: ABIE20224F 2023412 H 31
H b R B B %4, AR A
EBEERET EIH T AR Bk Cl g
FRAR 7 56 4 i B R AL e B 5 30 1)
fie ) W HEACER [ DL HLA 1 Atk

Note 1: The Group’s contribution payable to the defined
contribution plan that the Group participated in amounted to
RMBS5,813,430.29 (2022: 5,426,551.17). The pension insurance
and unemployment insurance was fully paid as at 31 December
2023

Note 2: For each of the fiscal years ended 31 December 2022
and 2023, the Group has no forfeited contribution (for
employers on behalf of employees who leave the plan before
fully attributing the contribution) under the defined contribution

plan are available to the Group to reduce the existing level of

IKHE, contributions
21 BT & 21. Tax payables
JHH FEREGHH FEHIRER
Item Balance as at the end of the year | Balance as at the beginning of the year
FEAE AR
VAT 41,701,596.25 65,680,581.76
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HH FERGRE FEVIRRER
Item Balance as at the end of the year | Balance as at the beginning of the year
AN EE e
ijﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 12,851,950.68 27,046,568.73
Enterprise income tax
ZE
{).\Fﬁﬁﬁ 106,083.69 109,198.61
Individual income tax
R 30,259.82
Property taxes
FIAER 1,047,505.30 1,059,120.58
Stamp duty
I TR A A A
Urban maintenance and 123,629.10 151,186.52
construction tax
-2__\‘ N
A ﬁﬁfﬂﬂ 88,353.96 108,088.17
Education surcharge
H
HAb AL 1,050.00 1,050.00
Other tax
ARt
55,950,428.80 94,155,794.37
Total
22 . HAh EAT =k 22. Other payables
e RN Balance asqjj‘)t]ffﬁ inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JEATAE
Interest payables
JEAT A
Dividend payables
H S
SARIERS R 341,051,900.01 105,824,075.61
Other payables
ot
341,051,900.01 105,824,075.61
Total

22.1 HAth AT 3K

(1) FRIAVE - B 7= HoA AT 3K

22.1. Other payables

(1) Classification of other payables by nature of payment

Rt H R R
Balance as at the beginning of
Nature of payment Balance as at the end of the year
the year
4 7k
RERAEAGK 238,000,000.00 74,015,600.00
Shareholder current accounts
Jie AR
Shareholder borrowing 93,002,433.34 20,442,250.00
o B 4,343,009.00 4,536,915.75
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Intermediary expenses

TR <
Margin

2,434,620.48

3,638,120.28

i H

Transportation costs

1,330,778.53

1,600,394.77

HAthy
Others

1,941,058.66

1,590,794.81

a3t
Total

341,051,900.01

105,824,075.61

(2) HRESHIE 1 4F ol 3 r) 2

fil AT

(2) Important other payables whose account age exceeds 1 year

or overdue important other payables

B hr 48

Company Name

FAREGH

Balance as at the end of the year

R A B R A 1) JR

Cause for Failure of Repayment
or Carry-over

, , V) A 33 381 4 Y
By S R IE SR
] . 3,393,009.00 The settlement period is not met
Squire Sanders Law Firm yet
Py
aat 3,393,009.00 _
Total

23— N BRI IERE AR

23. Non-current liabilities due within one year

e FARERER Balance asﬂjj‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
—ENBIR A E AR
Lease liabilities due within one 6,587,383.36 4,154,632.64
year
At
6,587,383.36 4,154,632.64

Total

ab: AEMEEEAFRRIEFN
BYIE T DL AOAL B AR 1 IR AR
MR, £ “—F NI AERE &

7 THH Ko

reflected in the item

year” .

Note: The closing book value of the Group’s lease liabilities due
for settlement within one year from the balance sheet date is

“ Non-current liabilities due within one

24 H A B A 24. Other current liabilities
RH FARRE Balance asﬂj?tjffﬁﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
Ry H g TH A AH
2,533,799.78 1,758,754.11
The amount of tax to be reselled T T
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HH R R
Balance as at the beginning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year the year
D
i 2,533,799.78 1,758,754.11
Total
5 HEAME 25. Lease liabilities
- EREM FHIEM
Item Balance as at the end of the | Balance as at the beginning
year of the year
1 f<f S
FHLITAL 5 41,798,576.02 22,631,872.55
Lease payment
’:‘ZJ\E IR
AEBB SN 4,821,074.86 2,722,467.80
Unrecognized financing expenses
A
At 36,977,501.16 19,909,404.75
Total

FIRFHE A ) BRI R ZE R LA B IR
The book value of abovementioned lease liabilities
should be repaid during the following period:

—EN

Within one year

6,587,383.36

4,154,632.64

B AR RIS —4F, (HAN S N
More than one year after the balance sheet date,
but less than two years

6,255,560.92

3,942,859.33

B AR HARBE WA, (HAN I T
More than two years after the balance sheet date,
but less than five years

18,676,151.33

10,372,476.98

B AR PR EIETE

More than five years after the balance sheet date

5,458,405.55

1,439,435.80

W RBIAGKEAETHA —ENIMNHEE &K
IR

Less: Lease liabilities due within one year
presented in the current liabilities

6,587,383.36

4,154,632.64

R BN AR IH T R E A AT
Lease liabilities presented in the non-current
liabilities

30,390,117.80

15,754,772.11

Ab: VB AMEIET Pros—FE N2 Note: the lease liabilities due within one year presented in the
MEAEFIHCESEE “—F N current liabilities have been reclassified into “ non-current
WA AE” , 2 RAMET. liabilities due within one year” . Refer to Note V.23.
23,
26.f% 4 26. Share capital

IHH REBIIGR (+. -)

Item FHIEH Increase/decrease in the year (+, -) AR
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Balance as at | FATHM S AR Balance as at
the beginning Issuance Shares transferred HAh /Nt the end of the
Bonus
of the year of new from surplus Others | Subtotal year
shares
shares reserve
N1 5
ety 48t 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
Total number of shares
23
108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
Total

FE: 202341 H 1I7THITZEEEH R A
Al (LUFEAG “TLBEEAR" ) 5%
PSS A A R DR A I B R gk A
R A 1%, HEEREA AR M35.9%
IREHE, H VTS8R4 18 A =) A A 4R
[ 42 JE e R S B B A N o R IR A B
CCE <P Iy #HI26. 18 52, Y1284
T 2 ) il 2 A A A2 o o 4 4 T B 4 2
Kz Hie, #IbEREEH, LM
2N ) AT, BN 10.51% 1%
ME. 20234E9H4H, TTEEEEAF] M
e (EMHRD S8.24& ATk 2 A
WML HE338% AL HIE, HE
20234F12H31H, TLEEERNF IR

Note: After Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as
"Jiangyao Group Company") completed the acquisition of the
shares held by the original controlling shareholder (Yao
Chuanglong) of the Group on January 17, 2023, Jiangyao Group
Company actually held 35.9% of the shares of the Group. Since
then, Jiangyao Group Company has become the controlling
shareholder and actual controller of the Group. At the same
time, according to Article 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, Jiangyao
Group Company triggered the unconditional mandatory
comprehensive cash offer. As of the end of the offer, Jiangyao
Group Company increased its shares by 10.51% through the
tender offer. On September 4, 2023, Jiangyao Group Company
sold 3.38% of the shares of the Group to the public who met the

requirements of Article 8.24 of the Listing Rules. As of

HALEE43.03%I1 R December 31, 2023, Jiangyao Group Company held a total of
43.03% of the shares of the Group.
27.8 AR ATE 27. Capital reserve
IR AL AL ERGH
JHH Balance as at the .. .
A Addition for Reduction for Balance as at the
Item beginning of the
the year the year end of the year
year
123 NVav i
AR . 278,001,901.04 278,001,901.04
Share premium
HAbE AN TE
Other capital 988,928.00 988,928.00
reserve
a3t
278,990,829.04 278,990,829.04
Total
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28. B BA AR 28. Surplus reserve
R AL R R
JHH Balance as at the . .
.. Addition for the Reduction for the Balance as at the
Item beginning of the
year year end of the year
year
12 0E FER A TH
Statutory surplus 28,186,051.87 1,475,086.18 29,661,138.05
reserve
EERERATE
Arbitrary surplus
reserve
3t
28,186,051.87 1,475,086.18 29,661,138.05
Total
29. 44 Bo R 29. Undistributed profits
HH REFHER AR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year

G ki3 1 ke B N7 7
Undistributed profit as at the end of the previous
year before adjustment

179,885,249.70

96,030,718.25

S REAEWIR Z BOMIE A AT GRS+, SRV
Total undistributed profit at the beginning of the
year after adjustment (increase +, decrease -)

440,627.38

Horre (RZEgatHERD) Ao BB R 2 18 3
B

Including: Retrospective adjustment stipulated by
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
and related new regulations

440,627.38

A AR AE IR 73 B A
Undistributed profit at the beginning of the year
after adjustment

179,885,249.70

96,471,345.63

I ARS8 e BEA F I & BRI
Add: Net profit attributable to the owners of the
parent company for the year

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

W PEHGEE B R ATH

Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve

1,475,086.18

7,058,052.45

B AF 308 R )

Dividends payable on ordinary shares™°t©

48,600,000.00

AR A PR 308 J Fs A
Dividends on ordinary shares converted to share
capital

FEEERGBER

Balance at the end of the year

181,154,889.21

179,885,249.70

af: PAESRC B E IR AL IRAS SR

Note: See below for details of dividends announced to distribute
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I SRR
(1) #% 2022 4F 12 A 31 HIEEE

PR 2022 4 3 A 31 HAMKER
2021 4E 12 A 31 HILEENEREE
W E, EAFANIRE 2021 K W
& .

(2) #%E 2023 4F 12 A 31 HIL4EE

MR 2023 45 H 31 H A MI#EE
2022 4F 12 H 31 HIE KB FE K&
WERE, BEAFRERIREREAR
W 0.45 6 CEARD 1YL HE 1) H i R
IR 2022 FFARBIKE, AFtRBAR
% 4,860.00 5 7G .

30.B LKA, BERA
(1) #3EWNEG 3R AE I

and distributed and to be distributed in relevant periods:
(1) for the year ended 31 December 2022

According to the resolution adopted at the meeting of board of
directors held on 31 March 2022 for the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company will not distribute the final
dividends for 2021.

(2) For the year ended 31 December 2023

As per the resolution adopted at the Annual General Meeting for
2022 which was held on 31 May 2023, your company
announced to distribute dividends for the year 2022 to your
shareholders at RMBO0.45 (tax inclusive) per share, totalling at
RMB48.6 million.

30. Operating revenue and operating cost

(1) Basic information on business revenue and business

expenses
A FAHR AR
IHH Amount for the year Amount for last year
Item LN %N LN A
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
T
L . 4,347,522,184.54 4,110,889,553.80 4,140,664,410.05 3,903,521,213.18
Principal businesses
HAR =%
”wj;‘%?ﬁ. 56,111,293.54 34,614,629.15
Other businesses
A%t
Total 4,403,633,478.08 4,110,889,553.80 4,175,279,039.20 3,903,521,213.18

(2) & A A N s O

(2) Information on revenue generated from contracts

ClaikE A FAHR EERARR
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
GRSk
Types of products

Horr: RSB
Of which: Revenue from
pharmaceutical sales

4,347,522,184.54 4,140,664,410.05

GEEELIEL LR N
Revenue from consultancy
services

41,929,309.35 26,371,558.92
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FRSE

Contract classification

A A

Amount in current year

LA

Amount in prior year

=T

Revenue from third-party

logistics

14,181,984.19

8,243,070.23

AR B R 73

By region of operation

Hodr: #HERFHIE
Of which: South China

4,226,783,045.70

4,073,638,573.54

e 5 5
East China

98,282,461.50

75,722,292.63

Hofth it [

Other regions

78,567,970.88

25,918,173.03

HHERESTH

By sales channel

Hrp: 42N
Of which: Offline sales

4,180,203,759.60

3,903,477,018.16

% SRS

AR LS 223,429,718.48 271,802,021.04

Online sales
&5t

4,403,633,478.08 4,175,279,039.20
Total
31804 K B im 31. Taxes and surcharges
IHHE KL AR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
PR 3,163,751.37 3,987,511.59
Property tax
FIAER 3,746,902.05 3,296,654.04
Stamp duty
I T A A A
Urban maintenance and 1,267,335.69 1,427,126.49
construction tax
t‘ N
A %Wﬂﬂ 906,066.54 1,020,354.86
Education surcharge
- Hb R 197,365.54 328,159.54
Tax on land use
AL
Vehicle and vessel tax 17,476.44 9,652.74
RERAR . 4,200.00 4,200.00
Environment protection tax
a4t
9,303,097.63 10,073,659.26

Total
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255 EEH 32. Selling expenses
IHHE EEFHERR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
L7 . 65,449,677.06 61,359,511.32
Staff remuneration
FL A 4
ﬁféé/\ﬁifﬁ . 19,457,871.87 19,365,875.66
Depreciation and amortization
i . 19,548,783.51 17,467,427.32
Transportation costs
B
Promotion and advertising 11,517,936.17 8,885,020.72
expenses
e /N
kel 5,333,274.77 4,893,689.71
Office expenses
N Sy,
EHELR 537,896.98 444,760.07
Business entertainment expenses
ﬁﬁﬁ% 342,153.07 228,038.89
Travelling expenses
H
A 279,496.17 186,680.29
Others
3t
122,467,089.60 112,831,003.98
Total
BEHEHEH 33. Management expenses
IHHE EEFHERR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
LA . 24,621,554.28 22,564,675.79
Staff remuneration
B 4
*ﬁ%/\ﬁﬁﬁ S 9,254,939.63 13,492,250.08
Depreciation and amortization
TN
kAR 7,327,562.50 6,426,474.87
Office expenses
e AN
HEEE A s 2 . _ 3,400,888.44 4,720,456.81
Expenses on engaging agencies
-%$§+E&%%E§ﬁﬁ 850,000.00 850,000.00
—Audit service expenses
ps =
FRIR 2,258,248.32 2,174,522.40
Loss on inventory
Np- i 477 4
RBELR 115.218.86 124,273.92
Business entertainment expenses
ﬁﬁﬁ% 205,837.94 84,264.83
Travelling expenses
H
it 348,688.47 149,351.70
Others
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TRHE AEFAHR AR

Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
&t

47,532,938.44 49,736,270.40

Total
MUABER 34. Finance costs

IHH AR EERAERE

Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
S ST H

Interest expenses

40,790,342.89

35,073,142.27

Hofth: SRAT AR S HoAth

Others: bank loans and others

39,646,148.30

34,257,509.72

e = e |

*ﬂﬁ%iﬂﬁﬁ%];u%ﬂi o 1,144,194.59 815,632.55
Interest expenses of lease liabilities
e FE
i AL LI&)\. 4,301,317.10 4,601,780.21
Less: Interest income
I BESSAH A
Add: Exchange gain or loss 362,701.11 749,260.81
fme HAth
Add: Others 5,499,530.44 5,908,232.98
a3

42,351,257.34 37,128,855.85

Total
35. FH Al 2 35. Other gains

BE AR At Wi 28 B 2R U AEFAA AR

Sources of other income

Amount for the year

Amount for last year

VAR EALIE H BUR A B

Government grants for logistics 304,706.99
standardization program
~ >4 ZE ﬁ:k Ve v
ﬁfuﬁ“\gﬂj\ﬁﬁﬁﬁi'ﬁ%ﬁg 11,263.47 67,031.95
Individual income tax fee refund
aaf
11,263.47 371,738.94
Total
36. 8 & W 36. Return on investment
IHH A FARR EEHEAR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
o 4 X
REEAGE 100,000.00
Debt restructuring income
it
100,000.00
Total
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375 FREER 37. Impairment loss of credit
IHHE EEFHERR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year

FoAty RSO AR IR K

Loss of bad debts in other -305,775.92 1,082,565.65
receivables
JRE I R IR R %
Loss of bad debts in accounts 803,790.43 2,481,671.99
receivable
JREIS EE SR SR FR K
Loss of bad debts in bills -5,960.17 -33,779.67
receivable
CELl
492,054.34 3,530,457.97
Total
38.BERERR 38. Impairment loss of assets
IHE A FARR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
pe LS
ﬁéﬁ%{’.ﬁj’a% . . 4,361,225.47 3,148,303.99
Loss on impairment of inventories
3t
4,361,225.47 3,148,303.99
Total
9.5 ERERNS (BKRL -] 53E 39. Gains on disposal of assets (“-” for loss)
5
EE AEFAA AR FIAREIREE PR 3 M &5
Amount for the | Amount for last | Amount charged to non-recurring
Item
year year profit or loss for the year
et B e T 2
Gains on disposal of 47,339.87 65,839,056.46 47,339.87
noncurrent assets
Hrpe REIDHFFATER
AR BN 7 i B
Of which: Gains on disposal of 4733987 | 65,839,056.46 47,339.87
non-current assets
that are not classified
as held for sale
52 4 e 2
Gains on disposal of 47,339.87 19,654,987.81 47,339.87
fixed assets
TR e i B AR
Gain or loss on disposal 46,184,068.65
of intangible assets
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HE AR EERARR RIASEIREH RS
Ttem Amount for the | Amount for last | Amount charged to non-recurring
year year profit or loss for the year
ot
Total 47,339.87 65,839,056.46 47,339.87
40.%8 35NN 40. Non-operating revenue
(1) & ZESMSN A (1) Breakdown of non-operating income
FIARERE R RS

JHH

A A

EEFEAR

iNE

Item

Amount for the year

Amount for last year

Amounts included in
non-recurring profit
and loss for the year

WU ) 1,280,328.52 905,910.45 1,280,328.52
Government grants
ARIENE 2 i AR
Income from scrapping of 21,622.26 21,622.26
non-current assets
FoAth
20,144.59 501.66 20,144.59

Others
&at

1,322,095.37 906,412.11 1,322,095.37
Total

(2) FHNE SR BU )

(2) The government subsidies that are included in the profit and
loss for the year

B EA
Al
BHR MEREREL | RB8% | yepne | LFBRE | mibin
B gm FHE WA e "
WENIHE (i3, ER Reason T 4 Whether the . #H
Subsidy Issuing entity for ype an subsidy affects Whethe.r 10 Amount for Amount Relevant to
. nature special for last assets/
issuanc the profit and allowance current year ear Rel ¢t
e loss for the year ¥ f_:v‘;:':le °
LT AR N RIBU
2021 (EFEF R FHMB | % - - - S H
2021 Subsidy for 100 Office of the People’s Subsid No No 1,052,017.00 Relevant to
Leading Enterprises Government of Chancheng Y Fan il revenue
District BURFHAR 51
AT
—IRMEE AR, —IR BRAFBOR
PER T, REGRER | BORE L R A AR B
2 7 ) Subsidies . . BRI
One-off job expansion Social Insurance i received for G G 150,635.00 248,687.31 }{elevant to
subsidy, one-off staff Settlement and Payment Subsidy | compliance No No T T revenue
stay subsidy, job Account of Guangdong with local
stabilization subsidy of Province support
unemployment insurance policies
VD1 BT H LA OR A such as
HE RGN L fRIE R investment
R R BB ) promotion
Social insurance subsidy JBETIT R 0 8 B U . by local ) ) BRI 35 AH B
and job subsidy for Bureau of Finance of s | goverment G G 5000000 | 736582 | Relevantto
stable employment of Nansha District, Subsidy s No No A T revenue
Nansha District, subsidy Guangzhou
for promoting the steady
growth of commerce and
trade services
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R A
BUR MERZWEE | eawm R | sl
B g el W | PTEEE | T M
WENRE (13 Ex] Reason Type and Whether the Whether it #; A ¢ Rel
Subsidy Issuing entity for zgture subsidy affects © e_rll s Amount for fm(:unt € evanj to
issuanc the profit and lipecla current year or ‘as R ?ssets
e loss for the year allowance year elevant to
revenue
2023 SEEE AR ENANE | BT RIS A T IR
s i N YAVAN G (RS . "
@sﬁ_/\m;?i (S I R gV Y N N N B2 A
CiD) Human Resources and T ih i
. N . . 10,000.00 Relevant to
Jobs for ex-servicemen Social Security Bureau of Subsidy No No revenue
in 2023 Q2 (Nansha Nansha District,
Branch) Guangzhou
N
- 5
LTI ﬁ':[ha)ij\Rﬁ%m rhﬁﬂﬁclliﬁi - . - SR 5 AH I
Reward for stable job of urman fesources am ; L L 9,176.52 Relevant to
Foshan Social Security Bureau of Subsidy No No revenue
Foshan, Bureau of Finance
of Foshan
SRR T
ST B A S 1 5 2 W L v
i RIAGIER | o o i i
SRR g
. GBS [
Enterprise employment Social Affairs Service Al [ i SR AR
subsidy of Dongyong . 6,500.00 5,000.00 Relevant to
Center of Dongyong Subsidy No No
Town, reward and Te Nansha District revenue
subsidy for promoting Gown, hans a bistnet
the jobs of enterprise of uangzhou
Dongyong Town
Bt — M G B
MBI BRi T ARSI TR
G BRI TR SEOR AR
& o LAY SN .
One-off job expansion H’wﬁﬂjﬁ@'ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ "
and staff stay subsidy of Hrpl P I I Sl g A
Zhuhai, subsidy for Social Insurance Fund Subsid No No 1,500.00 50,946.25 Relevant to
postponed social Management Center of o revenue
insurance payment of Zhuhai
Zhuhai, subsidy for
stable job of
unemployment insurance
of Zhuhai
RYITH T i 48~ Jof 7 7
HRAER AR i T .

; ) ) - P = S as AH
Subsidy for employment Public Affairs Center of Tl = = 500.00 Relevant to
in Shenzhen for the first Pinghu Sub-district, Subsidy No No ’ revenue
time Longgang District,

Shenzhen
R T (e i KR B A
b 5 B
LR ST T A0S - » » SR A B

ubsidy for promoting Bureau of Finance of . . . 405,800.00 Relevant to

the development of large S Subsidy No No

Longhu District, Shantou revenue
commerce and trade
enterprises of Shantou
JRHIH TR R P = = i 2 AR
Promotion of high- Bureau of Commerce of Subsid ;0 ;0 60,000.00 | Relevant to
quality development of Huizhou Municipality Y revenue
commercial consumption
2021 SF LA (L7
TR S P S
52\ H;w‘ Y [=Rr e,

A i T 7 M 55 -
Specnallfund for Bureau of Commerce of i 5 5 S A
promoting the e- Xiangzhou District Subsidy No No S1183.41 Relevant to
commerce industrial ; ? revenue

Zhuhai
development of
Xiangzhou District in
2021
I R BRI R AL | BEORE AR &
TRRERIR e, —IRVESE | OREROIE. A B EURE
MARBIECR . — KR | BB AR R A
LHtiBh IR
Stable job, skill Human Resources and "
improvement and Social Security W % % Sl g A
unemployment Department of Guangdong Subsidy No No 30,748.12 | Relevant to
prevention of Province, Department of revenue
unemployment Finance of Guangdong
insurance, one-off job Province, Guangdong
expansion subsidy Provincial Tax Service,
policy, one-off staff stay State Taxation
subsidy Administration
BN RSB E R | BTt e Rk )
ki H L s 7 7 i 2 AR B
Stable job subsidy of Social Insurance Fund - 21,946.32 Relevant to
N Subsidy No No
unemployment insurance Management Center of revenue
of Guangzhou Guangzhou
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B EA
BIR MEERESE | RTER | Lepne | DERE | mibin
B | wmEmw FEIE A S8 L
WENRE (i3, € Reason T d ‘Whether the iy #H
Subsidy Issuing entity for ype an subsidy affects Whethe.r 10 Amount for Amount Relevant to
. nature special for last assets/
issuanc the profit and allowance current year year Relevant to
e loss for the year
revenue
AR N TG IEAAE €
PREFIE oA 5 A
BEXI RN Y L)
T 2 X A A5 48R R
BB HARRH S
e
Human Resources and
TN Social Security . - - Bz 5 AH [
Ea?lﬁii wubsid Department of Guangdong S%fﬂ‘fi ]\? T\‘Ij 12,366.55 | Relevant to
J Y Province, Guangdong ubsidy o o revenue
Provincial Development
and Reform Commission,
Department of Finance of
Guangdong Province,
Guangdong Provincial Tax
Service, State Taxation
Administration, other
agency business funds
N T R SE AR IR
& il T A ) e P P i 2 AR B
Stable job subsidy of Bureau of Finance of Sub;id I\To I\To 10,366.67 Relevant to
unemployment insurance Shantou ¥ revenue
of Shantou
RSEORIBREE b oAl
WL AR SE R EEA B
FEARARIG . FHMATH | g s A G
i ) i = I
Stable job subsidy of i&ii%ﬁiﬁces and P %5 % | BRI 25 A
gnemploymenF Social Security Bureau of Subsidy No No »300.00 Relevant to
insurance, social Chancheng District, revenue
insurance subsidy for Foshan
employment of needy
personnel, newly-added
employee subsidy
&
Total —_— —_— —_— —_— —_— 1,280,328.52 905,910.45 —_—

41.BEHTH

41. Non-operating expenses

IHH

Item

A A

Amount for the year

EEFEAR

Amount for last year

RTARERERE R

N

Amounts included in
non-recurring profit
and loss for the year

AR BN PE BRI B K

Loss of non-current assets

. 11,688.77 11,688.77

due to destruction and
scrapping
:l.k‘ =1
BN A . 54,000.00 362,626.91 54,000.00
External donation
HAth

31,707.43 10,157.06 31,707.43
Others
a3t

97,396.20 372,783.97 97,396.20
Total
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2.5 E R 42. Income tax expenses
(1) FrisH & H (1) Income tax expenses
JEH AREFZETE HEEAR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
TR AR B B e w5 0 W TS
Current income tax calculated according to the tax law 16,112,931.82 30,079,790.87

and related regulations

e PN E R
Corporate income tax in the Chinese 16,112,931.82 30,079,790.87
mainland

- B A AR
Profit tax in Hong Kong, the PRC

IRHEFTG A B

. -38,093.54 1,501,950.72
Deferred income tax expenses

a3t

16,074,838.28 31,581,741.59
Total

EH 7 AR 2 [0 774 4 55 TN 70 7 s % JRE A A The Group had no Hong Kong income tax, since it had no

WON, BN A A TS taxable income in Hong Kong during the year.
(2) et B i 15 15 H FH 3 52 0 (2) Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax
is expenses
IHAE EEFHERR
Item Amount for the year

AREE S ORI AR

. 67,419,563.97
Combined total profit for the year

I R R S T A9 AR B

. 16,854,890.99
Income tax expenses calculated at applicable tax rate

T T A R R A 5

The impact of different tax rates applied to subsidiaries

o RE LUHT U ] P A5 A ) 5

Adjust the impact of income taxes for previous periods -210,306.81
AR RSN 5 2

Impact of non-taxable income

AR 2 AR 4103
Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses T
A5 I A R R U A P 49 5L E 10 P IR S R ) 2

Use of deductible losses that have not been previously confirmed for deferred EIT -19,566.05
assets

A AR Ml AR S T A5 9 ) T T B AP 22 R T R RS R ) 5

Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible losses on deferred income -624,622.08
tax assets not recognized in the current year

Friaif 16,074,838.28

Income tax expenses
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43. Items of the Statement of Cash Flows

(1) Cash related to operating activities

1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

%
TRH AEFAA AR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
[=1= R AWYAN Eord
BLLAE AR 62,070,741.78 170,198,084.00
Inter-company current accounts
BURHRE) 1,280,328.52 967,836.81
Government grant
1j5!
A W)_\ 258,133.97 165,724.62
Interest income
HL i1 <2 59,228.87 64,127.32
Staff reserves
FoAth
877,454.71 686,019.54
Others
ARt
64,545,887.85 172,081,792.29
Total
2) AT A B AR 7 VE B AT B R 2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities
%
IHH EEFHERR EEHER
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
[=1= R AYAN Eord
BLLAE AR 134,960,842.75 203,669,976.00
Inter-company current accounts
B 7% . 18,736,675.94 16,506,831.18
Transportation costs
e /N
st 14,309,150.57 12,870,569.07
Office expenses
Z';é ”\ a
mfﬁ%ﬂi 11,836,373.47 7,193,815.93
Marketing expenses
.
%EE% 5,565,211.72 5,878,977.77
Handling fees
HI 2 A
ekt , 3,747,903.30 4,240,310.13
Expenses on engaging agencies
“‘M’_ ' E”XE, 2,129,021.22 1,476,130.82
Repair and Maintenance expenses
BT g
R L 1,203,640.00 534,704.65

Staff borrowings
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TRH AEFAHR EEBEAER

Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
T f22 5
aaﬁ:ﬂﬁ?ﬂ%%. . 1,114,271.32 1,164,805.30
Telecommunication fees
ot
%m% 531,140.22 315,918.91
Travelling expenses
-2k 477 44
RIEFR 454,918.87 404,322.25
Business entertainment expenses
A 57,768.32 84,195.49
Others ’ ’
a3t

194,646,917.70 254,340,557.50

Total

(2) HEHFEEA RIS
IDIEVE:I BN a3 erip RSN ibEe)

(2) Cash related to financing activities

1) Other cash received relating to financing activities

&
IHHE EEFHERR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
e o . VS
L&E‘?Eﬁ%ﬂﬁhﬁ . 1,646,027,248.97 1,926,367,935.66
Receipt of bank acceptance margin
i A K
. 845,982,484.78 100,000,000.00
Shareholder borrowing
Eeaeoilps!
1%Mé?ﬂu B . 4,043,183.13 4,436,055.59
Interest income on margin
H L 7%
BE KRGS . 2,264,706.25
Receipt of borrowing margin
&t
2,496,052,916.88 2,033,068,697.50
Total

20 SCA (1 At B 58 i A i 1) 3

2) Other cash paid relating to financing activities

%
IHHE EEFHERR EERAERE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
A B BRAT AR ST IR 5
Payment of bank acceptance 1,743,483,513.60 1,866,503,486.65
margin
ISR K
4 . .
Shareholder borrowing 645,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
A % (== S
R AR . 5,107,272.40 3,584,603.15
Payment of lease Liabilities
Rl T
22,949,
Handling fees for financing 722,949.66
a3t
2,393,590,786.00 1,950,811,039.46
Total
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3) Change to liabilities due to the fundraising activity

AAEIE N ¥ FERBE
FHIRHR Addition in j:ﬂsﬁ//l\ Balance as at
IBH Balance as at the year Reduction in the year the
Item the beginning SRS FHEL
end of the
f th
of the year B&%E) %) R&%E) 8] vear
IE NN
Short-term 513,251,685.23 836,600,000.00 442,428.23 762,300,000.00 587,994,113.46
borrowings
A A K- R
i 3k % I BR AT 2R
&
A
Other  payables- 20,442,250.00 845,082,484.78 140,825,698.56 645,000,000.00 | 31,248,000.00 | 331,002,433.34
Shareholder
borrowings  and
shareholder
current accounts
AE % ==
LT ",1’5 - 19,909,404.75 23,076,325.31 5,107,272.40 900,956.50 36,977,501.16
Lease liabilities
23
T : 1 553,603,339.98 1,682,582,484.78 164,344,452.10 1,412,407,272.40 32,148,956.50 955,974,047.96
ota

MIRERERBRER 44. Supplementary information to the Statement of Cash

Flows

(D) HERERMrEr

(1) Supplementary information to the Statement of Cash Flows

JHH

Item

KEEH

Amount for the year

EEEH

Amount for last year

LA RS AR EESRERE:
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
operating activities:

A
Net profit

51,344,725.69

90,471,956.52

Tne S kAL Y

4,361,225.4 148,303.
Add: Provision for impairment on assets 261,223.47 14830359
= R N =1
5 & E R KR 492,054.34 3,530,457.97

Impairment loss of credit assets

Wl AT . MR ETAE . AR
Wg ET

Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion of
petroleum and natural gas properties, depreciation
of productive biological assets

17,440,816.84

21,665,230.79

il PR ¥ 3 85

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

4,794,914.17

3,135,441.54

M TE 5 7 Hi 60

Amortization of intangible assets

4,234,268.79

5,877,151.51
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IHHE FEEH EEEH
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
TR 222 T B

Amortization of long-term expenses to be
amortized

2,951,328.91

2,888,819.10

J B[ E B M LA R
fRk (il T-1 35D

. . . -47,339.87 -65,839,056.46
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets ("-" for gain)
12 A BB CHCRRBL (-] 091 503349

Loss on scrapped fixed assets ("-" for gain)

N RARESEERR (faid (-] 3D

loss arising from changes in fair value (“-
for gain)

BB (e A (-1 3H51D

Finance costs (“-” for gain)

37,109,860.87

32,109,297.15

BB ezt bl [-1 551D

. 100,000.00
Investment loss (“-” for gain)
IRSEFr A3 MU E K> (gL (-] 35
gy ) : -578,738.13 1,844,603.42
Decrease in deferred income tax assets (“-”
for increase)
PEIE AR A BRI GRABL T-1 31
gy 540,644.59 -342,652.70

Increase in deferred income tax liabilities (“-
” for decrease)

I EIEL -1 351D

Decrease in inventories (“-” for increase)

-193,349,172.20

-77,743,316.21

ALV EUSCTE H > (L T-1 3R
F1)

Decrease in receivables from operating
activities (“-” for increase)

-98,173,591.18

-222,466,733.26

B VEEATTHH RIS G BL T-] 3R
F)

Increase in payables from operating
activities (“-” for decrease)

72,251,290.07

245,770,801.10

HAth
Others

AL IR BN A AR I B e I R A

Net cash flow from operating activities

-96,537,645.13

44,050,304.46

LAY RFASRINERBRBEMBEERED:
2. Non-cash significant investing and financing
activities:

R A A

Conversion of debt into capital

— RN B AT R A F 5

Convertible corporate bonds due within one year
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HH KEEH EEEHE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
il LN [ o 4
Fixed assets under finance lease
3B R BREFEDFBEHENR:
3. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
< 1 R R AR

Cash balance as at the end of the year

112,928,817.62

68,861,408.60

W BlEFYIEREHA

Less: cash balance as at the beginning of the year

68,861,408.60

144,226,724.41

e IS EYIN R GREH
Add: balance of cash equivalents as at the end of
the year

W BT EYIN TR AR
Less: balance of cash equivalents as at the
beginning of the year

e o B 55 IR 1 N

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

44,067,409.02

-75,365,315.81

(2) Bl Bl e EY R L

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

JHH

Item

FEAREGHH

Balance as at the
end of the year

FEHIRER
Balance as at the
beginning of the

year

4
Cash

112,928,817.62

68,861,408.60

Hrp: JEFRE
Of which: cash on hand

238,303.54

600,530.39

] FE R A SRS IO SRAT 473K

Bank deposits readily available for payment

112,690,514.08

68,260,878.21

T il R P RS S A A oAt B S <
Other monetary funds readily available for
payment

BE5 8

Cash equivalents

ot =67 B R R

Of which: bonds investment due within three months

EAR BB & S R AR
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

112,928,817.62

68,861,408.60

Forpr: BRO W) AR B N T w52 IR ) A 3R < A
W HEY)

Of which: Restricted cash and cash equivalents used by
the parent company or the subsidiaries of the Group
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(3) B[ A £ A 80 13 2 BR1E.
7 J8 i B < S 3R S5 1E W 51 o 1

(3) The Group is free from the circumstance which has the

restricted usage scope and is still presented by cash and cash

Do equivalents this year.
(4 ABEBRBEELREEEDNE (4) Monetary resources which do not belong to cash and cash
Kas equivalents.
ABRAEEFRESEY
= AL LS MEE
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year Reason for Not Being
Cash and Cash
Equivalents
B AT K SO BE IR IR W
& R IRRE ANE] DABE RS F 72 AT
Bank acceptance bills 521,268,411.47 423,812,146.84 Cannot be used for
deposits, borrowing payment at any time
deposits
a3t
521,268,411.47 423,812,146.84 —
Total
4SHM B HIER 45. Monetary items in foreign currencies
FEARIMEERER FERTEANRKGBE
THH Balance in foreign FHER Equivalent RMB
Item currency at the end of Exchange rate | balance at the end of the
the year year
BRae — —
Monetary funds o
Horr: B
Of which: Hong Kong Dollars 442.,434.70 0.90622 400,943.17
46.HE 46. Lease
(1) AREEFHE &R TT (1) The Group as the lessee
IRHE KE L AR
Item Amount in current year | Amount in prior year
A (== | E
HHLE AR 2 R e 1,144,194.59 815,632.55
Interest expenses of lease liabilities
ATNE IR AR PR A 8 4 i B 0 A 91 5 )
Short-term lease expenses which are included into the 937,133.78 190,979.40
current profit or loss and adopt the simplified treatment
AT\ R Al AR A bl A AR (i A
IR ERRAM 37,257.93 32,400.00

Lease expenses of low-value assets which are included
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RH

Item

AR EERAER

Amount in current year | Amount in prior year

into the current profit or loss and adopt the simplified

treatment (except short-term lease)

SRR B o 1) 8 B At

Total cash outflow related to the lease

6,159,488.40 3,818,873.05

7N Aot EE RS E

AR A LR SR 25 O 0 R 5 T Y

L.
+. RS
LAEF AR iR

(1) A SEREIIAE K

VI. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

There were no changes in the scope of the merger in the Group
during the year.

VI. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

1. Interests in subsidiaries

(1) Composition of the corporation

eam | EEE g | B 00
. 4 Y J Proportion of 1
ol B | R | RGN | B | U | Proportionof AT
Place of Place of Type of legal Nature of . shareholding (7o Method of
Name of rincipal | registration status business Capital BHi 5Ez3 acquisition
subsidiary P p g (RMB) q
operation Direct | Indirect
LIS — )
) = . " 15,000.00 i
N T B TR w0 B
Guangdong River Foshan Li N ited Pharmaceutical 1'56 00 100.00 Established by
Charmacy -Lmite distribution L investment
Company Delta liability million
BRifFRISE = R e A — 4 T A
A Peard Bl iy B 750 360.00 ESiili
Zhuhai River Zhuhai Lir;lite d Pharmaceutical H U 100.00 Business combination
Charmacy Delta liabilit distribution 3.60 million not under common
Company y control
ERAIPEIES — . AR A — 4 A
” = AR - " 2,000.00 g
T I g | MEERE T ol
Guangzhou River Gua/r;gzhou Limited Pharmaceutical 20.00 100.00 Business combination
Charmacy | pop, liability distribution million not under common
Company control
EIIBIZE .
= S " 2,080.00 L
s | R R i
Shenzhen | piye Shenzhen Limited Pharmaceutical 20.80 100.00 Established by
%}(1)5::;1;(1:)}; Delta Jiability distribution million investment
MRS — AR A — 4 4
— - " 1,500.00 . s
N - i maER A | A
Huizhou River H:i\zhou Lir;lite d Pharmaceutical 1' SJ 00 100.00 Business combination
Charmacy e distribution o not under common
Delta liability million
Company control
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I\ BURFHEBh
LA AR % B SRR BRI BT 478 B

AN B0 2R A0 BRSO A B A I £ I
HIREREH

VIl. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

1. Government grants recognized according to the amount
receivable at the end of the year

The Group does not have any balance of receivables related to
the government grants at the end of the year.

2.5 NE BITR 25 MBUR BN 2. Government grants included into the current profit or
loss
FIANE RS
]
Tﬁ ;Eii Amount I tefljl ﬁlﬁb ?te d \Amount included in profit
P P and loss for the period
B A 2 I 1 EURT A D 2535 SN
the government subsidies 1,280,328.52 . 1,280,328.52
Non-operating revenue
related to the revenue
a3t
1,280,328.52 — 1,280,328.52
Total

-~ BEERL T R AR

AL [ AE HH 1S Bl I R A AR 4 R
THRR, FEAERSGERE. 5
FH B fe B v B B &5 . Bilig s 4
fil T B B, DL AR R A
12 L JL B AT PR E 4D JRL o 5 L IS5
TR . A B L i R L
1 AT B HERD S5 42 DAREEOROR b o S B
2 I E PR S 2 N

1255 R B 2 B AR ANBOR

A A [ 4 2 o 7 L Y A A 1 L B
IS & 2 ] A 30 5 P A1, o L
FIAEE [ 482 SE AR A T R B AR R
BRI, AR R e i s B
EI’J%'J fE KA o R B LB A B H

s AN R ) AN SR S i
mﬂ%ﬁﬁ%l%ﬁ%m%@ﬂM,
FE T T R ) R 7R 52 RS AR N 3 4T L R
B, R IR AT SE M e R AT
BEE, b L I o) A PR E 1 A R 2
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IX. RISKS RELATED TO
INSTRUMENTS

FINANCIAL

The Group is faced with various financial instrument risks in the
daily activities, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk primarily. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies adopted by the
Group on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure such risks are contained within a prescribed

scope.
1. Objective and policies of various risks management

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risk and return, where
the negative effects of risks against the operating results of the
Group are minimized, and to maximize the interest of
Shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on such risk
management objectives, the fundamental strategy of risk
management of the Group is to ascertain and analyse all types of
risk exposures of the Group, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and perform
risk monitoring on all kinds of risks in a timely and reliable

manner, thus containing risk exposures within a prescribed



M.
(1) 35 BB
1) B R Ja fa

AL [ R 52 A RE B g 2 BB W
W, BRALEMN HRSEEES. HKX
A5 IR F /0 3508 43 5 A A5 A WS R AT I
B Ah, ARG A 3 B 3%
TEENLAN B FHESS . 22023412
H31H, FRTREE RS GREE N &
7 R4 f55 R B 26 5 0y A 1) 8 Ao B
B 2 B S A T R A AR [ 1
B EREEE.

20723 FERE

ANNUAL REPORT

scope.
(1) Market risk
1) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk relates mainly to Hong Kong
Dollars. Except for the proceeds from the H Share offering,
payment of H Share dividends and minor expenses incurred in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, other main
business activities of the Group are settled in RMB. As at 31
December 2023, the changes in the fair value or future cash
flows from the assets and liabilities of the balance of the account
denominated in HKD due to changes in exchange rates may
have impact on the Group’s operating results as set out in the

following table:

IRH

Item Balance as at the 31 December 2023

2023 £ 12 A 31 H&R%E

2022 %£ 12 A 31 HER%H
(FrEARE)

Balance as at 31 December 2022

(RMB equivalent)

FrEARKE

(RMB equivalent)

Bl a et
Monetary fund — HK$

400,943.17 395,226.75

BREE-ET
Monetary fund ~US$

10.66

AL 5 ) E S T A
w.

2) FE A f

A [ P ) S g 7 A A SRAT A5 R S
W IEAES . TREIRR SR & R A
£ [ THD B B 4 vt B R 2R A, k] )
2R (1) 4 i £ 5 AR B T T B e AEAE
PR . AR IR IR K T 2R
55 A e 5 [ 52 F 2R 7 BRI R A
AL, A20234E12H31H, Ak
HE A B R RN R FHE R
5E R R A H, 4% R 638,600,000.00
g6 (2022 F 12 H 31 H
491,900,000.007C)

AEFPA R EH e TRA R
TR S8 Bl 1) J oy = 22 B[] 5 ) R SR AT
(CEXC1E

The Group closely monitors the effect of exchange rate on the
Group.

2) Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group arises from the interest-
bearing debts such as bank loans. The floating-rate financial
liabilities expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, while
the fixed-rate financial liabilities expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group determines the relative ratio of
fixed-rate contracts and floating-rate contracts based on the
market environment. As at 31 December 2023, the interest-
bearing debts of the Group were mainly fixed-rate contracts
denominated in RMB, with an amount of RMB638.60 million
(31 December 2022: RMB491.90 million).

The risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments caused
by interest rate changes in the Group is mainly related to fixed-

rate bank loans.
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(2)f5 FH R

AR B R 2 o EAT
#H, FHEAREEEEREEES
JEWCSE 4R . EWORER . Y TR R
B oA RIS

Ay FRARAS R R, A SR [ ST BT
Pt 5 AR EE . IEATE I A4,
AT e B P R PP DURE ORER A 22K
FEHE R SOE IR . Ak, AEERA
BRI A AR H R — BRI
AR, DURE GR35 (81 A )
AIHRH S MBR Y E . Rk, A
5 [ T R Ay AN SR B R SR I 5
JEBE AR K 2 AR

AL B BN B e A TR A5 T AP AR
 IERAT R B AAE AR R
fi.

A B R T 06 R R LR T B
BRI EA RIFMEHTk. BRIE
WK S & R B SRR B Ak, A
A8 1 fo A B KB AR TR . AR
M EWCR R, BT RSB A
257,836,719.11 70, fli A 2 & JE IR
FRAREA26.24%

D) {2 RS R B

AR B E B fERH, JHilLk
G2 < i T LA A9 03 R R O A E ) TR
AN I R BER A T RAE A
7 B AR H T E 1 R A AU N )
BAIMER, AHOHE b T EAS R
H YT HERRAR R 75 R G 0. (HZ,
R SR AR [P S <t TR B A
R H R BEAARAR A AR ERR, "TeL
R s 2 <z it B A A P RS 1 90 4 e
ROAR A AR BTN

UL, W EE30H, Al
R W < R 45 B A B 1
-218 -

(2) Credit risk

The Group manages the credit risk according to the portfolio
classification. Primarily, the credit risk mainly comes from the
monetary resources, bills receivable, accounts receivable,

receivables financing, and other receivables.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Group established special
departments to determine credit limits and perform credit
approval, and carries out other monitoring procedures to ensure
necessary measures are taken to collect overdue debts. Besides,
the Group reassesses the recovery of each receivable items on
an individual basis at each balance sheet date, so as to ensure
sufficient provision for doubtful debts is made for amounts that
are not recoverable. As such, the management of the Group
believes that the credit risks assumed by the Group has been
significantly mitigated.

The Group’s liquidity is deposited in banks with higher credit
rating, so the credit risk of the liquidity is lower.

The Group has adopted necessary policies to ensure that all the
trade customers have good credit history.Except for the top five
accounts receivable and contract asset amounts, the Group has
no other major credit concentration risks. Among the Group”’ s
accounts receivable, the top five total amounts are RMB
257,836,719.11, accounting for 26.24% of the Company ’ s

total accounts receivable.
1) Criteria for remarkable increase of credit risk

On each balance sheet date, through comparing the default
probability of financial instrument during the determined
estimated duration in the initial recognition and the default
probability of such instrument during the estimated duration
determined on the balance sheet date, whether the credit risk of
financial instrument increases remarkably after the initial
recognition is judged. However, if the Group determines that the
financial instrument only has a low credit risk on the balance
sheet date, it may be assumed that the credit risk of such
financial instrument does not increase remarkably after the

initial recognition.

Normally, if the overdue period exceeds 30 days, it shows that
the credit risk of financial instrument increases remarkably.



e BRARAEE AL 2R AT I A 0 B
BRAMEABES F1E DN R A A5
BHARIERE R, 55008 8
W30H, 5 EE B G R AR AR
BRE RN . A bk e 5 FH R 490 46 e
AR TR R T NIy, AR 55 A
AN A b B BRST AS B 55 77 BITR]
BERNEEEARENELR, O
WETESS 2o AR A (E B
R NPUE B EREE . WANEEE
APA. ERR R TR A OR B R
AT 5 =TT IR AL HE IR 5
WERRE R  EAE BR R M A

2) LA P B 1) E 28

e R AR R R R
ARG B 1) — TH B TR AT 35 A
A2 < Ry O SR A A T BB A <
R . AR A O 9 AE AR I
) 3= ZERRHE Zpian R BORIE90 H , H
FERLENE DT, WR N AREAN RS B
BUR, £ JEPTRAT MAEAT {5 P3G 4%
I, AT AE M AR Bl A F AR
A B2 [ R LA A O 9 2R A AR
H. SR EZEGEHRE, A6
7 2 EFAF R SE R TS, Rl
QEE IR SERE e

B E O A BE R R RS
THTBEE R A9 N E M
BN R NERER, WE AR
B GIER BUE YIS AL R
B 755 N SV 755 V) Sl A ) ) 68 17 5 [
B, TR AT AR
AT R 6 AR AT RERL
E BB AT A B A 5 AN
VY 0 A 38 < 7 10 R T 3 2k

faray
SFo
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Unless the Group may gain the reasonable and well-founded
information without unnecessary additional costs or efforts, the
credit risk still does not increase remarkably after the initial
recognition even if the overdue period exceeds 30 days. In
determining whether the credit risk increases remarkably after
the initial recognition, the Group considers the reasonable and
well-founded information gained without unnecessary additional
costs or efforts, including forward-looking information.
Information considered by the Group includes: business
environment of the debtor, internal and external credit rating,
occurrence of any major adverse change to the actual or
expected operating results, whether any remarkable change
occurs to the third party provided guarantee or credit
enhancement quality.

2) Definitions of assets with credit impairment

If one or multiple incidents which have adverse impacts on the
expected future cash flow of financial assets occur, such
financial assets become the financial assets with credit
impairment. The main standard for the Group to judge the
occurrence of credit impairment is “the overdue period exceeds
90 days”. However, under some circumstances, according to the
internal or external information, before any credit enhancement
is considered, provided that the contract amount may not be
recovered in full, the Group may also deem it as the credit
impairment. The credit impairment of financial assets may be
caused by the common effects of multiple incidents, and it is not
necessarily caused by any incident which can be identified

alone.

Evidences for credit impairment of financial assets include the
following observable information: the debtor suffers from any
major financial distress; the debtor violates the contract, for
example, default in interest payment or principal repayment or
overdue interest payment or principal repayment; out of
economy or contract related to the financial distress of the
debtor, the Group gives the concession which will not be
provided under all circumstances to the debtor; the debtor is
likely to go bankrupt or undergo other financial restructuring;
the active market of such financial assets disappears due to the

financial distress of the debtor.
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3) 15 FH R i 1

2023412 H31H, wfg g &AL
S4B KA FH LS i 11 = e
H A R 75— 7 R AR JEAT 2875 1M 12 5
AR [ 4 Bl e AR IR R

A E AR CHERR ISR E
SR e 8R; B LA feAERT R
R THME, MR R T R
o QR ERIE |5 SN AR e
DR JEL o i 11595 B 25 R A 2 SUABL AL P 3
RATEE 28

()L E A f

T Eh B i A A £ B AE 2 H SRR AT
FUR s B . AR [ PR B
P R (4 5 9 A R AT A2 50 B
BV AR AT 2R, T ARG K
ANTT R 52 IR K B A SR A5 B R
Fo AL E W M A B A A
BR, DIRECRATEMINE & AERE
B S RAT A5 S8 P DO AT B2
NP DR S A8 S g o [ B B < R G
FEAT R RER, DLOREF— € 3RS
BARE, IR ED P R -

A B [ SRAT A O AT S4B A R
S ARYE . R20234FE12H31H, &
£ [ 10 A A5 FH P SR AT £ AR N S BB AR S
F432,857.86 76 (20224E12H31H:
24,649.32E70)

ALEF A 1) 4 flE pE Al B fE 1%
AT (5] B gt 1 21 1A A R 23 A7
R

2023F12H31H &%

3) Credit risk exposure

As of December 31, 2023, the biggest credit risk exposure
which may cause the financial losses against the Group mainly
came from “the Group suffers from the losses on financial assets
due to the fact that other party fails to perform the obligations”.

Book amount of financial assets recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet; for the financial instruments measured by fair
value, the book value reflects the risk exposure, but it is not the
biggest risk exposure. Its biggest risk exposure will change with
the change of future fair value.

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations at maturity. The Group manages
liquidity risk by ensuring that it has ample liquidity to meet its
obligations as they fall due without incurring unacceptable
losses or causing damage to its reputation. The Group regularly
analyses the structure and maturity of its liabilities to ensure that
sufficient funds are available. The Group’s management
monitors the use of bank loans and ensures compliance with
loan agreements. It also negotiates with financial institutions on
financing to maintain a certain credit limit and reduce liquidity

risk.

The Group uses bank loans and notes payable as its main
funding sources. As at 31 December 2023, the unused limit of
bank loans and notes of the Group was RMB328.5786 million
(31 December 2022: RMB246.4932 million).

The maturity of the financial assets and financial liabilities held
by the Group based on undiscounted contract cash flows is

analyzed as follows:

Amount as at 31 December 2023:

HH —4ELAN —F|—F btz 2 LEUE HE

Item Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
SREE L L L L L
Financial assets
Monetary funds 634,197,229.09 634,197,229.09
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IHH —EN —B| = ZBHE HEME s
Item Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to S years Over 5 years Total
e
},?;E:Ll&mﬁ% 3,645,761.32 3,645,761.32
Bills receivables
xp,
}EWE‘EW\. 982,891,686.13 982,891,686.13
Trade receivables
H 2
“ﬁﬂ%q&?}\ 12,908,604.59 12,908,604.59
Other receivables
7y v
JLL IR 41,584,593.72 41,584,593.72
Other liquid assets
SRARE
Financial E— E— E— E— —
liabilities
F AR
Short-term 587,994,113.46 587,994,113.46
borrowings
o
Eﬁmﬁ% 936,487,754.65 936,487,754.65
Bills payables
+HE 2
A 659,073,566.35 659,073,566.35
Accounts payable
H et
SISk 341,051,900.01 341,051,900.01
Other payables
OB ASF B L 3 T
Salaries payable to 9,688,286.53 9,688,286.53
employees
& AH

Lease liabilities

8,091,593.90

7,467,009.11

20,569,716.09

5,670,256.92

41,798,576.02

+. BB RS S

1. BB 7 B4R

(1) RAw AR

X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

1. Relationship with related parties

(1) Information about parent company of the Company

BARREL | BARNAL
AR ELG] | RIRRRHELL
. (%) (%)
At fi L XutE -
YNGR EERUIBZEIN Shareholding | Voting Right
Registered Business
Name of Parent Company Registered Capital Proportion (%) Proportion
Place Nature
of Parent (%) of Parent
Company in the Company in
Company the Company
LS WA 7) ] PBSIRES 25000 0 AR 1303 673
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. China al services RMB 750,000,000 ’ ’

(2) ARFEIT AL

(2) Information on the subsidiaries of the Company
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T A A G DU AR R
A S A ] AR RS0 B T 8
(3) LM MG A5 a3
(4) At R H 7

1. (1D

For details of subsidiaries, please see “VII. 1. (1) Composition of

the corporation” under these notes.
(3) The Group has no joint ventures and associated enterprises

(4) Other related parties

Fofth BRI BT 45 7R LA N EIRR
Name of other related parties Relationship with the Company
weaEe FrA A 31.97%KHE, AR R
Yao Chuanglong Hold 31.97 shares of the Company, company director
I\ = S A T 2 INH > INF
T 76 B 2 5 4 B A R AT 16.13%/5 0, ATEEBAMRARZ TAH

Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd.

Hold 16.13% shares of the Company, subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co.,
Ltd.

TR RHRIEA IR A
Jiangyao Group Technology (Dalian) Co., Ltd.

TLEERFA IR A F 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLPRIE R LN B 2R A BR B AR A 7]
Jiangxi Jiangzhong Jiuzhou Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.

TLEERFA IR AW 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEESE M L R R A TEEERRARAR TN
Jiangyao Group (Shandong) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.
TLEELE R B A R A #) TTEEREBARA T T A

Jiangyao Group (Henan) Co., Ltd.

Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEERE (UMD ARRAE
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd.

TLEERFA IR AW 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLZELE [ A PR A W)
Jiangyao Group (Changzhou) Co., Ltd.

TLEEEMARAR 2T
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEEAR I LA B A ]
Jiangyao Group (Tangshan) Co., Ltd.

TLEERFA IR AW 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TTEEAE B A B2 7]
Jiangyao Group (Liaocheng) Co., Ltd.

TR IR A 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEESE TG R A
Jiangyao Group (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.

TLEERFA IR AW 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEEAE PR B A IR B AR A 7]
Jiangyao Group Luoyang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

TR IR A 2 1A
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

T2 [ A BR 2 =)
Jiangyao Group (Yancheng) Co., Ltd.

TLEERFA IR AW 2 1A ]
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLVRTTEE LN 2R A B A ]

Jiangxi Jiangyao Jiuzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

LEEEMARAR 2T A H
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLVETL R R 4 TR A =)
Jiangxi Jiangyao Renxiang Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.

LEEEMARAR 2T A
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

A T e s AL B A IR AR
Zhangshu Shengrong House Leasing Co., Ltd.

LV LN B A R AR A T AR
Subsidy of Jiangxi Jiangyao Jiuzhou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

JE 1L B A A IR )
Meishan Yuetong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

TLBEERIE (U)ID FRAFTFAF
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd.

AT AR S B L (ARG
Nanchang Zhongcheng Pharmaceutical
Management Center (Limited Partnership)

ARPATHE FE ORI EIIT & A4 3
Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as executive
partner

M ET R L (HREGH)

Nanchang Zhonghe Pharmaceutical Management
Center (Limited Partnership)

AT E HEAURIEERIT A3

Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as executive
partner
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FoAth R B 7 4

Name of other related parties

B B B 47
Relationship with the Company

VL VU B 2L R0 S A PR A F
Jiangxi Guoxin Pharmaceutical Valley Commercial
Operation Management Co., Ltd.

JERAT HE P i ORI E TR

Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as chairman

AN SN Yt B /A
Jiangxi Jiangyaotang Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.

JEPUT E F BT EF RIS
Enterprise with the non-executive director Fu Zheng acting as the executive
chairman

T P A R 4 SR A B A ]
Henan Chunyang Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd.

JEFATHE FAHEE AT EH RN A3
Enterprise with the non-executive director Fu Zheng acting as the executive
chairman

WL ZS BN A A E A TR A )
Zhejiang Maihong Capital Management Company
Limited

BSLAFAT E R E R RS
Enterprise with the independent non-executive director Li Hanguo acting
as the executive chairman

L At5 %2 A E A R A A
Shanghai Baiyang Panduo Consulting Management
Co., Ltd.

RS ARIAT HE RS FEAE 100% G4BT T M3
Enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive director,
holds 100% shares and serves as the executive director.

TR R A SR A IR A
Shanghai New Focus Investment and Development
Limited

P AEBAT HE B BRI 70% B AT E FH I3
An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,
holds 70% of shares and serves as the legal representative of the enterprise

ARG AR ERE L CHRE®)

Shanghai Baidu Longchang Enterprise
Management and Service Center (limited
partnership)

Mo 37 AERAT 3 H RS IR 99% WL HEAEHAT & N IH 4R 3E
An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director,
holds 99% of shares and serves as the general partner

Ol B EME. RFEH. ME. R,
L OPEMEL. R KWL, MAEIH. R
Poo MGG BimE. SRR

Yan Jingbin, Zheng Yuyan, Zhang Hanzi, Fu
Zheng, Xu Fei, Guan Jian, Wan Chi Wai Anthony,
Li Hanguo, Zhu Minghong, Zheng Xiyue, Zhang
Ling, Lin Zhijie, Liu Yingyu, Yao Jiexi

NEER, BFELSHEEAR

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company

2. 5

C1) WS M SEOCA 2 55 F5 1
B A2 5 T L

1) BRI i %32 55 55

2. Related party transactions

(1) Related party transactions involving the purchase and sale of
goods, the provision and receipt of services

1) Procurement and acceptance of services

Content of related party Amount in Amount in
Name of related party transactions current year prior year
S _ PRI R ot AR A%
VT %% NG
AR AT Procurement and 53,250,105.37 | 18,999,297.44
tangyao roup £0., LAd. acceptance of services
S - PRI R ot AR A%
T =
ﬂ;ik%@(@}”)ﬁﬁﬁi\ Al Procurement and 912,879.91
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd acceptance of services
TR B A R U 372698334 | 442,250.00

Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

Financing costs

Al b IR BRI R e B A S BT R
f s POEERETR A

Note:The above amount of procurement includes rebates from
the upstream manufacturers and suppliers.
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(2) SHE T A AR LSS 5

A B 180 A 4 52 ] O B 5 o /4 A3t
R

(3) [ OR 1% DL

A B B A P52 AT RS TR T 378 £ 7 B
BB T P RN DL o

(4) BT & eIt

(2) Sale of goods/provision of services

The Group does not have the related sales of goods/provision of

services this year.
(3) Connected Guarantee

The Group has not been a guarantor or guaranteed by connected

parties in current year.

(4) Connected-party Fund Borrowing and Lending

BRI B 77 42 FEEHR whE B 2% E ik
Related party name Loan amount Start date Expiry date remark
BB T EERA

Withdrawal of related party
funds

TEELE AR A
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

986,248,000.00

202341 H 14 H
14 January 2023

2024 E 6 A 25 H
25 June 2024

SF: #E2023MFE12H31H, AL
KEBOBHE & SIRESHR
331,002,433.347%,

(5) [sE BN B3

Note: As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding amount of
connected-party  funds borrowed by the Group was
RMB331,002,433.34.

(5) Compensation of key managers

THE 478

Item name

AEEFAH

Amount in current year

EEEAR

Amount in prior year

M a et

Total compensation

3,443,085.10 3,372,674.92

(6) FFEARIHIAC %

RAFERR (FHBLEHHRD ZH14A
T 2 I B 5 A O B AE B A 5
wr:

(6) Continuing Connected Translations

The connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
of the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules are detailed as follows:

W T I B FEBEE | LABEE
Name of related party Content of related party transactions Amount in Amount in prior
current year year

T 2 42 [ INE = e

ISR IR 2 PRIRE s AL _ 60,157,610.59 21,473,567.40
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. Procurement and acceptance of services

TCHEIE ()ID ARAT RIS WA s | 03155430

Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd Procurement and acceptance of services T

3T 2 A [ INE 3 G

ELERIRIHA IR 2 ) i enaalil 3,726,983.34 442,250.00

Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

Financing costs

A bR BRI & AR A A
o
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3. Related party balances

(1) Items receivable
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ERGH FERIEREH
Balance as at the end of the Balance as at the begining of
IHE 478 B year the year
Item name Related party HRTH &R 2R :@EEKE% FR TH SR B8R ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Provision Provision
Book Book
balance for bad balance for bad
debt debt
TEATERRK
Prepayments
TLEESEE A TR A A
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. 2,701,418.09
TLEERR (U1 BIRAF
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd 39,072.82
(2) JEATIHH (2) Payable items
FEHIRR T GR AR
HELH )iy AR R Book balance at
I Related Book balance at the beginni f
tem name elated party the end of the year e beginning o
the year
JEAFARK

Trade receivables

TTEEAE A TR A ]
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

16,334,772.69

aRARK

Contract liabilities

TLEEAEEA TR A A
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

17,699,115.04

Fofth FEAT K
Other payables
TLEEAEE A TR A A
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. 331,002,433.34 70,450,650.00
TLEERR (U1 BIRAF
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd 24,007,200.00
[ IRE
Bills payables
TLEERR (U1 ARA
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd 167,785.40
A0 B 7 AR 4. Commitments of Related Party

A B OB A 4 o W 7 A

year.

The Group does not have the commitments of related party this
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SEE. BELKBIHMH
(1) B HFRHREE T

5. Directors’, Supervisors’ And Employees’ Emoluments

(1). Details of the emoluments of directors and supervisors are

as follows:

HH

Item

e R
Salaries and
allowances

e R, EEEERIR
&
Social insurance,housing
fund and pension

e

Bonuses

Je 3 SAT
Share-based
payment

=
Total

AEEER

Amount for the year

PUTEF

Executive Directors

-BeAIFE
-Yao Chuanglong

636,290.00

41,770.80

50,010.00

728,070.80

-Zheng Yuyan

921,147.53

33,149.40

36,837.00

991,133.93

-RIEHL
-Zhang Hanzi

336,074.00

25,215.60

24,200.00

385,489.60

NEt
Subtotal

1,893,511.53

100,135.80

111,047.00

2,104,694.33

B

Supervisors

-REME (2023.1.1-
2023.5.31 (LR HD
-Lin Zhijie (Served as a
Supervisor 2023.1.1-
2023.5.31)

165,065.00

11,986.83

177,051.83

St
-Zheng Xiyue

152,966.98

16,736.72

8,000.00

177,703.70

SR
-Zhang Ling

40,000.00

40,000.00

Mgt
Subtotal

358,031.98

28,723.55

8,000.00

394,755.53

B IEPITESR
Independent non-
executive Directors

-FHEE
-Wan Chi Wai Anthony

144,000.00

144,000.00

-[é it

-Guan Jian

50,000.00

50,000.00

-ARVEE] (2023531 2
EALH D)

-Li Hanguo (Served as
a Director since 31 May
2023)

29,304.39

29,304.39

-JEiEE (2023.1.1-
2023.5.31 #BIEESD)
-Zhou Tao (Served as a
Director 2023.1.1-
2023.5.31)

20,830.00

20,830.00

NEt
Subtotal

244,134.39

244,134.39

&t
Total

2,495,677.90

128,859.35

119,047.00

2,743,584.25
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HH

Item

e R
Salaries and
allowances

wHeRig. EEEERR
&
Social insurance,housing
fund and pension

e

Bonuses

&4 ST
Share-based
payment

&5t
Total

EEEER

Amount for last year

PITEF

Executive Directors

-BeAHE
-Yao Chuanglong

637,615.00

39,746.10

55,011.00

732,372.10

-5 s
-Zheng Yuyan

584,020.52

31,250.92

266,010.11

881,281.55

-IRFEH

(2022.7.13 EIEAEE
40
-Zhang Hanzi
(Served as a Director
since 13 July 2022)

304,931.35

24,758.40

28,798.00

358,487.75

-MRE R
(2022.1.1-2022.4.8 ¥

fEE S

-Lin Zhixiong

(Served as a Director

2022.1.1-2022.4.8)

128,113.82

8,235.60

136,349.42

NG
Subtotal

1,654,680.69

103,991.02

349,819.11

2,108,490.82

B

Supervisors

-3k
-Zheng Xiyue

126,705.30

16,620.80

4,950.00

148,276.10

-MREAE
-Lin Zhijie

395,680.00

29,150.92

36,542.00

461,372.92

-IR¥E
-Zhang Ling

40,000.00

40,000.00

NEE
Subtotal

562,385.30

45,771.72

41,492.00

649,649.02

B IEATES
Independent non-
executive Directors

-FHEME
-Wan Chi Wai Anthony

144,000.00

144,000.00

-[i 5

-Guan Jian

50,000.00

50,000.00

-JEE
-Zhou Tao

50,000.00

50,000.00

/NEE
Subtotal

244,000.00

244,000.00

aRt
Total

2,461,065.99

149,762.74

391,311.11

3,002,139.84
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(2) hfifzm#m AL

AN S 3 I A v P T LA P 3 A R
HOCRERE: 360D , JLEHRH
CRWR R “+. 5 (1) 7 #HHEK
BT . HoA2fr (B 2
(OORILE T LI

(2) Five individuals with the highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three were
directors (last year: 3) for the year, and the emoluments of the
directors among them reflected in Note “ X 5(1)” emoluments
the emoluments of directors and supervisors. The emolument of

other two individuals (last year: 2) was as follows:

IHH AR LEHER
Item Amount for the year | Amount for last year
S A 0
o SR 558,257.00 570,260.00
Salaries and allowances
G L. PN H -
HERE. EEEeEMERERE 50,548.80 33,652.47
Social insurance, housing fund and relevant pension cost
i
s 49,830.00
Bonuses
ait
658,635.80 603,912.47
Total
o7 T 8 [« Scope of emoluments:
IHHE AENH EEAH
Item Number of people for the year Number of people for last year
1,000,000 75 AN CARHD 5N 5N
Within RMB1,000,000 5 people 5 people

(3) A A LRI B i s SE 2K
FHIE Lt AR S BRI e AR T
i T A L b 3 = o S 2 T R B
ECEAEMTHH . LSRR, &
AL AR R SR N A TR A 7
e N SR AT, 1 A
RSN B NS 22 ) B ) A8l B
R A BB

(4) FZE B H

FEEHREHWM (BT e #E
H.BFELSSERRENEF) W
e
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(3) No other directors or supervisors of the Group waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year except Mr.
Yan Jingbin, Ms. Fu Zheng, Mr. Xu Fei and Mr. Zhu Minghong
waived their emoluments. During the Track Record Period, no
emoluments were paid by the Company to any directors,
supervisors or the five highest paid individuals as inducements
to join or upon joining the Company or as a compensation for

loss of office.
(4) Major management’s emoluments

The emoluments of major management (including the amount
paid and payable to directors, supervisors and senior

management) were as follows:
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HH REEBHER AR
Item Amount for the year Amount for last year
A5 T R
%ﬁ.&i'ﬁ 3,073,691.18 2,767,087.99
Salaries and allowances
FEE ORI 35 FE e SO B R AR 4 A
Social insurance, housing fund and relevant pension 183,996.92 183,753.82
cost
s A
B 185,397.00 421,833.11
Bonuses
ARt
3,443,085.10 3,372,674.92

Total

6. WA 2 2 2 I T A SR K

A 190 A A 0 R 0 ] O
SN

+—. AEREFEIHR
1L.EEAEE

BRE202312A31H, KEFARNGFE
N AN 5 (1) B R T

2EEHIR

AL AR N NSRS DL R
(HA7: o) -

6. Outstanding loans receivable from directors and
directors' affiliated enterprises

The Group has no outstanding loans receivable from directors
and directors' affiliated enterprises in current year.

XI. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. Important commitment

By 31 December 2023, the Group had no important

commitment which must be disclosed.
2. Contingencies

The Group’s internal guarantees during the reporting period are
as follows (Unit: RMB0’000):

HH

Item

AEEFAH

Amount for the year

EEEAR

Amount for last year

B 725 7 AR

Mutual guarantee between parent company and

subsidiary company

303,739.90 271,639.90

BRAFAE LR R SIS, AN [ i I
il 75 35 s ) A A

T=. REARRBRER

LA 7

Apart from the above disclosures, no other contingencies of the
Group need to be disclosed.

XI .EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET
DATE

1. Distribution of profits
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IRH

Item

B
Content

553 BC ) AR B A
Profit or dividends to be distributed

0.30 o/fir (AR
0.30 yuan / share (RMB)

AR SR U B S RO A B A
Profits or dividends declared after
deliberation and approval

0.30 yo/fir (AR
0.30 yuan / share (RMB)

T=. REEHR

A [ A 5 i L Ath B B TR R

T, BARMBRREERE

XIII. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

The Group had no other material disclosures during the year.

X IV. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF FINANCIAL

R STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY
1. R K 1. Trade receivables
RE AR EFARERER Balance asﬂjj‘)t]ffiﬁe inning of
Name of item Balance as at the end of the year g g0
the year
JEWCHRR

Trade receivables

375,106,274.17 300,333,159.81

I BRIV

Less:Provision for bad debt 3,229,123.79 3,240,447.62
R 371,877,150.38 297,092,712.19
Net amount

(1) BRI IRES 517

TR 25 20, AR TR N
{5 B R AL BOR AR S R A 2 5 K45
ooty L3I0 ) R PR - A B T [ o) 2
FEA R A5 B . 5 0 — i
FNEA - RS EHAE, DL HIE
TSRS 0 i BT A R B UUIR AR B 7 2R i

NHIRERRIRR R, 0B AT RES

(1) Accounts receivable by aging

Before accepting new customers, the Group assessed the credit
worthiness of potential clients and set corresponding credit
limits according to the internal credit assessment policies. The
Group applies different credit policies to different customers.
Credit period is generally six months. As for commodity sales,
the trade receivables and operating revenue are recognized and
the age of the same is calculated after the control right has been

transferred to the buyers;

SR FEARGRH FHIRH

Age Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
! EE U~ N 365,204,074.06 289,930,454.84
Within 1 year
12 % 9,187,074.10 9,580,674.60
1 to 2 years
23 7F 161,965.89 665,124.42
2 to 3 years
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SR FEARGRER FHIRH
Age Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
34ELLE
More than 3 553,160.12 156,905.95
years
&t
375,106,274.17 300,333,159.81
Total

(2) MEWCHR R AR R J7 %0

(2) Trade receivable by the method of provisioning for bad debt

H7N
FERGBRE
Balance as at the end of the year
HRTE AR EE RERVER
g5 Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification ATHRELB HRTH A
(1}
& bl (%) &4 (%) Book value
Percentage Provision
Amount Amount .
(%) ratio
(%)
T B IAGH IR e
Bad debt provision made on 1,117,591.87 0.30 1,094,493.67 97.93 23,098.20
individual basis
A R IR R
Bad debt provision made on a 373,988,682.30 99.70 2,134,630.12 0.57 371,854,052.18
collective basis
Hof, HEEOAL L
Hrf: . B@é@ﬁ " . 373,988,682.30 99.70 2,134,630.12 0.57 371,854,052.18
Of which: Aging portfolio
it
To:al 375,106,274.17 100.00 3,229,123.79 — 371,877,150.38
(%D (continued)
FEXREE
Balance as at the beginning of the year
BRI BREH RERVER
KR Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification ATERELAI HRTH A
[1}
&4 bl (%) &4 (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision
(%) ratio
(%)
T RIS IR e
Bad debt provision made on 1,115,185.55 0.37 1,115,185.55 100.00
individual basis
HeAl frHE R A
Bad debt provision made on a 299,217,974.26 99.63 2,125,262.07 0.71 297,092,712.19
collective basis
. A SH A
Sk . i E H . 299,217,974.26 99.63 2,125,262.07 0.71 297,092,712.19
Of which: Aging portfolio
At
To:al 300,333,159.81 100.00 3,240,447.62 — 297,092,712.19

-231 -



D/ BEmERHERZTE

g%-cHmel  CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

1) $2 B IEG R ISR AR e

A I T A BT SRR S 44
BN, R K IR
R«

2) AR PRI ICR AR Y Ay

1) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on individual

basis

The provision for bad debt accrued according to the single item
regarding the accounts receivable this year is the small-amount
payment for goods, and no accrual of provision for bad debt of

significant single item exists.

2) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on group basis

ERGRE
BB Balance as at the end of the year
Age e EREX BERYER EHELEBE] (%)
trade receivables Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
! EEU‘W 365,081,781.23 1,277,786.24 0.35
Within 1 year
1-2 4F 8,906,901.07 856,843.88 9.62
1 to 2 years
3t
373,988,682.30 2,134,630.12 —_—

Total

(3) JEWCRAAEFEF 5. Al
CERIEDD ) AR f 175 10

(3) Provision for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)

of trade receivables in the year

KEBE SR .
FENIRHE Changes in the year R
- - Balance as at
5! Balance as at i ET g the
Item the beginning aHR b [l SR Written back | At
Recovered or end of the
of the year Accrued or written Others
reversed off year
BIAEE
Individual 1,115,185.55 71,515.24 92,165.80 41.32 1,094,493.67
provision
LA GH A
E‘Eﬁ;’. Al . 2,125,262.07 9,368.05 2,134,630.12
Ageing portfolio
it
Total 3,240,447.62 80,883.29 92,165.80 41.32 3,229,123.79

A SR YR AR WAL ] i [ < B 22 2/
RAERK,  ANAEAE H R R (A 1
Dio

(4) A P B B YOR FO% 815 1
Ut
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The recovered or reversed amount of provision for bad debt this
year is the small-amount payment for goods, and no important

recovery or reversal exists.

(4) Significant trade receivable write-offs for the year
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JHH

Item

B

The amount of write-off

T A 5 1) AR AR

Actually written-off accounts receivable

41.32

RIS I3 /N K,
R A7 S AR R 8«

(5) $RFT7 Em B I S R GR AR AT 10
A 1 JE SR AR 1

ENCR YN Wik e NS e
JE IR KB A& BN R
190,772,117.18 JG » A J& UL HR 3k 4 K
BREE O T BN L 150.86%, A ERTHE
(3R A R BR B RE A S AN IR
667,702.407C -

The written-off accounts receivable this year are small-amount
payment for goods, and there is no write-off of important

accounts receivable.

(5) Details of top five balances of trade receivables classified by

borrowers as at the end of the year

In the year, the sum of accounts receivable of five borrowers
with the largest closing balance of accounts receivable was
RMB190,772,117.18, 50.86% of the total closing balance of
accounts receivable. Accordingly, the bad debt provisions set
aside had a total closing balance of RMB667,702.40.

2. H A B 2. Other receivables
RH FABE Balance asﬂj?tjffﬁﬁe inning of
Item Balance as at the end of the year g g
the year
JESCRIE
Interests receivable
JEVAL J5 A
Dividend receivable
+H e
/\1"@},@4&;:}\ 413,652,378.56 253,122,752.11
Other receivables
a3t
413,652,378.56 253,122,752.11
Total

2.1 Hofth EHGER

(1) HoAt EASCRIZ R IANE - 20 S5

2.1 Other receivables

(1) Classification of other receivables by fund nature

— R AR 4 IR 4
> Book balance at the end of the Book balance at the beginning of
Fund nature
year the year

£ o
Ak 404,623,893.20 165,440,332.03
Money transfers
gk R

Land collection and storage

80,000,000.00
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IR FERIR T SR EH AR TH SR 3R
Book balance at the end of the Book balance at the beginning of
Fund nature
year the year

TR 4

. 8,510,792.00 7,768,492.00
Cash deposit
fi & 522,693.36 386,505.12
Imprest fund
A%t

413,657,378.56 253,595,329.15

Total
W SEARYEAMS
Less:Provision for bad debt 5,000.00 472,577.04
i 413,652,378.56 253,122,752.11
Net amount

(2) oAt BB IRES 7

(2) Aging analysis of other receivables

SR FEARBRE FHIRER

Age Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the begining of the year
! fﬁUﬁ‘J 405,958,886.56 246,095,813.15
Within 1 year
1-2 4 268,976.00 293,064.00
1 to 2 years
2-3 7F 293,064.00 154,000.00
2 to 3 years
3fELLLE 7,136,452.00 7,052,452.00
More than 3 years
it

413,657,378.56 253,595,329.15

Total

(3) HoAt EEWGH % AR E 52 05 ik 7

(3) Other receivables are classified and presented according to

EZPTIN the accrual method of bad debt.
FERREE
Balance as at the end of the year
R FRIERER BERYEM
Classification Book balance Provisiori fo;‘ bad debt BT
Amount Percentage Amount Provision
(%) ratio (%)

Yo B IHETH R MR A
Bad debt provision made on 5,000.00 0.01 | 5,000.00 100.00
individual basis
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ERGBRER
Balance as at the end of the year
)| HRTH BR AR BIRYER
Classification Book balance Provisiori for bad debt BT A
ﬁﬁ H.’JM ( OA)) ﬁ%ﬁ ﬁ‘l‘%% thwj ( OA) ) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision
(%) ratio (%)
FA Rt PRI IR Y E A
Bad debt provision made on | 413,652,378.56 99.99 413,652,378.56
a collective basis
b R ERAL &
Including: Low-risk portfolio 413,652,378.56 99.99 413,652,378.56
a3t
Total 413,657,378.56 100.00 | 5,000.00 — | 413,652,378.56
(#) (continued)
EHIRRER
Balance as at the begining of the year
FRIEEAER BEARYER
=) Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification ) %H‘;% L5 BB
| el (%) | (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision
(%) ratio
(%)
T B IHEH S IR YE
Bad debt provision made on 5,000.00 0.01 5,000.00 100.00
individual basis
F sl G at P IR YE M
Bad debt provision made ona| 253,590,329.15 99.99 | 467,577.04 0.18 253,122,752.11
collective basis
Hortr AR BA A
Including: Low-risk portfolio 248,729,861.01 98.07 248,729,861.01
A G A

iﬁiﬁ)‘{\lﬂnfage portfolio 4,860,468.14 1.92 | 467,577.04 9.62 4,392,891.10
it
Total 253,595,329.15 100.00 | 472,577.04 — 253,122,752.11

1) At Ok % B IHE R AR Y Ay

individually

1) Provision for bad debts for other receivables made
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Balance as at the\beginning of
Balance as at the end of the year
the year
218 AR L
Name ? 9 N
EE | DR gy | ERRE 6 s
Book balance Provision for Book balance Provision for Provision Reason for-accrual
bad debt bad debt ratio
(%)
I T B g
P2 #] ZA T EREH
Qingyuan Runyue 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 100.00 The company has
Pharmaceutical Co., been deregistered.
Ltd.
il 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 — —
Total

20 At TR A% HE RIS PR K —

R R

2) Accrual of provision for bad debt according to the general

model of expected credit loss regarding other receivables

BRHRYEME

Provision for bad debt

FEFEE

First stage

B_FEE

Second stage

BB
Third stage

Rk 12 18
REHEH
PN
12-month
expected
credit loss

BEFENEN
FHBRCREE
15 HBE)
Lifetime
expected
credit loss (not
credit-impaired)

BEFENEN
FREXROCRE
15 FBE)
Lifetime expected
credit loss (credit-
impaired)

At
Total

202351 A 1 A8RHR
Balance on 1 January 2023

467,577.04

5,000.00

472,577.04

2023 £ 1 H 1 H H AR B AR 1
BREATE AL

Book balance of other receivables
on 1 January 2023 in the year

-THON B R B

—Transferred to the second stage

NG = BB
—Transferred to the third stage

-1 ] 5 P B

—Reversed to the second stage

-] B — B
—Reversed to the first stage

AAEEHE

Accrued for the year

-467,577.04

-467,577.04

AR [m]

Reversed in the year

NS L
Written off in the year

AR

Cancelled in the year
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FE—PER EPER F=FER
First stage Second stage Third stage
4
sk 1248 | EEERIER | wopmeammm X
SRR AEER | PR ERRRERE | O
Provision for bad debt Bk {EFH @{E) 15 F M) Total
12-month :;:fztcligg Lifetime expected
expected cre ditploss (not credit loss (credit-
credit loss . s . impaired)
credit-impaired)
FoAt 5 5)
Other changes
2023 4£ 12 A 31 HER/HH
Balance on 31 December 2023 5,000.00 5,000.00

(4) HALEBGRAFEFT I il 5k

(4) Provision for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)

A [ (1% 35 R YA A4 155 of other receivables in the year
p—— KEBESH
R Bal 2 b Changes in the year FEREGEE
alance as at the N idEET E| BN ER A% Balance as at the
Item beginning of the =HE
Recovered or | Written back end of the year
year Accrued .
reversed or written off
B IH G
Individual 5,000.00 5,000.00
provision
IRESH S
Ageing 467,577.04 -467,577.04
portfolio
&t
472,577.04 -467,577.04 5,000.00
Total

(5) AR P RAFAE % 8 1) HoAth B Wi

AIE DL o

(6) %R T7 a e X SE R ER A AT 10

A ) oAt R 90

borrowers as at the end of the year

(5) There were no other receivables written off during the year.

(6) Details of top five balances of other receivables classified by

A FoAt Bk AR AR BEPR YA
. HIEME R GETEIES (%) FERBRE
B4 N BREE Percentage in Balance of
ature of Balance as at the . . .
Company name Age the total closing provision for bad
amounts end of the year
balance of other debts at the end
receivables (%) of the year
J& I RIS LE A PR A A SN
Guangzhou Charmacy Current 318,856,470.69 Within 1 77.08
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
PRt AISRGE A R AT AR 1R
Zhuhai Charmacy Current 47.917,015.39 Within 1 11.58
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
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1 F At JEBCR R ERER RERVER
Pa— o,
BRI ER AR AEFBUG LB ( %) FEREBHE
B4 N BR&S Percentage in Balance of
ature of Balance as at the . ..
Company name amounts end of the vear Age the total closing provision for bad
y balance of other debts at the end
receivables (%) of the year
HINAISREEEAIRA FEZEER 1 LN
Huizhou Charmacy Current 27,732,442.71 Within 1 6.70
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
RYNBISEEEARAF FEZEEK 1 LN
Shenzhen Charmacy Current 10,112,964.41 Within 1 2.44
Pharmaceutical Limited accounts year
3 {\ A B % AS
ﬁ_jﬁfﬁﬂi EEQ ﬁBEL\ {%gg 3£‘£U\J:
Zhuhai Jinming Medicine Deposit 3,600,000.00 N[}orz;lrlsn 1.35
Co., Ltd. Y
Bt — 410,218,893.20 — 99.15
Total pEETITAE :
(7)) AEMATERRESETE (7) The Group has no money presented in other receivables due

TTI B0 At JEE AR R K IH o

to the centralized capital management this year.

.RHIRERE 3. Long-term equity investments
FERERIH FEHIERER
HE Balance as at the end of the year Balance as at the beginning of the year
Ttem magn | AR mmme | mmes | PERE L mmm
Book balance . . Book value Book balance . . Book value
impairment impairment
S
Investment in 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24 | 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
the subsidiaries
=E
Total 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24 | 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
(D HFAFRKRE (1) Investment in the subsidiaries
#HR : )
SR | A | e, | Skt | RTRIBRE | KRG
PR B Balance as at Addition .. Balance as at . . .
.. . Reduction in Provision for provision
Investees the beginning in the end of the . . . .
of the year the year the year year impairment for for impairment at
the year the end of the year

R AIZE N A
Guangdong 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
Charmacy
Company
BRI A A
Zhuhai 25,710,000.00 25,710,000.00
Charmacy
Company
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2r4p ;
| | el | fkmm | PTIEIKE | RESREAE
BB EAL Balance as at | Addition R ol Balance as at .. . .
.. . eduction in Provision for provision
Investees the beginning in the end of the . . . .
of the year the year the year year impairment for | for impairment at
the year the end of the year
JE P B3R A ]
Guangzhou 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Charmacy
Company
RYNBIZE A A
Shenzhen 20,800,000.00 20,800,000.00
Charmacy
Company
B AIZE AT
Huizhou 3,468,852.24 3,468,852.24
Charmacy
Company
aat 219,978,852.24 219,978,852.24
Total o [
4.8 W ANNE ERA 4. Operating revenue and operating cost
(1) 2 EWNFE ZERAEN (1) Basic information on business revenue and business
expenses
REEFHAEER lote oy 22 -
JAH Amount for the year Amount for last year
Item LN D% S LN 5%
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
EX-E
. . 1,701,652,695.84 1,632,766,098.74 1,560,606,376.74 1,488,530,937.83
Principal businesses
A
”ﬁﬂ%?%. 91,499,432.14 1,033,916.38 84,613,398.79 1,346,760.58
Other businesses
Eat
Total 1,793,152,127.98 1,633,800,015.12 1,645,219,775.53 1,489,877,698.41

(2) & A E LRI

(2) Information on revenue generated from contracts

=R S AEEFAH EERAR
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
[ELLE B
Types of products
b ZERLGHERN

Of which: Revenue from pharmaceutical
sales

1,701,652,695.84

1,560,606,376.74

Al AR BN

Revenue from consultancy services

8,069,691.48

4,130,782.50

=TT RN

Revenue from third-party logistics

83,429,740.66

80,482,616.29
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Gk AEFAHR EERARR
Contract classification Amount in current year Amount in prior year
BB HEME

By region of operation

Horp: #ERHBE

Of which: South China 1,785,987,041.64

1,641,334,883.66

2 I [

East China 2,254,592.71

1,771,772.17

FoAtb it [

Other regions 4,910,493.63

2,113,119.70

HIERESH

By sales channel

Horpe g NN

Of which: Offline sales 1,685,434,357.33

1,591,557,215.83

. 107,717,770.65 53,662,559.70
Online sales
&3t
T 1,793,152,127.98 1,645,219,775.53
otal
MHEREMARE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
LAREIERE M E 2 AR 1. Details of non-recurring profit or loss for the year
HE KEEH s
Amount for .
Item Explanation
the year
R BN A 7 i B R
. . 57,273.36
Gains and losses from disposal of non-current assets
SR ot 4t g A I A T SO B SR AR SR 3 . IR
Tax refunds and relief of ultra vires or without formal approval or incidental
tax refunds or relief
AENE R W BUF RIS CRASESEF R VIR, IRBI X 5 — e
FHEE B 2 IMBUF R BIER S
Government grants included in the profit or loss for the period (except for the | 1,280,328.52

government grants closely related to the corporate businesses and granted at a
fixed amount or quantity in accordance with national uniform standards)

AT\ IR 2 10 3 A < A SR WA 3 <A ) B
Funds utilisation fees collected from non-financial enterprises included in the
profit or loss for the period

AT T AE B A SE G SR IE A /N i BS54 IR JfE =
A B B ] R A OB AR AR s

Gains from the excess of the fair value of identifiable net assets of the
investee attributable to the enterprise at acquisition over the investment costs
for the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

FEE M Ik B AR R

Gains and losses from the exchange of non-monetary assets
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Amount for .
Item Explanation
the year

Zrtib NI ol B A (R B

Gains and losses from investments on trust or asset management

RIATTHLIRE, Wil 2 A 28 5CE Mt 3R )& TR 2 JaE e

Provision for impairment of assets as a result of force majeure factors, such
as natural disasters

AP E AR A

Gains and losses from debt restructuring -100,000.00

EEHERMEM, BB LR, e BHE
Costs for enterprise reorganization, such as the expenses for the placement of
workers, and integration cost

A2 5y TR REUR o> S A B 2 A At o S (BB D 0 (R4E 28

Gains and losses from the excess of transaction without fair transaction price
over the fair value

A — 42 T 4 3 & 0F AL 10 7 A RAE AT R A OF H I E R AR

Net gains or losses for the period of subsidiaries arising from business
combination under common control from the beginning of the year to the date
of combination

B0 ) I A 7 S I B 1) B S TR A AR 4R 2
Gains and losses arising from contingent matters not related to the normal
operation of the Company

% [ 22 =) O W A7 SE B A B A A IR B B4, A X A Mk Rk
L ARG E. ZHEER AR, ATE SR &R E RN A o EE %
@@ﬁ,uﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁé\mi‘%ééxx%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁ\
T i B R A HA R RE B B B Wi o

Investment income derived from the holding of financial assets held for
trading and derivative financial assets, gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of financial liabilities held for trading and derivative financial
liabilities and disposal of financial assets held for trading, derivative financial
assets, financial liabilities held for trading, derivative financial liabilities and
other debt investment (excluding the effective hedging activities related to the
normal operation of the Company)

HEAT VARG R B SGRIH L 5 (7] 3 728 YRk {1 Y A ]
Reversal of impairment provision of receivables and contract assets tested on 552,722.02
individual basis

WA REE B AT R AT

Gains and losses from external entrusted loan

PRI OB AR QAT 12 AR T S A BB P D i o Fo BB S B 2 AR 4R
2%
Gains and losses from the changes of fair value of investment properties

measured by fair value model subsequently

RIS, Erat SR 2 A SR B B IR AR M AT — DI 4 1Y)
R IR

Effect of one-off adjustment in profit or loss for the period according to the
laws and regulations regarding taxation and accounting

AEALE IS IRE BN

Entrust fee income from entrusted operation
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KEEH

HH B
Amount for .
Item Explanation
the year

B b 3R B TH 2 AP oA 2 SE AN S

7 . -65,562.84
Other non-operating income and expenditures apart from the above

FAt A5 & AR A H MR G 2 AR IR H
Other items of profit and loss meeting the definition of non-recurring profit 11,263.47
and loss
/Nat
Sub-total 1,736,024.53
W AR B AR
428,768.39
Less: Effect of income tax ’
YRR S BB (D)
Effect of minority shareholders’ equity (after tax)
a3t
1,307,256.14 —

Total
PRS- LV G E Y &Y L&+ 2. Return on net assets and earning per share

I Al e
S R B[E (%) Earnings per share
Profit for the reporting period Weighted average ARG R R
return on net assets | Basic earnings | Diluted earnings
(%) per share per share

5 B S B 2 ) A e R B R v R

Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of parent 8.67 0.4754 0.4754

company

FUBR AR AL H PR 2 A2 i B8 I R 2 ) 3 308 JE e SR P

Net profit attributable to the equity shareholders of parent 8.45 0.4633 0.4633

company (excluding non-recurring profit and loss)

3AKEAEZEI NS EEHERT
FRtBRER

year

RIREEERMEIRAF
—OZIE=A=+/\H
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3. There is no difference in the accounting data of the Group
under domestic and foreign accounting standards for the
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